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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9544 1-800-8S2-334S Ext. 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhh$.nh.gov

November 19, 2024

u

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into Retroactive, Sole Source amendments to existing contracts, which were originally
competitively bid, with the Contractors listed below to add funding and extend the contracts
beyond the available renewal options to avoid a gap In services while the Department reprocures
for Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for individuals with opioid and/or
stimulant use disorder, by increasing the total price limitation by $237,000 from $1,480,936 to
$1,717,936 and by extending the completion dates from September 29, 2024 to June 30, 2025,
effective retroactive September 30, 2024, upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal
Funds.

The individual contracts were approved by Govemor and Council as specified in the table
below.

Contractor

Name

Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

G&C Approval

Archways

Tilton, NH
310158

Greater Tilton

Area
$611,063 $97,500 $708,563

0: 08/14/19(116171 #10)

A1:02/17/21 (Item #20)

A2:10/13/21

(Item #35)

A3:11/02/22

(Item #18)

A4:9/20/23 (Item #42)

Granite

Pathways

Concord,
NH

228900 Statewide $869,873 $139,500 $1,009,373

0:09/18/19

(Item #19)
A1:02/17/21 (Item #20)

A2:10/13/21

(Item #35)

A3:11/02/22

(Item #18)

A4: 9/20/23 (Item #42)

Total: $1,480,936 $237,000 $1,717,936
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Funds are available In the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2025, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive to avoid delays or gaps that would result in reduced or loss of
access and supports for individuals In need of these critical services. The Federal awarding
agency notified the Department on September 24, 2024, of the availability of funding beyond the
contracts' completion dates of September 29, 2024. Due to the delayed notification from the
Federal awarding agency, the Department was unable to present this request to the Governor
and Council prior to the contracts expiring, this request is Sole Source because the Department
is requesting to extend the contracts, which were originally competitively bid, t>eyond the
completion dates and there are no renewal options available. Due to the limited timeframe
between the funding notification from the Federal awarding agency and the contract expiration
date, there are no known viable alternatives to these Contractors, who have expertise with
workforce readiness programs that are specifically tailored for individuals with opioid and/or
stimulant use disorders. This request will allow the Contractors to continue to serve current
participants without gaps or delays in service and avoid reduced or loss of access to these critical
supports. The Department intends to reprocure for these services.

The purpose of this request is to allow the Department to add funding and extend the
contracts beyond the available renewal options to avoid a gap in services while the Department
reprocures for Workforce Readiness and Voca'tional Training Programs for individuals with opioid
and/or stimulant use disorder. j

Approximately 75 individuals will be served from September 29, 2024, to June 30. 2025,
who, on average, engage with the vocational training supports and workforce readiness programs
300 days during the one-year period. i

The Contractors will continue integrating workforce readiness programming into treatment
and recovery settings, including creating vocational profiles in order to determine an individual's
skill level, strengths,-and readiness to gain employment. The Contractors, will continue linking
individuals to appropriate vocational trainings by providing training, stipends and other resources'
that assist the individuals on the path to employment. Vocational training includes providing
assistance with resume writing, completing job, applications, and improving interviewing skills.

The Department .will continue to monitor services through the review of monthly data
reports and periodic surveys.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, there will be a gap
in...Workforce.Readiness.and.Vocational Training .Programs, forjndividuals with.opioid and/or
stimulant use disorder while the Department reprocures for these services.

Source of Federal Funds; Assistance Listing Number #93.788, FAIN #H79TI087843

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program. ,

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

The Deportment of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families^
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT.

HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES, SOR GRANT

100% Federal Funds ,

^Vendor Name Archways Vendor# 310158

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $70,081.00 SO.OO $70,081.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $27,748,00 $0.00 $27,748.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057046 $29,234.00 $0.00 $29,234.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $66,667.00 $0.00 $66,667.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $33,333.00 $0.00 $33,333.00

2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $93,000.00 $0.00 $93,000.00

2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $31,000.00 SO.OO $31,000.00

2023 . 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057059 $97,500.00 $0.00 $97,500.00

2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057059 $130,000.00 $0.00 $130,000.00

2025 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057062 $32,500.00 $0.00 $32,500.00

2025 . 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057070 • $0.00 $97,500.00 $97,500.00

Sub Total $611;063.00 $97(500.00 $708,563.00

^Vendor Name Granite Pathways Vendor #228900

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $72,683.00 $0.00 $72,683.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $45,338.00 $0.00 $45,338.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057046 $43,852.00 $0.00 $43,852.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $100,000.00 SO.OO $100,000.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 -  $50,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00

2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $139,500.00 $0.00 $139,500.00

2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $46,500.00 $0.00 $46,500.00

2023 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057059 $139,500.00 $0.00 $139,500.00

2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057059 $186,000.00 $0.00 $186,000.00

2025 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057062 $46,500.00 $0.00 $46,500.00

2025 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057070 $0.00 $139,500.00 $139,500.00

Sub Total $869,873.00 $139,500.00 $1,009,373.00

I  Overall Totall $1.480,936.001 $237.000.001 $1.717,936.001

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page.l of 1
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State ofjNew Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #5

This Amendment to the Workforce Readiness! and Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with
Opioid and/or Stimulant Use Disorder contract is by and between the State of-New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Archways ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 14, 2019 (Item #10), as amended on [February 17, 2021 (Item #20), as amended on October 13,
2021 (item #35), as amended on November 2. 2022 (Item #18), and as amended on September 20, 2023
(Item #42), the Contractor agreed to perform jcertain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties Hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block M, Completion Date, to read:
,  ' I

June 30.2025 ' .

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$708,563 1
3. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #4, Scope of Services; Section 2.8.5 to read:

.  2.8.5 Utilize Motivational Interviewing to increase individuals' willingness and readiness to
seek education or employment opportunities.

4. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #4, Scope of Services; Section 2.11.3 to read:

2.1 i .3 Prior or current criminal justice involvement.

5. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #4, Scope of Services; by adding Section 2.19, to read:

2.19. The Contractor shall meet with the Department \Arithin 60 business days of the resulting
contract effective date to review contract deliverables, grant guideline, and
implementation for the resulting Agreement.

6. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #4, Scope of Services; by adding Section 2.20, to read:

2.20. The Contractor shall utilize' the Department's closed loop referral solution, and if
applicable, the admission, bischarge, and transfer solution (referred to collectively
as the NH Care Connections Network) for referrals between health and/or human
service providers within New Hampshire as the option for referral management
and care connections. Utilization includes inputting information and data as
necessary into the Departnfient's NH Care Connections Network to facilitate
referrals to participating providers, signing any required Network Participation
Agreement, and obtaining a participant specific consent for services, Including, as
required by 42 CFR Part 2.31 identifying all uses and disclosures of the
individual's Part 2 record or information by the NHCCN.

I  '

2.20.1. The Department's contracts for the NH Care Connections Network
incorporate all the cbsts of developing and maintaining the standards
based interface from which the Contractor may choose to configure their
systems to communicate securely with the Department's NH Care
Connections Network solutions. The Contractor may opt to interface with

Archways A-S-1

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A05 Page 1
v7.12.23

the Department's closed loop referral solution, and if applicable, tlfe7 T
A4)

r Initiak V.3 Contractor Initials^
11/19/2024

of 8 Date
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admission, discharge, and transfer solution utilizing a Smart on FHIR or
HL-7 standard interface process to connect individuals to health and social
service providers. i The costs for the Contractor's system or team to
develop or utilize the standard Smart of FHIR or HL-7 based interface
are the sole responsibility of the Contractor.

7. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #4, Scopejof Services; Section 3, to read:
3. Reporting j

3.1. The Contractor shall provide the Department with client-level, non-identifiable data that
supports contract deliverables, the Contractor shall ensure client-level, non-identifiable
data excludes information allowing the individual to be identified or constructively identified.
Constructively identified, means; that by using the information provided and what is
reasonably and predictably available to a predictable recipient of the Information the
individual could be identified. Vendor shall provide non-identified data from which there is
no reasonable basis to believe that the data used alone or In combination with other

reasonably available information, could be used to identify an individual who is a subject of
the information. j

I

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure compliance with 42 CFR Part 2 and confidentiality consent,
notices, and requirements, as applicable to any data collected or reported.

1
3.3. The Contractor shall collect data on services provided through the resulting Agreement to

ensure progress towards program!goals and deliverables. The Contractor shall ensure data
includes, but is not limited to: |
3.3.1. Number and type of recruitrrient activities for.individuals with an OUD/StimUD.

3.3.2. Number of individuals in the program with demographics such as age, gender, race

and ethnicity. i

' 3.3.3. Vocational services provided per individual.

3.3.4. Start date of employment per individual.

3.3.5. Type of position per individual.

3.3.6. Name of employers per individual.

3.3.7. Length of employment per individual.

3.3.8. Number of employers recrui ed per month.

3.3.9. Types of supports provided o employers to recruit, hire, and retain individuals in

recovery per month.

3.3.10. Any/all exceptions of individuals not attending the training programs provided.

3.4. The Contractor shall report all, if any, exceptions for individuals who do not attend available
training programs.

3.5. The Contractor shall submit month y reports to the Department, on the 15th working day of
the following month, in a format and via a secure method approved by the Department,
inclusive of the Department-approyed Closed Loop Referral platform, as applicable. The
Contractor shalj ensure reports include client-level, de-identified data identified above.

3.6. The Contractor shall report on required data points specific to the SOR grant, as identified
by SAMHSA over the grant period.

3.7. The Contractor may be required to prepare and submit ad hoc data reports, respond to
periodic surveys, and other data collection requests as deemed necessarynB9"'*lhe

AiOU
Archways A-S-1 3 Contractor Initials v

11/19/2024
RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A05 Page 2 of 8 Date
v7.12.23
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Department or SAMHSA including PH.

3.8. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the Department
in a format specified by the Department.

8. Modify Exhibit A,. Amendment #4, Scope lof Services; Section 4, to read:

4. Government Performance Results Act

4.1. The Contractor shall administer or coordinate the administration of Government
Performance Results Act (GPRA)lof 1993 and the GPRA Modernization Act of 2010 initial
interview and associated follow-ups at six (6) months and discharge for all individuals
receiving program services.

4.2. The Contractor shall provide individuals served with clear guidance about the uses and
disclosures of the information provided to complete the GPRA, and the use and disclosure
of the Part 2 information or other PHI required in order to complete the GPRA. The
Contractor shall also provide staff training regarding the confidentiality of the identifiable
information included in the GPRAJ

4.3. The Contractor shall provide or coordinate ongoing follow-up and support of individuals
engaged in services until a discharge GPRA interview is completed. The Contractor shall
ensure:

4.3.1. Staff confirms a confidential means of communicating with each individual engaged
in services to provide or cojordinate ongoing follow up and support;
4.3.2. Contact with each individual is attempted during a time when the individual

would normally be aiailable. Contact shall be made in person, by telephone,
or by an alternative method approved by the Department, according to the
following guidelines:

contact attempt is not successful, a second contact
be made no sooner than two (2) business days and no

later than three (3) business days after the first attempt; and.

4.3.2.2. If the second contact attempt is not successful, a third contact
attempt shall be made no sooner than two (2) business days and no
later than three (3) business days after the second attempt;

4.3.3. Each successful contact shall include, but not be limited to:

4.3.2.1. If the first

attempt sha

4.4.

4.3.3.1. Inquiring on'the status of each individual's recovery and experience
with their external service provider;

4.3.3.2. Identifying individual needs;

4.3.3.3. Assisting the individual with addressing identified needs.; and

4.3.3.4. Providing early intervention to individuals who have resumed use;

4.3.4. When the follow-up identified above results in a determination that the
individual is at risk of self-harm, the Contractor shall proceed in alignment
with their crisis response policy and procedure; and

4.3.5. All efforts of contact are clearly documented in the individual's electronic
health record, or in a format approved by the Department, and are available
to the Department upon request.

The Contractor shall ensure the GPRA interviews are attempted at the following

Archways

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A05
v7.12.23

A-S-1

Page 3 of 8
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intervals:

4.4.1. At the time of inta

f

:e or no later than seven (7) calendar days after intake;

4.4.2. Five (5) to eight (8) months post intake. The window for this Interview opens
I

five (5) months after the. intake interview; and

4.4.3. Upon discharge from the initially referred service.

4.5. The Contractor shall ensure completed GPRA data is entered into the Department-
approved system, at a minimum of the following intervals:

4.5.1. At the time of intake or no later than seven (7) calendar days after the GPRA
interview is conducted;

i
4.5.2. Five (5) to eight (8) months post intake; and

4.5.3. Upon discharge from the initially referred service.

4.6. The Contractor shall document any loss of contact with participants in the
Department-approved system using the appropriate process and protocols as
defined by SAMHSA and'through technical assistance provided under the SOR
grant. |

4.7. The Contractor shall ensure contingency management strategies are utilized to
Increase participant engagement in follow-up GPRA interviews. Contingency
management strategies may include, but are not limited to. gift cards provided to
individuals for follow-up participation at each follow-up interview. The Contractor

.  shall ensure gift cards: |
(

4.7.1. Do not exceed $30iin value, in accordance with federal guidelines, set forth
by SAMHSA; and !

4.7.2. Are used solely to ihcentivize GPRA interview completion and not used to

incentivize participation in treatment.

9. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #4, Scope of Services; Section 5, to read:

5. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

5.1. The Contractor shall ensure they, and any provider which referrals are made to:

5.1.1. Only provide and/or prescribe medications for Opioid Use Disorder (OUD), as
clinically appropriate, that are approved by the Food and Drug Administration;

5.1.2. Only provide medical withdrawal management services to Individuals supported by
SOR grant funds if the withdrawal management services are accompanied by the
use of injectable extended-release naltrexone, as clinically appropriate; and

5.1.3. Ensure staff trained in Presumptive Eligibility for Medicaid are available to assist
individuals with public or private health insurance enrollment.

5.1.4. Comply with 42 CFR Part 2 as applicable and related to any referrals and provider
services. '

1

5.2. The Contractor shall ensure individuals receiving services, rendered from SOR funds, have
a documented history or current jdiagnoses of Opioid Use Disorder or Stimulant Use
Disorders (OUD/StimUD) or are at risk for such.

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure that SOR grant funds are not used to purchase, prescribe, or

Archways A-S-113 Contractor Initials
1  11/19/2024

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A05 Page 4 of 8 Date
v7.12,23
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provide cannabis or for providing treatment using cannabis. The Contractor shall ensure:

5.3.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of OUD/StimUD;
t

5.3.2. Grant funds are not provided to any individual or organization that provides or
permits cannabis use for
disorders: and

he purposes of treating substance use or mental health

5.3.3. This cannabis restriction applies to all subcontracts and Memorandums of
Understanding that receive SOR funding.

5.4. The Contractor shall utilize SOR funding, as needed, to ensure Naloxone kits are available
to individuals receiving sen/ices through this Agreement.

.  5.4.1. If the Contractor intends to distribute test strips, the Contractor shall provide a test
strip utilization plan to the Department for approval prior to implementation. The

• Contractor shall ensure the utilization plan includes, but is not limited to:
t

5.4.1.1. Internal policies for the distribution of test strips;

5.4.1.2. Distribution methods and frequency; and

5.4.1.3. Other key data as Requested by the Department.
I

5.4.2. The Contractor shall provide sen/ices to eligible individuals \A/ho:

5.4.2.1. Receive MOUD services from other providers, including the individual's
primary care provider; |

.  5.4.2.2. Have co-occurringjsubstance use and mental health disorders; or
5.4.2.3. Are on medications and are taking those medications as prescribed

regardless of the cl^s of medication.
5.5. The Contractor shall ensure individuals who refuse to consent to information sharing with

the Doorways do not receive services utilizing SOR funding.

5.6. The Contractor shall ensure individuals who rescind consent to information sharing with
the Doorways do not receive any additional services utilizing SOR funding.

5.7. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department and other SOR funded vendors, as
requested and directed by the Department, to improve GPRA collection.

5.8. The Contractor shall comply with all appropriate Department, State of NH, SAMHSA, and
other Federal terms, conditions, arid requirements.

i  ' .
10. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, to

read: " '

■ 1. This Agreement is funded by 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, by
the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration (SAMHSA), Assisted Listing Number (ALN) 93.788, as awarded on:

1.1. 09/30/2018, FAIN H79TI081685

1.2. 09/30/2020, FAIN

j

H79TI083326

1.3. 08/09/2021, FAIN H79TI083326
1

1.4. 09/23/2022, FAIN H79TI085759

1,5. 09/01/2023, FAIN H79TI085759

1.6. 09/24/2024, FAIN H79TI087843

and

Initial

11. Modify Exhibit 8, Amendment #1, Methods and. Conditions Precedent to Payment, Seqtiqf]/^^ to

Archways A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
t  11/19/2024

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A05 Page 5 of 8 Date
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read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be In accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit B-1 Budget through Exhibit B-12, Amendment #5, SOR IV Budget.

12. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5.1.3.,
to read: |

5.1.3. Invoices shall not include unallowable expenses, as reference below:

5.1.3.1. SOR IV Notice of Ipunding Opportunity, page 31: FY 2022 Stale Opioid
Response Grants (smhsa.gov); and

5.1.3.2. SAMHSA's Standards for Financial Management and Standard Funding
Restrictions, page 36: FY 2024 Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration (SAMHSA) Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) Application
Guide. I

13. Add Exhibit B-12, Amendment #5, SOR IV Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein. j

Archways

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A05

v7.12.23
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall, be effective retroactive to September 30, 2024, upon
Governor and Council approval. j

I

I

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

11/20/2024

Date

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

—DocuSlgned by;

Title: Director

Archways

11/19/2024

Date

^Slgn»d by:

ai180«OOM)tP4<6..

Name: Mark watman

Title:
vice President/coo

Archways

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A05
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OoeuSlgnad by:

11/20/2024

Date Name: Rdoyn Suanno

Title-
Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ^ {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Archways

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A05
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Exhibit B-12, Amendment #5, SOR IV Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
1

Contractor Name: Archways

Budget Request for: Workforce Readiness & Vocational Programs for Individuals with
Opjoid and/or Stimulant Use Disorder •

-Budget Period SFY25 (9/30/2024 - 6/30/2025)

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)0
(

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages 1' $53,000

2. Fringe Benefits $15,000

3. Consultants $19,000

4. Equipment ^
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs
per 2 CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200,

t  '

$0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational •  1 . $0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d} Supplies - Medical [  $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $750

6. Travel $1,500

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications $2,250

8. (b) Other - Education and Training i  $0

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) 1  $0

Other (please specify) :  $3,000

Other (please specify) . I  $3,000

Other (please specify) 1  - • . $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts 1  • $0

Total Direct Costs $97,500

1

Total Indirect Costs $0

1

TOTAL $97,500

G—iniu«i
(U.(jD

«^WMiicn.kwi imuoio.

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A05 Date:
11/19/2024



Oocusign Envelope ID; 393D363C-5E5A-40D7-A428-F9D10FFDF75D

State of l^ew Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secrelar)' ofSiate of the Slate ofNew Hampshire, do hereby certify that ARCHWAYS is a New
\

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New l-lampshire on October 09, 2015. 1 further certify that all

fees and documents required by the Seeretaiy of Stale's ofTicc have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned. i

Business ID: 733566

Certificate Number: 0006788069

u.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 4th day of October A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretan' of State



Docusign Envelope ID: 393D363C-5E5A-40D7-A428-F9D10FFDF75D

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

Brad Davis
hereby certify that:

(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on Qctober 9 2o£l_, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That
Mark Watman, Vice President

IS

(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

duly authorized on behalf of AfChwayS

(may list more than one person)

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)
to enter into contracts or agreements with the State

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, whichmay in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to efject the purpose of this vote.
3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify
that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with
the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

11/7/2024 '
Dated:

Signed by;

P7MF0AF7?ry.i<7

Signature of Elected Officer

Name: Brad Davis

Title: Board President

Rev. 03/24/20



Docusign Envelope ID; 393D363C-5E5A-40D7-A428-F9D10FFDF75D

y^croRO'

GREATiL<01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

LCOONEY

DATE (MM/OD/YYYY)

11/7/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate hoider is an ADDITIONAL INSURED! the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate hoider in iieu of such endorsement(8).

PRODUCER '

A W Frost Agency, Inc. i
354 Central Street i
Franklin, NH 03235 I

i
1

1

CONTACT
NAME:

wc.'no.exi): (603) 934-3319 r>uc.No):(603) 934-7227
miss-.

INSURERfSl AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICt

INSURER A Mount Vernon Fire Insurance

INSURED [

Archways 1
5 Prospect St
Tiiton, NH 03276 {

I

INSURER B Proaressive Insurance Group 24252

INSURER C AmTrust North America. Inc.

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURERF

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: ' REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

jja. TYPE OF INSURANCE
AODL

mo.
SUBR

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EPF
tMM/DOrYYYYI

POLICY EXP
<MM/PDfYYYYI LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILITY

CLAIMS4AADE I X I OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

NPP2567856F 2/1/2024 2/1/2025
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES fEa occurreneal

MED EXP (Any one p«f3onl

PERSONAL S. AOV INJURY

GENT AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

□ hPOLICY

•rr krcc

□ LOC

OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS. COMP/OP AGG

1,000,000
100;000

5,000

1,000,000

3,000,000
3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea acddenil

1,000,000

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

00943918 1/27/2024 7/27/2024

S ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS

aOTo:

BODILY INJURY tPaf paraofil

BODILY INJURY tPef acddanl)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acddefUl

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DEO

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTIONS

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

11 yas. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS belew

I X

S
WWC3705338 4/2/2024 4/2/2025

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 100,000

E.L..DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 100,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101. AddlUonal Remarks Schsklule. may be attached If more space le required)
Hired & Non>Owned Auto Liability included in General Liabili^ limits. |

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
1

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health & Human Services '
129 Pleasant St 1
Concord, NH 03301 !

i

1  '

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORtZEO REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) ® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



ARCHWAYS
Archways Community Resource Centers - Tilton, Franklin, Concord, Plymouth

MISSION: To strengthen and empower families and the Archways Community
Resource Center communities by promoting health, well-being, and self-sufficiency
through positive relationships, support, collaboration, and education

VISION: To be a Community Resource Center of Quality, certified by the Council on
■ Accreditation of Peer Recover}' Support Services and the National Standards of Quality
for Family Resource Centers... a place where all community members feel welcomed to
ask questions and find connections to information and resources that strengthen.and
empower the people of our community. i



MONTHLY FINANCIAL

SUMMARY i
Prepared by Donna Southwell, YPTC |

September 2024 | Calendar Year-End December 31, 2024

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

'At
ARCHWAYS

As of September 30, 2024, the organization has demonstrated strong financial performance over the past nine
months, with total revenues reaching approximately $l!9M. This success is attributed to grant income, which
accounts for around $1.7M, underscoring the effectiveness of the funding strategies from state, federal, and
foundation sources. The organization's cash position has improved significantly, with cash and cash equivalents
increasing to $537K, enhancing its liquidity and operational flexibility. Expenses have been managed effectively,
totaling about $1.5M, with personnel-related costs bein'g the largest expenditure.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

Liquidity Management: .

o We will collaborate with the team to incorporate a 2024 budget which will allow us to include a
rolling forecast in the future reporting package.

Debt Levels: j
o  Total non-current liabilities amount to $.499K.

o  The organization should develop a strategy to reduce debt: build a reserve fund to reduce reliance
on external borrowing.

Fixed Asset Management:

o  The organization has invested significantly in fixed assets, with a net value of $732K:
o  Develop a fixed asset management plan that includes regular maintenance schedules, asset

utilization reviews, and a strategy for asset replacement or disposal.

Recommendations |

o  To effectively manage the restricted grarits received in cash that are earmarked for future
expenditures, consider placing these funds in a separate bank account. This approach will enhance
the organization's ability to track and manage these funds, providing clearer visibility into what
remains to be spent improving overall cash position management.

ATTACHMENTS

•  Statement of Financial Position As of September 30, 2024

•  Statements of Activities for the Month of September and Year to Date as of September 30, 2024

•  Statement of Cash Flows As of September 30, 2024'

Prepared by Donna Southwell, YPTC (10.22.2024)
PS^10<4



Archways

Statement of Financial Position

As of September 30, 2024

September 30, 2024

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Grants receivable

Prepaid expenses

Other current assets

Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets

Fixed assets, net

Total Non-Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABlimES AND NET ASSETS

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable

Credit cards

Other current liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

Notes payable - Franklin Savings Bank

Notes payable - Parsons and Sons

Total Non-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

With donor restrictions .

Without donor restrictions

Change in net assets

Total Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$ 536,965

.282,841

200,000

17,887

32,239

1,069,933

732,386

732,386

S 1,802,319

S 39,281

15,304

32,097

86,682

168,647

329,950

498,596

585,278

278,714

571,180

$ 367,146

•  1,217,041

$ 1,802,319

UNAUDITED - For Management Use Only
Paj)e 2 of 4



Archways

Statements of Activities

For the Month of September and Year to Date as of September 30, 2024

Month-to-Date Year-to-Date

September 30,2024 September 30, 2024
1

REVENUES

Grant income

Grants - State $  91,267 $ 1,033,236

Grants - Federal 25,882 246,690

Grants - Foundation 24,250 403,896

Total Grant income 141,399 . 1,683,821

Other revenue

Medicaid income 152 52,119

Rental income 3,316 30,704

Training income 250 3,250

Donations 18,151 ■  90,452

Miscellaneous income 2,586 12,211

Total Other revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENSES

Personnel related expenses

Salaries and wages

Payroll taxes

Fringe

Payroll processing fees

Total Personnel related expenses

Operating costs

Facilities

Consulting support

Dues and subscriptions

Training and professional development

Computer and office supplies

Insurance

Travel

Depreciation

Total Operating costs

Program expenses

Participant resources

Training and materials

Total Program expenses

TOTAL EXPENSES

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

24,455

165,854

64,209

5,525

17,469

503

188,735

1,872,557

718,614

59,151

108,492

9,107

87,706 895,365

15,496 173,153

29,100 204,151

115 7,082

2,830 25,444

$ 7,337 $ 60,506

1,292 13,578

1,390 21,148

4,110 ■ 33,748

61,669 538,809

4,130 66,694

- 4,543

4,130 71,237

153,504 1,505,411

$ 12,350 $ -367,146

UNAUDITED - For Management Use Only.
P80S 3 oM



Archways

Statement of Cash Flows
j

As of September 30, 2024

As of

September 30, 2024

OPERATING AaiVITIES

Net Income i $ 367,146

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided By Operations

Accounts/Grants receivable ! {11,617)

Prepaid expenses j (480)

Other current assets i 2,000

Depreciation 33,747

Payroll liabilities (28,842)

■ Accounts payable 25,396

Credit cards 13,767

Total Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided by Operations 33,971

Net Cash provided by Operating Activities 401,117

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of fixed assets (70,060)

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities (70,060)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Notes payable (25,876)

Other liabilities (7,640)

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities (33,515)

NET CASH INCREASE FOR PERIOD 297,542

Cash, Beginning of Period 239,423

Cash, End of Period S 536,965

UNAUDITED - For Management Use Only
Pags 4 o( 4



Archways Board of Directors 2024

Contact Information Affiliation Office Year

appointed

Term#

1. Brad Davis xxxxxxxxx Attorney

Davis Hunt Law

President 2018 2018-2019

2020-2021

2022-2023

xxxxxxxxxx
2. Andrea

Jergensen

Behavioral Specialist

I  Health First

Secretary 2022 '2022-2023

2024-2025

2026-0227

3. Lori-Ann

Bolduc

xxxxxxxxxx: I  Bank Manager

Franklin Savings Bank

Treasurer 2022 '2022-2023

2024-2025

2026-2027

4. Donna

Toomey

j Certified Patient
I  Navigator

Health Market Connect

!  NH

2023 ■2023-2024,

2025-2026

2027-2028

5. Stephanie
Wolff

j  Project Director
Franklin Partners in

Prevention

2023 '2023-2024

2025-2026

2027-2028



^'' .•!'...i?^- -/- a
xxxxxxxxx

xxxx>

xxxxxxx

H,

SUMMARY Proficient recovery cooch experienced in building successful client relotionstiips to improve

treatment success. Skilled'conflict manager witti a tt^orough approach. Desiring new
professional challenges in;o environment.

SKILLS Boundary Setting .

Goo! Setting |
Intervention Plonnir^g '

Client Advococy

Treotment Gools

Resource advocacy

EXPERIENCE RECOVERY.COACH (CRSW) | 03/2024 to Current

Archways - Concord , NH |
•  Assessed risk foctqrs associated with relopse triggers and provided prooctive

interventions as needed.

•  Created a safe space for open dialogue about difficult topics such os shame, guilt,

troumo. grief. '
•  Adhered to ethical guidelines established by professional organizations such as

NAADACorlCRCP.

•  Provided peer recovery support to individuals in early stages of recovery from
substance use disorder.

•  Participated in continuing education opportunities related to substance use disorders
or mentol health conditions.

PROGRAM COORDINATOR | 10/2012 to 03/2022

Adult and Teen Challenge - Manchester. NH

Developed ond irriplemented program activities occording to established gools end
objectives. j
Provided guidance and support to program participants in novigcting resources,
services, and opportunities.

Maintained up-to-date records related to program activities.
Prepared reports on progress towards program goals for management review.
Monitored progrorq budgets, expenditures, and resource utilization while making
recommendations [os needed.
Organized special events related to the promotion or awareness of the progrom's
mission or purpose.,

MATERIAL HANDLER I 04/2008 to 08/2011
'  i

School Specialties Inc - Nashua , NH

•  Received and distributed incoming materials to designated oreos.

•  Inspected materials for any damages or defects upon receipt.

•  Operated forklift in b safe manner to move lorge shipments within the facility..

•  Assisted with physic'ol inventories as needed by counting ports occurotely ond
quickly. \

•  Investigated discrepancies between inventory records and actual stock on hand.
•  Managed work area cleanliness by following company guidelines for orgonizotion.

EDUCATION AND

TRAINING

Nashua High School South -- Nashua. NH

GED '



CERTIFICATIONS •  CRSW

•  CPR

•  Families in Recovery

•  Parenting a secont Time Around



Richard Lavoy

Dedicated professional with more than 10 years! experience in the food service industry. Technical

skill with a variety of cooking methods, ingredients, equipment, and procedures. Expertise successfully

delivering industry best practices in food quality' and customer service. Quick to adapt to rapidly
shifting priorities and demanding environments.]

Authorized to work In the US for any employer

Work Experience

Chef

Mohegan Sun - Uncasville, CT

2017 to 2023

Held rounder position for casino employee cafeteria. Oversaw all food stations - such as the chefs table,
Asian, grill, salad station, and salad station.

• Effectively led shift teams to meet food preparation safety standards.

• Consistently delivered exceptional customer service in fast-paced restaurant.

Line Cook ^
Tarry Lodge - New Haven, CT 1
April 2017 to July 2018

Oversaw pasta station for Italian restaurant - seven-minute quick fires and expediting orders. Working at

a fast pace menu moving orders out as quick as possible."? Coordinated food preparation in compliance

with regulatory requirements and organizational guidelines.
I

• Ensured clean, organized kitchen operations. |

Whole Foods Market - Glastonbury, CT j
2012 to 2016 i

Managed hot bar for more than 200 customers per day. Prepared soups and other hot items on rotating

menu. Items included a rotating menu of international, fresh menu, and my creativity

• Reliably produced prompt, quality food service to achieve superior customer satisfaction.

Chef Manager

Education

B.S. in Culinary Science
Johnson & Wales University - Providence, Rl



Skills

• Line Cook (5 years)

• Kitchen Management (3 years)

• Customer Service

• Baking (5'years)

• Shift Leadership {3 years)

• Food Preparation Safety

•  Inventory Control

• Catering/ Banquet Services {10+ years)

• Knife Skills {10+ years)

• Restaurant Experience {10+ years)

• "Pricing

• Meal Preparation

• Food Safety {10+ years)

• Culinary Experience {10+ years)

• Supervising Experience

• Time Management

• Labor Cost Analysis

• POS

• Restaurant Management

• Serving Experience

• Kitchen experience

• Dietary department experience

• English {10+ years)

• Cooking

• Profit & Loss

• Food Production

• Merchandising

• Menu Planning

• Guest Services

• Purchasing

• Cleaning Experience

• Supervising experience

• Leadership

• Guest services

• Teaching



Certifications and Licenses

ServSafe

Food Handler Certification

Driver's License

March 2023 to December 2027



NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

i

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Contractor Name:

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

I  Archways

NAME JOB TITLE ANNUAL ANNUAL SALARY

Richard Lavoy Employment Specialist $40,000.00 $41,600.00

Chad Wilson Transportation Coordinator $13,000.00 $42,848.00

1 $0.00 $0.00

t $0.00 $0.00

$0.00, $0.00

$0.00 $0.00



L«ri A. WMver

Craniistooer

Ki(Jt& Pos
'  DIrMior

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
I

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

D/y/S/ON FOX BEHA VIORAL HEALTH
-  i •

1»PLEASANTSTREET,CONCORD,NH 03301
603<27l-9544 l.»l)^8S2.334S Ext 9S44

Ftx;.^27l-4331 TDD A««w: I4p0-73«9M www.dhhi.nh.goy
I  . • ,
1
\

!  September 1. 2023
His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Suriunu
and.the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into Sole Source amendments to ejristing contracts, which were origihaily competitively
bid, With the Contractors listed below to continue providing Workforce Readiness and Vpcatlonal
Training Programs for individuals with opicid and/or stimulant use disorder, by increasing the total
price lirnltation by $316,000 from $1,164,936 to $.1,480,936 and by extending "the completion
dates frprh iSeptember 29. 2023 to Septemter 29, 2024, effective, September 29, 2023 upon
Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as spet^ed In the table
below. i

Contractor

Name

..Vendor
Code

Area Served Current ,
Amount
1

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised'

Amount

(^C
. Approval

Archways
310158-
8001

Greater Tiltdn
Area^

1

1

$481,063

•  i
1

t

1

$130,000 $611,083'

0:08/14/19

(Item.ifflO)

A1: 02/17/21
(Item mO)

A2:10/13/21
(Item #35}

A3:11/02/22
(Item #18)

Granite

Pathways.
228900-
' 8001

Statewide

1  ■

I

$683,873
1

$186,000 $869,873

0; 09/18/19

(Item #19);

:A1: 02/17/21
(Item #20)

A2:10/13/21

(Item #35)

A3: 11/02/22
(Item #16)

Total: $1,164,936 $316,000 $1,480,936

Funds are available in the followirig accounts for State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, whh
the authprity to adjust budget ilin'e Items within the price limitation and encunibrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, If heeded and justified.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the HonorBble Council

Page 2 of 2 '
*

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION
I

This request is Sole Source because the Depaitment Is requesting to extend the
contracts, which were originally competitively bid. beyond the completion dates and there are no
renewal options available. Due to the limited itimeframe l>etween the funding notification from the
Federal awarding agency and the contract expiration date, there are no known viable alternatives
to these Contractors, who have expertise with worWor^ readiness programs that are specifically
tailored for individuals with opiold and/or stimulant use disorders. This request will allow the
Contractors to continue to serve current participants without gaps or delays in service and avoid
reduced or loss of access to these critical supports.

The purpose.of this request Is for the Contractors to continue providing vocatlonaLtrainIng
supports and workforce readiness programs for individuals with opiold and/or stimulant use
disorders who are in treatment and recoveryj settings, and who are seeking to join or rejoin the
workforce. In coordination with the Recovery Friendly Workplace Initiative, which empowers
workplaces to provide support for individuals recovering from substance use disorder, services
provided through the contracts support individuals in attaining gainful employment, which is a
critical aspect of continued recovery.

Approximately 100 Individuals will be served from September 29.2023 to September 29.
2024, who. on average, engage with the vocational training supports and workforce readiness
prograrhs 300 days during the orie^year |:^riod.

The Contractors will continue integrating workforce readiness programming into treatment
and recovery settings, including creating vockional profiles In order to determine an individual's
skill level, strengths, arid readiness to gain employment. The Contractors wpl continue linking
individuals to appropriate vocational trainings, by providing training stipends and other resources
that assist the individuals on the path to employment. Vocational training includes providing
assistance with resume writing, completing job applications, and improving interviewing skills.

The Department vyill continue to monitor services through the review of monthly data
reports and periodic surveys.

Should the Governor and Execi^ive Council not authorize this request. Individuals in
recovery seeking a better quality of life and enipjoyment opportunities would have limited options.
Workforce participation and consistent employment are critical components of an individual's
ability to remain in recovery and gainfully part cipate in their communities.

Area served; Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number 93.788, FAIN's H79TI081685,
H79T|083326. H79T1085759, andTBD

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

^

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

The DepariDient of Health and Hiution Seruieee' Miuion it to Join contmuniiies and families
in providing opportiiniliet for citUens to achieve health and independence.



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT. HHS:

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES. SOR GRANT

100% Federal Funds

Vendor Name Vendor #-310158

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title ■ Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Deaease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 ■ Contracts for Prograrh Services i 92057040 $70,081.00 $0.00 $70,081.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services.! 92057040 $27,748.00 $0.00 . $27,748.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services : 92057046 $29,234.00 •  $0.00 $29,234.00

2021 ■ 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services i 92057048 $66,667.00 $0.00 $66,667.00

2022 •  • 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services ! 92057048 $33.333.-00 $0.00 $33,333.00

2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $93,000.00 $0.00 $93,000.00

2023 074r500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel \ 92057048 $31,000.00 $0.00 $31,000.00

2023 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 1 92057059 $97,500.00 .  $0.00 $97,500.00

2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance ! 92057059 $32,500.00 $97,500.00 $130,000.00

2025 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 1 92057059 $0.00 $32,500.00 $32,500.00

Sub Total . 1 $481,063.00 $130,000.00 $611,063.00

Vendor Name Granite Pathways Vendor #228900

State Fiscal

• Year .
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 1 92057040 $72,683.00 $0.00 $72,683.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 1 92057040 $45,338.00 $0.00 $45,338.00

2021 • 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 1 92057046 $43,852.00 $0.00 $43,652.00

2021 .102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 1 92057048 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

2022 . 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 1 •  92057048 • $50,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00

'2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 1 92057048 $139,500.00 $0.00 $139,500.00

2023 074-500585 Grants for- Pub Asst and Rel' 1 92057048 - $46,500.00 $0.00 $46,500.00

2023 074-500589 ■ Welfare Assistance 1 92057059 $139,500.00 $0.00 $139,500.00

2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 1 92057059 •  $46,500.00 $139,500.00 $186,000.00

2025 074-500589 Welfare Assistance i 92057059 $0.00 $46,500.00 $46,500.00

Sub Totel 1 $683,873.00 $186,000.00 $869,873.00

. -  ;

1  Overall Totall .$1,154,936,001 $316,000.00 $1,480,936.00

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail
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State ofiNew Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #4

This Amendment to the Workforce Readinessi and Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with
Opioid and/or Stjmulant Use Disorder contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire.
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Archways ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 14, 2019 (Item'#l0). as amended on f^ebruary 17. 2021 (Item #20). as amended on October 13,
.2021 (Item #35), and as amended on November 2, 2022 (Item #18). the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; .and

I  , . .

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18. the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approyal from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continuejd delivery of these services; and
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows: ' /

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7! Completion Date, to read:
September 29, 2024 j

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$611,063 ■ „ j ■
3. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read: '•

Robert W. Moore, Director .!
4. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services by replacihg it in its entirety with Exhibit A. Amendment #4,

Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. to
•  read: ••

1. This Agreement is funded by 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, by
the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration (SAMHSA),- Assisted Listing Number (ALN) 93.788. as awarded on:

1.1. 09/30/2018, FAIN H79TI0816.85; • •

1.2. 09/30/2020, FAIN H79TI083326;

1.3. " 08/09/2021, FAIN H79TI083326;
i

1.4. 09/23/2022. FAIN H79T1085759; and

T.5. Date and FAIN TBD pending receipt of the Notice of Award from SAMHSA, which is
anticipated to be effective; 9/30)2023.

6. Modify Exhibit B,'Amendment #1. Method
•  read:

s arid Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 3, to

3. Payment shall .be on a cost reimbursement basis for. actual expenditures incurrecj^in thefulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved lirfe^jt^^ as
Archways A-S-1;.2 . Contractor Initials'-

RFP-20ld^OAS-12.WORkF^2-A04 =
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Specified in Exhibit B-1 Budget through Exhibit B-11, Amendment #4, SOR III Budget.

7. Modify Exhibit 8, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 5,
Subsection 5.1, Paragraph 5.1.3, Subpafagraph 5.1.3.1, to add Parts 5.1.3.1.9 through 5.1.3.1.11,
as follows: * i

5.1;3.1.9. Promotional items including, but not lirnited to, clothing and commemorative Items
with added logos for distribution to clients and the community, including but not limited
to, pens, mugs/cups, folders/folios, lanyards, and conference bags. See 45 CFR
75.421(e)(3) ■! -

■5.1.3.1.10. Direct payments to individuals to enter treatment or continue to' participate in
prevention or treatrhent services. See 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b ■

5.1.3.1.11. Sterile needles or syringes for the hypodermic injection of any illegal drug.

8. Add Exhibit B-IO, Amendment #4, SOR
reference herein.

9. Add Exhibit B-11, Amendment #4. SOR
reference herein.

Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by

Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by

Archways

RFP-2Cn9-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A04

A-S-1.2
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall

Council approval..
be effective September 29, 2023, upon Governor and

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date v^ritten below,

^ State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

8/30/2023

Date

—OeevSlgMd by. ■

f'Ott

Name:Kapa s. fox

"^'1'®- Director

Archways

8/30/2023

Date

■OocuSlgntd by

C.
reoooa^iyayiii.,,

NameiMichelle lenncn
Title-

Executive Director

Archways

RFP.2019-BDAS-12-WORKF^2-A04

i.

A-S.1;2
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. ! ,

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

8/31/2023

Date

•Oe^SlgMd by:

Name; Robyn 'Guarino

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: \_ (date of meeting)

Date

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Name:

Title:

t'V

Archways

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKP^2.A04

A-S-1.2
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New Hampshire Department of Health andj Human Services
Workforce Readiness and Vocational Trair;iing Programs
for Individuals with OUD ^

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services
they will provide to persons with| limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or sen/ices within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date. , . i

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to jthe extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith. ' | -

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has identified the Contractor as
a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

1.4. The Contractor shall provide Workforce Readiness and VocationalTraining Programs
for a minimum of one hundred |(100} individuals witb Opioid Use .Disorder and
Stimulant Use Disorder (OUD/StimUD) in the Greater Tilton Area, which includes:

1.4.1.

1.4.2.

1.4.3.

1.4.4.

1.4.5.

Tilton;

Northfield;

Franklin;

Sanbornton;

Plymouth;

1.4.6. Concord; and !

1.4'.7. Surrounding small towns.

2. Scope of Services [
2.1. The Contractor shall ensure individuals who participate in Workforce Readiness and
' Vocational Training programs are referred to prevention, treatment and recovery and

harm reduction services, when applicable.

The Contractor shall provide workforce readiness programming to individuals with
(OUD/StimUD) who are receiving treatment or recovery support services. The
Contractor shall ensure workforce readiness programming includes, but. is not limited
to:

.  2.2.1. Job specific skills training.

Resume and cover letter assistance.

Communication skills;

2.2.

2.2.2.

2.2.3.

2.2.4.

2.2.5.

2.2.6.

2.2.7.

Time management skills.

Budgeting and financial

Customer service trainirjig.
Job retention approaches.

management skills.

Archways

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A04

Exhibit A-Amer^dnrtent fM
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New Hampshire Department of Health and
Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs
for Individuals with OUD |

Exhibit AAmendment #4

2.2.8. Networking skills. ' .

2.2.9. Application and interview assistance, including mock interviews.

2.2.10. Connections to employment resources,

2.3. The Contractor shall implement ajprocess to identify, recruit and engage individuals
with OUD/StimUD, including individuals not currently receiving seKrices frbm the
Contractor who may be interested in pursuing employment and/or educational
opportunities, or may be underemployed and are seeking a living wage.

2.4. The Contractor shall provide thet Recovery Works Curriculum based on nine (9)
modules, as follows:

2.4.1. Financial Basics and Time Management 101;

2.4.2. Employment Risks to Early Recovery:

2.4.3. Transferable Skills and Resume Development;

2.4.4. Coyer Letter and Job Search Strategies;

2.4.5. Computer Skills and Online Job Search Basics;

2.4.6. Interview Skills;

2.4.7. Practice Interviewing wi h a Positive Attitude;

2.4.8. Recovery .Thinking and Workplace Ethics; and.

2.4.9. Common Work Challenges. i-.

2.5. The Contractor shall offer individualized trainings to employers and community groups
utilizing curriculum from Recovery Works, which includes, but Is not limited to:

2.5.1. . Opioids and their effectsion the brain.

2.5.2. Stigma. 1

2.5.3. . Stages of Recovery. \
t

2.5.4. Pathways to Recovery, i

2.5.5. Resources and Referral.j
2.6. The Contractor shall develop a customized plan for each individual based on the

individual's seven (7) dimensioijis of wellness including physical, emotional,
intellectual, social, spiritual, environmental and occupational. The Contractor shall:

2.6.1. Screen individuals for strengths and weaknesses, capacity for work, and
necessity of work.

2.6.2. Conduct an intake process that must include, but is not limited to:

2."6.'2;1. Interview with a Recovery Coach.
1

2.6.2.2. Assessment of|the individual's seven (7) dimensions of wellness,
as identified in 2.6 above.

I
2.6.3. Address barriers to employment with individuals, and provide assistance in

overcoming the barriers.

EArchways - Exhibit A-Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire DejDartment of Health and Human Services

. Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs
for Individuals with ODD

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure Individuals who are'seeking to enter the workforce, for
which they are eligible, are enrolled in other services and supports that aid
individuals in recovery, as appropriate, including, but not limited to:

2.7.1. The Community Development Finance Authority Recovery Friendly
Workplace Initiative Program Development Pilot.

2.7.2.' The NH Departnient of Labor National Health Emergency Demonstration
grant for individuals in recovery.

2.7.3. The Governor's Recovery Friendly Workforce Initiative. •

2.7.4. NH Works.
I

2.7.5. NH Employment Security.

2.8. The Contractor shall collaborate with local, higher educational and vocational training
. Institutions to provide individuals with vocational training and educational opportunities

.  in the treatment and/or recovery service setting. The Contractor shall:

2.8.1. Conduct a comprehensive vocational assessment, to ■ determine an'
individual's skill level, | strengths, and readiness to seek and enter the
workforce: ,

2.8.2. Ensure a process that is person-centered and based on individual choice
and self-determination;

2.8.3. Utilize the vocational assessment combined with'the client's input to design
a vocational plan of action;

-  . I
2.8.4. Link individuals to the appropriate level of sen/ices and resources, which

must include, but are not limited to:

2.8.4.1; Resume writing.

2.8.4.2-. Job application writing.

2.8.4.3. Improving client-interviewing skills.

2:8.5. . Conduct Motivational Inten/lewing to increase individuals' willingness and
readiness to.seek education or employment opportunities. /'

2.9. The Contractor shall utilize the 0*NET OnLine career exploration and job analysis,
and the NH Employment Security website to assist participants with:

.,2.9.1. - PJahning career goals;

2.9.2. Choosing a training path; and
•5 . . • i

2.9.3., Searching for a new career. -

2.10. The Contractor shall ensure individuals are assessed for and receive, as appropriate:

2.10.1. Financial assistance for'transportation to classes;

2.10.2. Educational supplies, including but not limited to textbooks, as necessary;
and" ■ ' '

2.10.3. Access to computers anb support for electronic job search functions.
—0>

Archways Exhibit A--Amendment #4 Contractor initiats ^

!  8/30/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs
for Individuals with OUD 1

Exhibit A Amendment #4

2.11. The Contractor shall develop an employment plan for each participant that addresses
■ previous barriers to employment, including but not limited to:

2.11.1. Poor job history. i
•  I

2.T1.2. Substance use disorder impacting performance.

2.11.3. Criminal background. ' . ^
i

2.12. The Contractor shall provide individuals with external employment resources and
assist with gaining access to employment through activities that include, but are not
limited to: j *
2.12.1. Providing transportation assistance to job.fairs.

2.12.2. Providing opportunities |to meet with job coaches.
2.12.3. Providing individuals with job-shadowing and internship opportunities.

2.'13. The Contractor shall ensure individuals seeking vocational training or career
development education are provided resources that support the goals, including but-
not limited to: |
2.13.1. Training and class stipends.

2.13.2. Financial'aid and grant applications.
I

2.13.3. Program application submission assistance.

2.14. The Contractor shall coordinate with the Recovery Friendly V/orkforce Initiative to offer
opportunities for local businessesjto engage with potential employees in recovery as
a means to: j
2.14.1. Reduce stigma: !

2.14.2. Identify employment ofiportunilies; and

2.14.3. Increase the number of businesses identifying as Recovery Friendly.

2.15. The Contractor shall build on existing relationships with the local community and
employers as well as conduct outreach to additional employers.

2.16. The Contractor shall develop a jcommunity outreach plan utilizing the Recovery
Friendly Workforce Initiative materials and processes, and submit the plan to the
Department within sixty (60) days of the Effective Date of this Amendment #4.

i
2.17. The Contractor shall provide qualified staff to provide the services-in this Agreement,

which must include, but is not limited to, a designated program lead, who possess the
expertise and knowledge to provide vocational training to individuals of special target
populations who experience barrieVs to employment.

2.18. The Contractor shall utilize Single Stop USA to determine if an individual is eligible for:

2.18.1. . The Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP);

2.18.2. Women, Infants, and Children (WIC) program;

2.18.3. Earned Income Tax Credit (EITC) and/or Child Care Tax Credit (CTC);

2.18.4. Health insurance; and/br
!

2.18.5. Low Income Energy Assistance.
H

Archways - Exhibit A-Amendment #4 Contractor Initials,

I  8/30/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs
for Individuals with OUD

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

3. Reporting |

3.1. The Contractor shall submit monthly data requirement reports to the Department on
the fifteenth (15lh) working day of the following month In a format approved by the
Department for programs indudlrig, but not limited to:

3.1.1. Number and type of recruitment activities for individuals with an
OUD/StimUD. ,i \ :

3.1.2. Number of individuals)in the program with demographics' such as age,
gender, race, and ethnicity.

3.1.3. Vocational services provided per individual.

3.1.4. Start date of employment per individual.

3.1.5. Type of position per individual.

3.1.6. Name of employers perj individual.
3.1.7. Length of employment per individual.

3.1.8. Number of employers recruited per month.

3.1.9. . Types of supports provided to employers to recruit, hire, and retain.
■  individuals in recovery per month.

3.1.10. Any/all .exceptions of individuals not attending the 'training programs-
provided.

3.2.

3.3.

The Contractor shall report all, if
available training programs..

any, exceptions for individuals who do not attend

The Contractor shall prepare and submit ad hoc data reports, respond to periodic
surveys, and other data collectionjrequests as deemed necessary by the Department
and/or Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA).

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure ninety percent (90%) of individuals in the program, who
have not attained gainful employrrient. complete provided training programs.

4.1.1. The Contractor shall report all. if any, exceptions for individuals who do not
attend available training programs.

4.2. The- Contractor shall ensure seventy-five percent (75%) of- individuals gain
:  employment. . j
4.3.. The Contractor shall ensure contact and coordination with one hundred percent

(100%) of Recovery Friendly Workforce Initiative employers. j,

4.4. the Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to enhance contract management,
improve results, and adjust program delivery and policy based on successful outcomes.

5. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant' Standards
5.1. The Contractor shall establish formal information sharing and referral agreements with

the Doorways in cgmpliance with all applicable confidentiality laws, including 42 CFR
Part 2 in order to receive payments for services funded with SOR resources.

5.2. The Contractor shall ensure all referrals of individuals to the Doorways are:

Archways

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A04

Exhibit A - Amendment #4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs
for Individuals with OUD | '

Exhibit A!-Amendment #4

4.2.1. Completed and documented in the individual's file; and .

4.2.2. Available to the Department as requested and as needed for payment of
invoices for services provided through SOR-funded initiatives.

5.3: The Contractor shall ensure individuals receiving services, rendered from SOR funds,
have a documented history or current diagnoses of (OUD/StimUD) or are at risk for
such.

5.4. The Contractor shall coordinate Completion of Government Performance Results Act
■  (GPRA) initial interview and associated follow-ups at six (6) months and discharge for

individuals referenced previously. |
5.5. The Contractor shall ensure that SOR grant funds are not used to purchase, prescribe,

or provide cannabis, or to providing treatment using cannabis. The Contractor shall
ensure: j
5.5.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of CUD/ StimUD.

j  .

5.5.2. Grant funds are not provided to any individual who or organization that
■  provides or permits cannabis use for the purposes of treating substance
.  use or mental health disorders; and

5.5.3. This cannabis restriction applies to all subcontracts and Memorandums of-
Understanding that receive SOR funding.

5.6. The Contractor shall ensure Natoxone kits are available to individuals, utilizing SOR
funding. |

5.7. If the Contractor intends to distribute test strips, the Contractor shall provide a test strip
utilization plan to the Department for approval prior to implementation. The Contractor
shall ensure the utilization plan includes, but is not limited to:

•  "5.7.1. Internal policies for the distribution of test strips;

5.7.2. Distribution methods a|nd frequency; and
4.7.3 Other key data as requested by the Department.

5.8. ' The Contractor shall provide services as referenced In Section 2 to eligible individuals
who:

5.8.1. 'Receive (MOUD) services from other providers, including the individual's
primary care provider;

5.8.2. ' ■ ".Have co-occurring mental health disorders; or
5.8.3. Are on medications and are taking those medicatiohs as prescribed

regardless of the class! of medication.
5.9. The Contractor shall ensure individuals who refuse to consent to information sharing■with the Doorways do not receive jservices utilizing SOR funding.
5.10. The Contractor shall ensure Individuals who rescind consent to information sharing

with the Doorways do not receive. 'any additional services utilizing SOR funding.
I

•• 5.11. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department and other SOR funded
Contractors, as requested and idirected by the Department, to improve GPRA
collection. /—os

.  ■ [M
Archways Exhibit A r Ameridment #4 Contractor Initials ^ ■ ■■■
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness and Vpcatlonal Training Programs
for Individuals with ODD

-  . Exhibit A-Amendment #4

5,12. The Contractor shall comply with all appropriate Department, State of NH, Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), and other Federal
terms, conditions, and requirements, and as amended, and shall collaborate with the
Department to understand the aforesaid.

Archways
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Comploto one budgtt form for each budget period.'

Contractor Name: Archways

■ BudQOt RoQUOSt for. Worlrforco Readiness & Vocational Progams for
Individuals wHh

BixdgelPetlod SFY24-(September 29, 2023-Juno 30, 2024) ^

Indirect Cost Rate (If appllcabte)-5.7% across twth budget periods for entire amendment total

.. "l - 1
Lino Item • •

Program Cost >

Funded by DHHS

Program Cost -
Contractor Stiare/

Match

TOTAL Progr^am'
Cost

1. Salary & Wages

$45,000 SO $0

2. Frinqe Benefits 'i $10,500 SO SO

3. Consultants ' SI 5.604 SO $0

4. Equipment SO SO so

S.fai SuDolies • Educational 1 S3.141 $0 so

5.(b) SuDOlles' Lab 1 $0 $0 so

S.fcl SuDDlies - Pharmacv . 1 $0 $0 so

S.fd) SuDf^s - Medical 1 SO $0 so

5.(e) SuDDlies Office 1 $5,400 $0 so

6. Travel 1 $1,200 $0 $0

7. Software 1 SO SO so

8. fa) Other>Mar1(etinq/Communlcat>ons . 1 - . $2,700 ■. - $0 so

8. (b) Other - Education and Trainlnq 1 $0 SO so
8. (c) Other - Other (Diease soecifv) ' 1
Parlicipant Needs, concrete needs, pailiclpent transports i $2,645 $0 $0
Occuoencv 1 $3,900 $0 $0

0/rier (oleose specify) ' SO so .  so

Other (please specify) .1 $0 SO so

9. Subcontracts \ SO so so

Total Direct Costs $30,090 so -  $90,090

•r

Total Indirect Costs $7,410 so $7,410

1 TOTAL $97,500 $0 $97,500

Pago 2 of 2

Contracia tnlUals
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services '

Completo onv budgot^^fofm for oach budget period.
Contractor Name: ̂ '■chways

.1 Quda9\ R6<iMSt for: Workforce Readiness & Vocational Progams for
Individuals with

Budget Period SFyaS-^Ju/y t, 2024-Sepfembcr 29, 2W4;
indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 6%

V  • ' * • *S. '
'  " • LIne.ltem .

Program Cost
' Funded by OHHS

Program Cost-
Contractor Share/

rvtatch

TOTAL Program'
Cost '

1. Salsfy&Waaes
S15.000 $0 $15,000

2. Fringe Benefits 1 53,500 $0 $3,500

3. Consultants 1 $4,200 $0 $4,200

4. Equipment •' i 50 $0 $0
1

S.(a) SuDi^ies • Educational 1 . $1,047 $0 $1,047

S.fb) SupDiies - Lab ' 1 $0 SO $0

5.(c) Suooties - Pharmacy ' - i • $0 SO SO

5.(d) SuDpiies • Medical 1 • 50 SO $0
S.fel SuDOlies Office' i $1,800 $0 S1.800

6. Travel 1 $755 $0 $755

7, Software i $0 $0 $0

6. fa) Other - Marketino/Communicatlons' l i $1,000 :$0 $1,000
8. (b) Other - Education and Training 1 $245 $0 S245

8. (c) Other - Other (please specify) " 1 r
Other (please soeciM: Occupancy 1 $1,900 $0 •' $1,900

Other (please specify): Client Funds 1 $1,300 $0 $1,300
Other (please specify) • 1 $0 SO ;  $0
Other (please specify) vi $0 SO $0

9. Subcontracts 1 $0 . $0 $0

Total Direct Costs $30,747 $0 $30,747

Totallndlrcct Costs $1,753 SO $1,753

I TOTAL $32,500 $0 $32,500

Page 2 oi 2

Conlractor IniUals

8/30/2023
Date ■ ■
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Director

STATE OF NEW HAWPSHfRE
I

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DtVISIONFOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH
I

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH OWOl

603.271.9544 I.600-S52.334S EiL 9544

Foi:603-27MJ32 TDD Acceti: i.ftOO.735'2964 «nrw.dhh>.nh.(or

October 11. 2022

8

His Excellency," Governor.Christopher'T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New HampBhire 03301

.  . " REQUESTED ACTION
1  - • • •

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, to
enter Into Retroactive, Sole Source amendments to existing contracts with the Contractors listed
below to continue providing Woricforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for individuals
with opioid and/or sllmularit use disorder, by Increasing the total price limitation by $316,000 from
$648,936 to $1,164,936 and by extending the completion dates from September 29. 2022 to
September 29! 2023. effective retroactive to September 29, 2022 upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The Individual contracts were .approved by Governor and Council as specified in the table
below.

Contractor

Name

Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Arnount
1

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

G&C

Approval

Archways
(FKA: Greater

Tilton Area

Family
Resource
Center)

297434-

R001

Greater Tilton
Area

"

^351,063 $130,000 $481,063

0:08/14/19

.(Item 010)

A1:02/17/21

(Item #20)

A2:10/13/21

(Item 035)

Granite

Pathways.
Concord NH

228900-

BOOI
Statewide

•  •!

W97,873 $1.86,000 $683,873

0; 09/18/19
(Item 019)

A1:02/17/21

.{Item 020)

A2:10/13/21

(Item 035)

Total: $848,936
1

$316,000 $1,164,936

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are anticipated
to'be available in State Fiscal Year 2024. upon the availability and continued appropriation of furuls
in the future operating budget, with the authority jto adjust budget line items within the price limitation
and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the.Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.
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• His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honoreble Council

Peg8 2of2

EXPLANATION

This re<)uest is Retroactive because the Department was notified by the Federal awarding
agency on September'23, 2022 of the availability of funding beyond the current contract completion
date of September 29, 2022. Due to the delayed notification from the Federal awarding agency, the
Department was unable to present this request to the Oovemor and Council prior to the contract
expiring. ' .

This request Is Sole Source because Ithe Department Is seeking to extend the contract
beyond the completion dates and there ere no renewal options available. Due to the limited
timeframe between the Ending notification from the Federal awarding agency and the contract
expiration date, the Department was not able to re-procure for these services. Any delays or gaps
in sorvioe provision may result in reduced or loss of access to services and supports for Individuals
in need of these critical services.

. The purpose of this request is for the Cor^actors to continue providing vocational training
supports and workforce readiness programs for individuals with opioid artd/or stimulant use disorders
who are.in treatment and recovery settings and who are seekir^ to join and/qr ro-jotn the workforce.
In coordination with the Recovery Friendly Workplace Initiative, which empowers workplaces to
provide support for people recovering from substance use disorder, services provided through the
contracts support Individuals In attaining gainful|empIoyment, which is a critical aspect of continued
recovery. j

Approximately 400 Individuals will be served from September 29, 2022 to September 29,
2023. ' j

The Contractors will continue integrating workforce readiness prograrhming into treatment
and recovery settings, including creating vocational profiles in order to determine an iridividual's .skill
level, strengths, and readiness to gain employment. The Contractors will continue linking Individuals
to appropriate vocational trainings by providing training stipends and other resources that assist the
individuals on the path to employment. Vocational tminlng includes providing assistance with resume
writing, completing Job applications, and Improving interviewing skills.

The Department will continue to monitor services through the review of data reports and
periodic surveys.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, Individuals in recovery
seeking a better quality of life end employment opportunities would have limited options. Workforce
parliclpatlon and consistent employment are criiical components of an individual's ability to remain
in recovery and meaningfully participate in their communities.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance LIs ing Number #93.788, FAIN #H79TI085759

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program..

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commis&oner .

Tiie Oeporimtnt of Heolih and Human Struicei'Mission is loJoineammunitiesandfomiUn
in providing opportnniiits /or atiuiii to och'itvs heotlh and indtptndente.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

OS-92'92-920S10-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT.
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES. SOR GRANT
100% Federal Funds

'.Vendor Nam Archways Vendor #297434

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Ciass Title

1
Job Number Current Amount

Increase

fOecreasel
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services i 92057040 570.081.00 SO.OO $70,081.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services i 92057040 $27,748.00 $0.00 $27,748.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Servlcos ! 92057046 $29,234.00 SD.OO $29,234.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services I 920S7048 $66,667.00 $0.00 $66,667.00
2022 .102-500731 Contracts for Program Sendees i 02057048 $33,333.00 $0.00 $33,333.00
2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Assl'snd Rel 1 92057048 $93,000.00 $0.00 $93,000.00

2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rol i 92057048 $31,000.00 $0.00 $31,000.00

2023 074-500589 Welfare Assislance 1 92057058 $0.00 S97.500.00 $97,500.00

2024 074-500569 Welfare Assislance 1 92057058 $0.00 $32,500.00 $32,500.00
.. Sub Total 1 $351,063.00 $130,000.00 $481,063.00

Vendor Nam

^  1
Granite Pathways '! • ' V 1 Vendor # 228900

If

Stale Fbcal

Year
Class/Account Class T(Uo Job Number Current Amount

Increase

fOecrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 1 92057040 $72,683.00 $0.00 $72,683.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 1 92057040 $45,338.00 SO.OO $45,338.00
2021 102-500731. Conlrads for Progrem Services i 92057046 $43,652.00 $0.00 $43,052.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services i 92057048' $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proflram Services 1 92057048 $50,000.00 SO.OO $50,000.00

2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rei 1 92057048 $139,500.00 $0.00 $139,500.00
2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rei , 1 92057048 $46,500:00 $0.00 $46,500.00

.2023 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 1 92057058 . $0.00 $139,500.00 $139,500.00

2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 1 92057058 $0.00 $46,500.00 $46,500.00

Sub Total 1 $497,873.00 $186,000,00 $683,873.00

-
Overall Total $848,936.00 $316,000.00 $1,164,936.00

r.---

1

Ky-.

Governor and Courtcil letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Pajelofl
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHDO:
I

DEPARTMENT OP HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
I

DtVISiOfi FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH
I  .

I29PLBASANTSTRECT.C0NC0RD.NH 03301 '
6Ci-V\-9U4 l-80D«S2-334SExl9M4

Pai: 603-271-4332 TDD Actm: 1-800-735-3964 «n»w.dhbi.ob.8ov

September 3, 2021

His Excetiency, Governor Christopher T. Suminu
end the Honoreble Council '

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 0330t

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Depaftment of Health and Human Services. DMslon for Behavioral Health,
to amend existing contracts with the vendors listed below to continue providing Worlcfprce
Readrnesa and Vocelionel Training Programs for Individuals with ppioid and/or Stimulant Use
Disorder, by exercising renewal options by increasing the total price limitation by $310,000 from
$536,930 to $648,936 end by extending the completion dates from September 29. 2021 to
Scptemtwr 28.2022 effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The individual contracts were approv|ed t>y Governor and Councii as specified in the table
below.

VofNior Namo Vendor

Coda

Area Served Current

Amount

Increaso

(Decrease)
Ravtood

Amount

G&C

Approval

Greater TUlon

Area Family
Resource

Center,
TillorUNH

297434-
R001

u

Greater litron

Area
$227,063

!

$124,000 $351,063

0: 06/14/19

Item 010

A1;02/17/21-

ltemO20

GrsNle
Pathways,
Concord/NH

226900-

B001
Stat^de $311,873 $188,000 $497,673

0; 09/16/19
Item 018

A1:02/17/21

Item tf20

Total: 1538,936 S310.000 $846,936

Funds ere available In the following accounts for State Fiscat Years 2022 and 2023, with
the authority to adjust budget line Items within the price limitation and encumbrances betweenstate ftscal years through the Budget Office, jif need^ and justified.

See attached fiscal detalle.

EXPLANATION
I

The purpose of this request is to have the Contractors continue to provide vocational
training supports and worWorce'readiness programs for Individuals with Oplold and/or Stimulant
Use Disorders who are tn treatment and recovery settings and who are seeking to join and/or re-

7h€ Dtporlmtnt^/ HnUh and Human StrUou'Misijon Utajol'n cammuniiia and (omitiu
inprauidini opporlunUitt fv cittnna to ocftUiM htallh end indtpenaenet.
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Hie Exoetlertcy. Governor Chrttt^iher T. Sununu
' end the Honoreble Council
Page 2 of 2

1

Join the workforce. Serviced provided through the contracts support (ndivtduals In attaining gainful
smployment, which Is a crfiicdl aspect of continued sobriety.

.  . Approximately 200 Individuals wiU t>e served from September 30. 2021 to .September 29.
2022. . . I

The Contractors will continue Integrating woddoroe readiness programming Into treatment
and recovery cettings, Including creating vocational profiles in order to determlns an Individual's
skill level, strengths, and readiness to gain, employment. The Contractors will continue linking
Individuals to eppro^ate vocationa) trainings by prpvldrng tralnlrtg stipends end other resources
that assist the individuals on the path to emf^oyment. Vocational training may Iriclude. but Is not
limited to. providing assistance with resume writing, completing Job applications, and Improving
interviewing skills.

The Department will continue monit^ng contracted services by revlewtrig monthly and
quarterty reports, submitted by the Contractors end monitor the foltbwlng performanoe measures:

• Ensuring ninsty percent (90%) of individuals oomplete provided trslnlng programs.

• Ensuring seventy-frve percant|(75%) of Individuals gain employment.
•  Ensuring contact and coordih^ion wHh one hundred percent (100%) of Recovery

Friendly Workforce Inltiatrve employers.

As referenoed in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Conlrect Language, Paragraph 2.
Renewal of the originel oontracts, the pafties| hsve the option to extend the agreements for up to
two (2) eddlt/onal years, oontlngent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties end Governor end.Cduncll approval. The Department is exercising its
option to renew services for Dne (1) year of the one (1) available yeer remaining.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize .this request, individuals in recovery
seeking a better quality of life and Employment opportunities would have limited'options,
Wohdorce participation and consistent employment are critical components of an Indiyiduare
ability to remain In recovery and meaningfully participate in their communities.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: Assistance Listing (S93.788. FAIN dH70TIO83326.

In the event that the Federal Funds t^oome no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Loh A. Shiblnette
Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FlSCiu. DETAILS SHEET

OM2-e2-B2091P-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT. HNS:
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 0(V, BUREAU OF ORUC AND ALCOHOL SERVICES. 80R CRANT

100% Federal Fund! I

Vendor Nemo Oreeier TUton Aree Family Resotrce Center' | Vendor e 297434 .

Sold PIscel

Year
Class/Adoouni ClasiTltte 1 Job Number Current Amount

mcroase

(Oecreasal
Revised Amount

'2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 570.081.00 50.00 570.081.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proaram Services 92057040 . 527.748.00 50.00 527.748.00
2021 102300731 Contracts for Proomm Services 0205704Q 529.234.00 50.00 529.234.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proorem Services B20S704S $88,667.00 SO.OO 588.687.00
2022 ■  102-500731 Contracts for P/ooram Sarvloes B2057048 $33,333.00 -  50.00 533.333.00
2022 074-500585 Qrants for Pub Assi and Rel 02057048 10 00 S03.OOC.OO 593.000.00
2023 074-500585 Grents for Pub Asst end Rel 9205704B 50.00 .531,000.00 531.000.00

. Sub Torar Sii7ee3.oo Si24.0M.0O $397,083.00

(Vendor Name Oranlte Pathways Vendor 8 228900

Sute Fiscal

Year
Oats/Account 'Qass TIDe Job Number Curroni Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 ■ CorMrscts (or Propram Services 92057040 572.883.00 50.00 $72,683.00
2021 102-500731 Conbacb (or Program Scrvtcos 92057040 545.338.00 50.00 545.338.00
2021 102-500731 contracts (or Proeram Services' . 92057046 543.852.00 50.00 $43,852.00
2021 . 102-500731 Contracts (or Program Services - 92057048 5100.000.00 50.00 fl00.000.00
2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proorom Servlcas 92057048 550.000.00 50.00 550.000.00

2022 074-900585 Grants for Pub Assi and Rel 92057048 SO.OO 5136.500.00 5139.500.00

2023 ■ 074-500585 Grona for Pub Asst end Rel - 92057048 SO.OO 546.500.00 548.500.00
Sub TottI 1 S3M.673.00 1768.000.00 5497,673.00

r"

Overall Total 5538.936.00 5310.000.00 5846.936.00

Governor artd Council letter AlUcKment

FIrunclal Oetill

Page 1 ol 1
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jSTATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
I

D/y/S/.O/V FOR BEHA VtORAL HEALTH.
I

l» PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, Ml 03MI .
lT00^1>))45eti.9S44

F«i;60>>77U3]2 TDDAaesi: I-SOO-13V2M4 www4htu.nb.|0v

Oec«mb«r 3. 2020

His Excellency, Govefmor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Council

Stale House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTEO ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health end Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health;
to Retroactively amend existir^ contracts with the vendors listed below to continue'providing
Workforce Readiness and Vocalioha) Training Programs for individuals with Opioid Use Disorder,
by exercising renewal options by increasing the total price limitation by $204,962 from
$333,974.48 (Q $536,936.48 end by extending the completion dates from September 29.2020 to
September 29. 2021 effective retroactive' to September 29. 2020 upor> Governor end Council
epprovel. 100% Federal Funds. J-

' The individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as specified In the table
below. ■ , I
Vendor Nsmp Vendor'

Code

Area Served Current

- Amount

Ineroaoe •

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

G&C

■ Approval

Greater Tinon

Area Family
Resource'
Center.

TilldnlNH

297434.

R001

Greater TSton

Area
<138.740 $88,323 $227,063

t''

p: 08/14/19,
Item 010 '

Grenlte

Polhwsys,
Concord/NH

228900-

B001
Statewide $195,234.43 $116,639 $311,873.48

0: 09/18/19.
Item 019

• Total; ' $333,974.48 $204,962 1538.936.48

Funds ore available In the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021. and are
enlicipaled to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022. upon the availability and continued
eppropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation end encurnbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office.
If needed end justiried.

See attached fiscal details. ''

Th% D<ponmtr\i9jUtQl\}i bni Humen Sifvieti'MUtiCA U ibjolA <9nmimtit$'on4/emlliit
i'a pnvidint opfiofluniiitifo' tiliunt Jo ec^Uif heel/A oiui indtptndtftet..
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Hli ExoeDenqr. Oovemor' CM|tOf)her T. Summi
; en^ (te HonoreUe CouacD
'Pe9e2ef3

g^PMNATIPN
ThiB requesi Ib RBtroactlve becau6a| BuffldBnt funds tn Sjste Fiscal Year 2021 not

available (n the operating budget conBiderlng the grant amount awarded, and due to delay by the
SubBtanoa Abuse and Mental Health Services Administrstion (SAMHSA) In epprovlr^ New
HampehifB'B requeatB for continued State Opioid Response Grant funding, the efforts to add the

. state appropriations were deferred. ]
The purpeoe of this request is to continue to provide vocetion&l training ei4)port« ertd

workforce reedineoe progremo for ir>dfviduo}Q!wfth Opioid Use Oisordors wtto are in treatment aind
recovery eettinigs and wtio ere eeeking to joiri ond/or rejoin the workforoe. Employment has long
been recogriized as a oriticat'olemont in ihej recovery proceso, providing people wtth hope er>d
opportunity to move forward in the recovery prooess determined by principles of eetf-
determination. {

Approximately 100 Individuals will be served from Sept6mber-29. 2020 to September 29,
2021. ■

This vendors will continue integrating workforce, reedineu progremming Into treatmerrt
and recovery settings, Inciuding creating vocjsiionai profiles In order to determine an IndMdual'a
ekiil level, etrengths, and reedineBS to gain ̂ ployment. The vendors will link ttie Individual to
appropriate vocallone) trointnge ivtth the provision of t/atnlhg etlpands and other resources to aid
the Indtvlduei on the path to employment. Vocational training may Include, but is not limited to.
oBSistance wtth resume writing, completing jpb appllcalions. and Improving Intervlowtng ekillB.

Unique to these services is a robust level of diem-spednc date that wili be available, which
wOl be collected In coordination wtth the Reg'lonal Doorways. The State Opioid Responae grant
rSquiras that eD Indtyiduals served receive e comprehensive assessment at several time Intervals,
specifically at Intake, aix <6) months after intske, and upon discharge. Through codeboratrve
agreements with the vendors under these contracts.-tho Regional Doorways gather data on dientr
related outcomes including; recoveiv etalus, criminol JustJoe involvement, employment, end
housing needs at the time Intervals listed above. The data collected enables the Department to
measure short end long-term outcomes esso^ated Slate Opioid Response-funded Initiatives
and to determine ivhich programs are generetlng the best results foMhe diente served.

The Department viriil monitor contracted aervloes using the following performance
measures:

•  The Conlrectors will ensure ninety percent (90%) of Indivlduels complete provided
training prograrns.

The Contrectors will ensure
employment.

seventy-frve percent (76%) of Indivlduatd gain

As referenced In Exhibit C-1. Revisions to Stenderd Contract Lenguage, Paragraph 2.
Renewal of the orfginai contracts, the parties hsve the option to extend the egreementa for.up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon s^isfactory delivery of services, availsbte funding,
egrearnant of the parties end Governor end Council fipproyal. The Deparlmant Is exercising hs
option to renew services for one (1) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor end Executlvo jcouncll not euthorlze this request, Indtvlduals In
recovery eeeking e beRer quality of life and employment opportunities would have limited options.
Worldorce participation and conslsteni employment are crttical components of en IndividuaVa
ability to remain In recovery and meaningfully participate in their communities.
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HH Exoeflpftcy. Odvemor OuWopher T. Sununu
end the KonomM CounoO '

Page 3 et 3

r3''

Ared served; Sialewlde.

■  Source of Funde; CFDA #$3,768, FAIN #n081685 end FAIN #T1083326.

In the event that the Federei Funds become no longer aveilabie. General Funds will not
be requeued to support this program. {

Respectfully eubmitted.

Loft A. Shiblnette

Commlseioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

COWMUNrrv MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS

'  ' SFY 20Vl FINANCUL DETAIL

0S4 Vn-Pmift'rDtf health and social SERVICeS. health and human SVCS DEPT Of HKS;
BEHAV10RAL HEALTH QIV Of BUREAUOf ORUO S ALCOHCR. SERVICES/STATE OPIOIO

response CRAKT I .
10M FAdN^tfune* CfCA flUIS FAIN HTIT10S1U9 end K7inOIUM

Gttut TBwn futt fAmPr RetourcA Ctnit/. TUwVNH i v««Mpr §
SiMtfbCA)

•  Y<t>
CIau/Acboiiu CiMtTkSA jcolNunMt Cvnent Amount tncrtMA (OAC/WM) RavHaO Anwuni

2PK I02/S00331 C«Vr»eti Am ̂ ooram SaoAcai 92097040 9no.»92 1940.911) 970.08)

202) t02/M0321 C WACti toi Praonm S«rHGAt 970S7040 937,7*8 90 927,748

2021 t02/9003>i COAVAca le* Pnarmn ScMeA*- em/or* SO 939.»4 939.31*

'  1021 C«Mr«eii Iv SA'vlcAt 020S704I so 9M.M3 9«6,6«7

>03] 202/900332 Corttrkcu la P«eo<wn SctAcai e3o$'b«» so 9>S.3» 911.113
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STATE OP NEW HXMP$HtR£

DEPARTMENT OP H CALTK AND HUMAN SERVICES

DjyjsioNrofiBeHA vjoral health
!  • .

119 PCCA$A^TSTA£tT, CO.NCORD. NM
.ioyilinu I4004S})M3C|19S44

rM;«0V)?l-4)Jl TOOAcccu: I400.11S.1M4 Ww.4bb».Ab:(ev

July 23. 2019'

His Eiccllency. Governor Christopher T. Si/nuoy
anid the Honorable Council

Stale Hoi/sa.
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION
I  . • •

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division For eehavoria) Heeiih, to enter into
egreement with Greater Tiiton Araa Family Resource Center (Vendor O 297434-ROOI). S Prospect St
■TtRon. NH 03276^ in en amount not to exceed $136.740, to provide WorKtorce Readiness and Vocaticfnai
Training/Programs for Individuals with Opioid Use Disorder. efTecUve upon date of Governor and Council
approval, through September 26, 2020.. .100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Nemo
Vendor'

.- Number
!  Location
1 ^ V

Contract Amount

Greater Titlon Area
Family Resource Center 397434.Ra01 5 Prospect St.

TiUon. NH 03276
$138,740

•  .

i-.. J  . Total;
1

' -.v- 1138.740

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in tho foliowtng account fol Slate
Fiscal Years 2020 end 2021 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds In the future
operating budget.'with authority to adjust amounts wHhin the price limitation end adjust-ancumbrancesbetween State Fiscal Years through (he Budget pfTce, H needed end justlfiecl.

0S-9S-92.92061O-70dO HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV, BUREAU OF DRUG ft ALCOHOL SERVICES. STATE
CPIOlO RESPONSE GRANT .

State Fiscal
Year

Cloao/Accouni ciiat Title Job Number Total Amount .

■  ,2020 102-500731 . Cont,facts for Prog Svc.. 62057040. $110,692

.2021 102-500731 > Conijracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $27,748

■ Total: ■$138,740

Z;

V, -• "• {i
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Hit EioeOency. Governor Chrfslopher T. Sumtnu
BftD me Kcnorefate CouicO
PefleS'oD

'  EXf^UNATlON
I  ' ■

. The pu/pose of this request is for the design and implementation of vocational training supports
and wodiforce ■readiness programs for individuais Mth Opioid Use Disorders in treatment and recovery
settinQs nvtto ere seeking to join and/or re-join (he workforce. -Employment has long been recognized as
a critical etemeni in the recovery process, prov^ing people with hp^ and opportunity to move forward
in the recovery process that is determined by prir^ciptec of self-determination.

This request represents one (i) of two'(2) anticipated contracts to provide vocatlortai ireirUng
supports and wo^orca readiness programs. . The Department anticipates awarding one (1) more
contract at the next avaitabtp Governor and Executive Council meeting, upon recaipi of the futiy executed
contract documents.

The Stale of New Hampshire received funding through (ho Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration (SAMHSA) State Opioid Response (SORj grant opporturtily. New Hampshire
will use evidence-based methods to expand ireatment. recovery, and prevention services to Individuats
with buD in NH. These critical funds will strengthen established programs (hat have had a positive Impact
on the opioid crisis as wen as .expand the cafuclty for programs that have shown promise, in he|ping
individuals tattling an opioid misuse issue er)d stem (he tide of the addiction epidemic in NH. In 2017.
NH had 466 opioid-related deaths. 2.774 emergency neloxone (Narcan) administratior^s. end 6.664
emergency deparlment opioid related visits. NH is ranked, as having (he third highest overdose rate in
the counlry.a! 39 indryiduals'per 100.000 population The scope of work was developed, in part, through
a public comment forum which ideniined gaps in the system aimed at workforce training opportuniiles for
individuals with QUO. The services prodded through these funds should leverage resources and
Vacilitate connections with the multiple workforce inilialives tor individuals with SUD/OUD that have
emerged over the past two years, including the Governor's Recovery Friendly Workplace Program end
the Oepanment of Labor Nationdl Health Emergency Demonstration gram for Individuals in recovery,
provided under the Workforce Innovation arid Oppoduruty Act of 2014.

This agreement will require (he vendor to integrate workforce-readiness programming into
treatment and recovery settings, including c/eat'^g vocatioriat profiles in order to determine an indlvlduafs
skill level, strengths, and readiness to gain emptoymeni. The vendor wili.link (he individual to appropriate
vocational trainings withi the provision of training stipends and other resources to aid the individuat on the
path to employment. Vocational (raining rnay include, but is rwl limited to assistance with resume %vriting,
job epplicalions. and improving intervievinng skills. .

Unique to these services is 8 robust level of clienl-specific date that will be available, which virill
be collected In coordination with the Regional Hubs that were approved by Governor end Executive
Council at the October 3i. 2016 meeting. The'sOR grant requirea that ail individuals.served receive a
comprehensive assessment at several tim.e intervals, epecincaiiy at intake, .six (6) months and upon
discharge. Through collaborative agreements vnth the vendor under this contract, the Regional Hubs wilt
be responsible for gathering data on dienl-relaied outcomes indudir^g; recovery status, chmlnal justice
invptvement. employment.*and hc^sing needs at (he time inletvals listed above. This data will enable the
Department to measure short and long-ierm outcorhos associated wiih SOR-funded initiatives and to
determine which programs are generating the best results for the clients served.

Approximately one hundred (100) individuals will be served from Governor and Executive Council
epp.roval through September 29.2020. ' . i ' ' '

This vendor was selected (or this projoct through a competitive bid process. A Request for
Proposals was posted on The Department of Heatlh and Human Services' web site from November IS.
2016 through Oecennber 13, 2018. In addition, a notice was sent by email to a wide vartety of

- stakeholders and potential vendors. The Deparlment received (our (4) proposals. The proposals were
reviewed and scored by a ledm of individuals with program spedftc knowledge. The review included a

1- .
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Hl« Etoeflency. GovoTior Chnetopher T. Svnvnu
end (lie Konorette CovncO
Page 3 of 3

Summary is ettached. !

As retera.nced In the Request for Proposeis and in Exhibil C-1 of this contract; this. Agreement
rias the option to extend for up to two (2) acfdiiionel years, contingent upon setisfectory'deliyery of
services, available funding, agreement of (ha parties end approval of (he Governor end Coundi..

Should the Covernor and Executive Council not euthorize this reouest. individuals in recovery
seeking a better quality of Bfe end employment opportunities-would heve limited options. Workforce
penicipaiiqn end <onsistent employment ere critical components of an individual's ability to remain in
recovery and meaningfully participdie In their communiiies.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Substance Abuse end Mental Health services
Administration. State Opioid Response Grant, (CFOA 093.768, FAIN TI08166S)

In the event that the Federal (or Other) Funds become no longer available. General Funds will
rvoi-be requested to support this program.- i ,

Respectfully submitied.

Jffrcy A.Meyers
Commissioner

TTv Diperlw^tt »f HreUken^Huwtcit Snukii Up'm rMi«uA>rw»
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #5

This Amendment to the Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with
Opiold and/or Stimulant Use Disorder contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Granite Pathways ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 18, 2019 (Item #19), as amended on February 17, 2021 (Item #20), as amended on October
13, 2021 (Item #35), as amended on November 2. 2022 (Item #18), and as amended on September 20,
2023 (Item #42), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified;, and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2025

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,009,373 .

3. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #4, Scope of Services; Section 2.23.3 to read:

2.23.3. Prior or current criminal justice involvement. .

4. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #4, Scope of Services: by adding Section 2.29, to read:

2.29. The Contractor shall meet with the Department within 60 business days of the contract
effective date to review contract deliverables, grant guideline, and implementation of
services.

5. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #4, Scope of Sen/ices; by adding Section 2.30, to read:

2.30. The Contractor shall utilize the Department's closed loop referral solution, and if
applicable, the admission, discharge, and transfer solution (referred to collectively as the
NH Care Connections Network) for referrals between health and/or human service
providers within New Hampshire as the option for referral rrianagement and care
connections. Utilization includes inputting information and data as necessary into the
Department's NH Care Connections Network to facilitate referrals to participating
providers, signing any required Network Participation Agreement,.and obtaining a
participant specific consent for services, including, as required by 42 CFR Part 2.31
identifying all uses and disclosures of the individual's Part 2 record or information by the
NHCCN.

2.30.1. The Department's contracts for the NH Care Connections Network incorporate all
the costs of developing and maintaining the standards based interface from which
the Contractor may choose to configure their systems to communicate securely
with the Department's NH Care Connections Network solutions. The Contractor
may opt to interface with the Department's closed loop referral solution, and if
applicable, the admission, discharge, and transfer solution utilizing a Smart on
FHIR or HL-7 standard interface process to connect individuals to health and
social service providers. The costs for the Contractor's system or team

Granite Pathways A-S-1.3 . Contractor Initials
11/19/2024

RFP.2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-01-A05 Page 1 of 8 Date
v7.12.23
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develop or utilize the standard Smart of FHIR or HL-7 based interface are the
sole responsibility of the Contractor.

6. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #4, Scope of Services; Section 4, to read:

4. Reporting

4.1. The Contractor shall provide the Department with client-level, non-identifiable data that
supports contract deliverables. The Contractor shall ensure client-level, non-identifiable

.  data excludes information allowing the individual to be identified or constructively identified.
Constructively identified, means that by using the information provided and what is
reasonably and predictably available to a predictable recipient of the information the
individual could be identified. The Contractor shall provide non-identified data from which
there is no reasonable basis to believe that the data used alone or in combination with

other reasonably available information, could be used to identify an individual who is a
subject of the information.

4.2. The Contractor shall ensure compliance with 42 CFR Part 2 and confidentiality consent,
notices, and requirements, as applicable to any data collected or reported.

4.3. The Contractor shall collect data on services provided through this Agreement to ensure
progress towards program gpals and deliverables. The Contractor shall ensure data
includes, but is not limited to:

4.3.1. Number and type of recruitment activities for individuals with an OUD/StimUD.

4.3.2. Number of individuals in the program with demographics such as age, gender, race

and ethnicity.

4.3.3. Vocational services provided per individual.

4.3.4. Start date of employment per individual.

4.3.5. Type of position per individual.
I

4.3.6. Name of employers per Individual. •

4.3.7. Length of employment per individual.

4.3.8. Number of employers recruited per month.

4.3.9. Types of supports provided to employers to recruit, hire, and retain individuals in
recovery per month.

4.3.10. Any/all exceptions of individuals not attending the training programs provided.

4.4. the Contractor shall report all, if any, exceptions for individuals who do not attend available
training programs.

4.5. The Contractor shall submit monthly reports to the Department, on the 15th working day of
the following month, in a format and via a secure method approved by the Department,
inclusive of the Department-approved Closed Loop Referral platform, as applicable. The
Contractor shall ensure reports include client-level, de-identified data Identified above.

4.6. The Contractor shall report on required data points specific to the SOR grant, as Identified
by SAMHSA over the grant period.

4.7. The Contractor may be required to prepare and submit ad hoc data reports, respond to
periodic surveys, and other data collection requests as deemed necessary by the
Department or SAMHSA including PH."

4.8. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the Department
— OS

Granite Pathways A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
^  11/19/2(124
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•  in a format specified by the Department.

7. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #4, Scope of Services: Section 5, to read:

5. Government Performance Results Act

5.1. The Contractor shall administer or coordinate the administration of Govemment

Performance Results Act (GPRA) of 1993 and the GPRA Modernization Act of 2010 Initial
interview and associated follow-ups at six (6) months and discharge for all individuals
receiving program services.

5.2. The Contractor shall provide individuals served with clear guidance about the uses and
disclosures of the information provided to complete the GPRA. and the use and disclosure
of the Part 2 information or other PHI required in order to complete the GPRA. The
Contractor shall also provide staff training regarding the confidentiality of the identifiable
information included in the GPRA.

5.3. The Contractor shall provide or coordinate ongoing follow-up and support of individuals
engaged in services until a discharge GPRA interview is completed. The Contractor shall
ensure:

5.3.1. Staff confirms a confidential means of communicating with each individual engaged
in services to provide or coordinate ongoing follow up and support;

5.3.2. Contact with each individual is attempted during a time when the individual
would normally be available. Contact shall be made in person, by telephone,
or by an alternative method approved by the Department, according to the
following guidelines:

5.3.2.1. If the first contact • attempt is not successful, a second contact
attempt shall be made no sooner than two (2) business days and
no later than three (3) business days after the first attempt; and

~  . ' 5.3.2.2. If the second contact attempt is not successful, a third contact
atterhpt shall be made no sooner than two (2) business days and
no later than three (3) business days after the second attempt;

5.3.3. Each successful contact shall include, but not be limited to:

5.3.3.1. Inquiring on the status of each individual's recovery and
experience with their external service provider;

5.3.3.2. Identifying individual needs;

5.3.3.3. Assisting the individual with addressing identified needs; and

5.3.3.4. Providing early intervention to individuals who. have resumed use;

5.3.4. When the follow-up identified above, results in a determination that the
individual is at risk of self-harm, the Contractor shall proceed in alignment
with their crisis response policy and procedure; and

5.3.5. All efforts of contact are clearly documented in the individual's electronic
health record, or in a format approved by the Department, and are available
to the Department upon request.

5.4. The Contractor shall ensure the GPRA interviews are attempted at the following
intervals:

5.4.1. At the time of intake or no later than seven (7) calendar days after intake;

5.4.2. Five (5) to eight (8) months post intake. The window for this interview opens

Granite Pathways A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
11/19/20121
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five (5) months after the intake interview; and

5.4.3. Upon discharge from the initially referred service.

5.5. The Contractor shall ensure completed GPRA data is entered into the Department-
approved system, at a minimum of the following intervals:

5.5.1. At the time of intake or no later than seven (7) calendar days after the GPRA
interview is conducted;

5.5.2. Five (5) to eight (8) months post intake; and

5.5.3. Upon discharge from the initially referred service.

5.6. The Contractor shall document any loss of contact with participants in the
Department-approved system using the appropriate process and protocols as,
defined by SAMHSA and through technical .assistance provided under the SOR
grant.

5.7. The Contractor shall ensure contingency management strategies are utilized to
increase participant engagement in follow-up GPRA interviews. Contingency
management strategies may include, but are not limited to, gift cards provided to
individuals for follovy.-up participation at each follow-up interview. The Contractor
shall ensure gift cards: •

5.7.1. Do not exceed $30 in value, in accordance with federal guidelines, set forth
by SAMHSA; and

5.7:2. Are used solely to incentivize GPRA interview completion and not used to
incentivize participation in treatment.

8. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #4, Scope of Sen/ices; Section 6, to read:

6. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

6.1. The Contractor shall ensure they, and any provider which referrals are made to:

6.1.1. Only provide and/or prescribe medications for Opioid Use Disorder (OUD), as
clinically appropriate, that are approved by the Food and Drug Administration;

6.1.2. Only provide medical withdrawal management services to individuals supported by
SOR grant funds if the withdrawal management services are accompanied by the
use of injectable extended-release naltrexone, as clinically appropriate;

6.1.3. Ensure staff trained in Presumptive Eligibility for Medicaid are available to assist
individuals with public or private health insurance enrollment; and

6.1.4. Comply with 42 CFR Part 2 as applicable and related to any referrals and provider
services.

6.2. The Contractor shall ensure individuals receiving services, rendered from SOR funds, have
a documented history or current diagnoses of Opioid Use Disorder or Stimulant Use
Disorders (OUD/StimUD) or are at risk for such.

6.3. The Contractor shall ensure that SOR grant funds are.not used to purchase, prescribe, or
provide cannabis or for providing treatment using cannabis. The Contractor shall ensure:

6.3.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of OUD/StimUD;

6.3.2. Grant funds are not provided to any individual or organization that provides or
permits cannabis use for the purposes of treating substance use or mental health
disorders; and

6.3.3. This cannabis restriction applies to all subcontracts and Memora

Granite Pathways .A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
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Understanding that receive SOR funding.

6.4. The Contractor shad utilize SOR funding, as needed, to ensure Naloxone kits are available
to individuals receiving sen/ices through this Agreement.

6.4.1. If the Contractor intends to distribute test strips, the Contractor shall provide a test
strip utilization plan to the Department for approval prior to implementation. The
Contractor shall ensure the utilization plan includes, but is not limited to:

6.4.1.1. Internal policies for the distribution of test strips;

6.4.1.2. Distribution methods and frequency; and

6.4.1.3. Other key data as requested by the Department.

6.4.2. The Contractor shall provide services to eligible individuals who:

6.4.2.1. Receive MOUD services from other providers, including the individual's
primary care provider;

6.4.2.2. Have co-occurring substance use and mental health disorders; or

6.4.2.3. Are on medications and are taking those medications as prescribed
regardless of the class of medication.

6.5. The Contractor shall ensure individuals who refuse to consent to information sharing with
the Doorways do not receive services utilizing SOR funding.

6.6. The Contractor shall ensure individuals who rescind consent to information sharing with
the Doorways do not receive any additional services utilizing SOR funding.

6.7. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department and other SOR funded vendors, as
requested and directed by the Department, to improve GPRA collection.

6.8. The Contractor shall comply with all appropriate Department, State of NH, SAMHSA, and
other Federal terms, conditions, and requirements.

9. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, to
read:

1. This Agreement is funded by 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, by.
the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration (SAMHSA), Assisted Listing Number (ALN) 93.788, as awarded on:

1.1. 09/30/2018, FAIN H79TI081685

1.2. 09/30/2020, FAIN H79TI083326

1.3. 08/09/2021, FAIN H79TI083326

1.4. 09/23/2022, FAIN H79TI085759

1.5. 09/01/2023, FAIN H79TI085759; and

1.6. 09/24/2024, H79TI087843.

10. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, to
read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit B-1 Budget through Exhibit B-12, Amendment #5, SOR IV Budget. ,

11. Modify Exhibit 8, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5.1.3.,
-08

Granite Pathways A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
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to read:

5.1.3. Invoices shall not include unallowable expenses, as referenced below:

5.1.3.1. SOR IV. Notice of Funding Opportunity, page 31: FY 2022 State Opioid
Response Grants (smhsa.gov); and

5.1.3.2. SAMHSA's Standards for Financial Management and Standard Funding
Restrictions, page 36: FY 2024 Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration (SAMHSA) Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) Application
Guide.

12. Add Exhibit B-12, Amendment #5, SOR IV Budget, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

Granite Pathways A-S-1.3 Contractorlnitials
^  11/19/2077
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective retroactive to September 30, 2024, upon
Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health arid Human Services

11/20/2024

^DocuSlgn**) by:

lUtfA S.
—^ cowwMMOoy*?.-.

Date Name:

Title. Director

Granite Pathways

-DocuStgiwd by:

11/19/2024

Date Name:

Title: General Counsel

Granite Pathways A-S-1.3

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-01-A05 Page 7 of 8
V. 7.12.23
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-DocuSigntd by:f  L>ocu»*gnto by:

11/20/2024.

Date Name: Robyn cuar-lno
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ■ ^ (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Granite Pathways A-S-1.3

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-01-A05 Page 8 of 8
-V. 7.12.23
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Exhibit B-12, Amendment #5, SOR IV Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Granite Pathways

Budget Request for:

Workforce Readiness & Vocational Programs for Individuals with Opioid '
and/or Stimulant Use Disorder

Budget Period SFY25 (9/30/2024 - 6/30/2025)

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable)0.1528

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $80,050

2. Fringe Benefits $27,235'

3. Consultants $1,125

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs

per 2 CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. ,! • ' , $0
5.(a) Supplies • Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d} Supplies - Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $150

6. Travel $0'

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications $250

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $200

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $109,010

Total Indirect Costs $30,490

TOTAL $139,500

Contractor Initials:

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-W0RKFO1 -AOS Date:
11/19/2024
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Sccrctar>' of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby'certify that GRANITE PATHWAYS is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to iransaet business in New Hampshire on May 08, 2009. 1 further certify that all' fees

and documents required by the Secretaiy of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID; 613581

Certificate Number: 0006296051

o

Hi

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this I4ih day of August A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Sccreiar>' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Nick Brattan hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. I am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Granite Pathvvavs
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on 11/9 2024. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Kenneth Brezenoff ^ ^ (may list more than'
one person)

(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Granite Pathwavs to enter into contracts or
agreements with the State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the.
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached.. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation In contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein. /—sign«<jby;

natedll/9/2024 I
u'aicu. . \i .. aoia">iii8ftiiir7<cr

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Nick Brattan

Title: Board Chair

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORD^ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

10/01/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder fn lieu of such endorsement(8).

PRODUCER

USI Insurance Services LLC

333 Westchester Ave, Suite 102

White Plains, NY 10604

914 459-6200

Faith Keegan

r^N'o.E;ti: 914 459-6200 r«c.Not: 610 537-4220

ADDRESS; Faith.Kee9an@USi.COm '
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC«

INSURER A: Berkshire Hathaway Specialty ins Co. 22276

INSURED

Granite Pathways, Inc.

633 3rd Avenue, 6th Floor

New York. NY 10017-6943

INSURER B: HHnois Union insurance Company 27960

INSURER c: Technology insurance Company, inc. 42376

INSURER D:

INSURER E :

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER; REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS-

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADOLSUBR

VWP POLICY NUMBER
POUCY EFF

(MM/DOYYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DOrrYYY) UMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILfTY

E I X| OCCUR
47SPK25564209 D9/30/2024 09/30/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE s1.000.000

CLAIMS-MAC sl.OOO.OOO

MED EXP (Any one person) S25.000

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY Sl.OOO.OOO

GENl AGGREGATE LIMfT APPLIES PER; GENERAL AGGREGATE s3,000,000

POLICY 1 1 JECT j 1 LOC
OTHER:

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG s3.000.000

s

A

A

AUTOMOBILE UABILfTY 47RWS14808210

All Other States

47SMA14808010

MA Only

[)9/30/2024

39/30/2024

09/30/2025

09/30/2025

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
IFa acridnml sl.OOO.OOO

X ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) s

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SC
Al
HEDULEO
rros
)N-OWNED

fTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) s

X X
NC
Al

Pf^PERTY DAMAGE
(Per ecddentl

s

s

A

B

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS UAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

47SUM14808310

XFLG47492075001

39/30/2024

39/30/2024

09/30/2025

09/30/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE s10.000.000

AGGREGATE slO.OOD.OOO

DED X RETENTIONSlO.OOO See Below sExces $5M/$5M

C WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' UABILITY y , ̂
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 1 1
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N
(Msndatory In NH) ' '
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

Nf A

TWC4360732 12/08/2023 12/08/2024
V PER OTH-
A RTATIITF FR

E.L EACH ACCIDENT sl.OOO.OOO

E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E.L DISEASE ■ POLICY LIMIT s1.000.000

A

A

Professional Llab

Sexual Abus/Moles

47SPK25564209

47SPK25564209

39/30/2024

39/30/2024

09/30/2025

09/30/2025

$1M Per Occ / $3M Agg

$1MPerOcc/$3MAgg

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Romailu Schedule, may be attached If more space Is required)

** Excess Liability Information **

Carrier 8 - Illinois Union Insurance Company - Policy # XFLG47492075001

Eff Date: 09/30/2024 Exp Date: 09/30/2025

Excess Liability Each Occ Limit; $5,000,000

(See Attached Descriptions)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New

Hampshire,Department of Health

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DEUVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord, NH 03301

1

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of 2
#S464g0780/M46460788

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
SAPZR
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DESCRIPTIONS (Continued from Page 1)

Excess Liability Aggregate Limit: $5,000,000

Evidence of Insurance

SAGITTA 25.3 (2016/03) 2 of 2

#S46490780/M46460788



/)

a membar.of THE FEDCAP GROUP

Granite Pathways Mission
Granite Pathways creates opportunities for individuals and families to achieve

health and socioeconomic well-being, through a holistic approach.
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BHANT THORNTON UR

757 Third Ave.. 9(h Door

NewYorlt. NY 10017-2013

O *1 2125990100

F  *1 212 370 4520

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Directors

The FEOCAP Group

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The liEDCAP Group
(collectively, "FEDCAP"), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial
position as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, and the related consolidated statements
of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial posjtion of FEDCAP as of September 30, 2023 and
2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audits of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with

auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAS).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further descrit>ed in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of FEDCAP and to meet our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of matter
As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, as of October 1,

2022, FEDCAP adopted FASB ASC 842, Leases. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

GT.COM Gram Thornton LLP is the U.S. member firm o( Grant Thornton IntMnational LIB (GTIL). GTIL and each of its member firms
are separata tegal erviiies end are not a worldwide partnership.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management Is required to
evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about FEDCAP's ability to continue as a going concern for one
year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement; whether due to

fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a

substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of FEDCAP's internai
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about FEDCAP's ability to continue as
a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit
findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary ihformation
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements as a whole. The accompanying supplementary information is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
consolidated financial statements. Such supplementary information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures.
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These additional procedures included comparing and reconciling the information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements

themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with US GAAS. In our
opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

New York, New York

February 15, 2024



The FEDCAP Group

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of September 30,

2023 2022

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable (net of allovrance for doubtful accounts of

approximately $4,129,000 in 2023 and $3,241,000 in 2022)
Current portion of contributed space receivable
Contributions and grants receivable (net of allowance for

uncollectible cpntributions of approximately $250,000)
Inventories, net

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Total current assets

Investments

Property, plant and equipment, net
Operating lease right-of-use assets

Contributed space receivable, net
Beneficial interest in trusts

Other assets

Goodwill, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenues

Advances from government agency
Current portion of finance lease liabilities

Current portion of operating lease liabilities
Current portion of notes payable

Total current liabilities

Notes payable, net
Revolving loans
Finance lease liabilities, net

Operating lease liabilities, net

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Contingencies

Net assets

\AAihout donor restrictions

V\Athout donor restrictions - non-controlling interest

V^th donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

$  25,187,907

59,466,388

,  2,772,958

2,819,540
323,810

10,755,454

$  55,878,023

48,355,344

1,179,787
415,327

11,828,688

101,326,057 117,657,369

10,626,090 9,006,936

144.677,742 126,130,025
88,970,362 .

42,972,530 -

4,735,763 4,398,082

999,332 994,564

144,000 251,669

$ 394,451,876 S 258,438,647

$  42,855,716 $  45,905,077

10,646,471 12,901,051

40,206 564,276

1,259,819 532,198

9,866,603 -

1,214,654 1,181,142

65,883,469 61,083,744

23,680,632 24731,624

29,312,466 25,893,587

78,499,317 78,523,502

82,228,115 -

16,293,459 19,922,198

297,897,458 210,154,655

40,444,915 36,895,261

649,513 2,406,738

55,459,990 8,981,993

96,554,418 48,283,992

$ 394,451,876 $ 258,438,647

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

For the years ended September 30,

2023 2022

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions Total

Without Donor

Restrictions'

With Donor

Restrictions Total

Operating Revenues
Contract services and products
Rehabilitation and vocational programs
in-kind contribution

Contribution and grant revenues
Gain on Paycheck Protection Program loan forgiveness
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments
Interest income

Miscellaneous rewnue

Net assets released from restrictions

$ 124.736,448

227.694.192

6.657,739

1.124.306

500.329

1.515,601

3.249,208

$

48.617,672

954.554

151.477

3.502

(3.249,208)

S 124.736.448

227.694.192

48.617.672

7.611293

1.275.783

503,831

1.515.601

$ -117,491.258

223.896,100

11,070,378

10,718,192

(3,592,359)
770.513

1.037,731

669.536

$

200.000

47.221

(669.536)

S 117.491.258

223.896.100

11,270,378

10,718,192

(3,545.138)

770.513

1,037,731

Total operating revenues 365.477.823 46.477,997 411.955,820 362.061,349 (422.315) 361,639,034

Operating Expenses
Program services

Contract services and products
Rehabilitation and vocational programs

106.875.813

200.937.265

• .  106.875,813

200.937,265

102.095,694

190,882,531

. 102.095.694

190.882.531

307.813.078 • 307.813,078 292.978,225 . 292.978.225

Supporting services
Management and general
Development

51,993,670

3,035.092
-

51.993,670

3.035,092

60.400.583

4.631.342
- 60.400.583

4.631.342

55,028.762
-

55.028.762 65.031.925 - 65.031.925

Total operating expenses 362,841.840 . 362.841.840 358.010.150 358.010.150

Change in net assets from operations 2,635.983 46,477.997 49.113.980 4.051.199 (422,315) 3,628,884

Nonoperatirig Activities

Foreign ex^ange transaction (losses) gains . (843.554) (843.554) 1.110.528 1,110,528

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,792.429 46,477.997 48.270,426 5,161.727 ,  (422,315) 4,739,412

Net assets at beginning of period 39.301.999 8,981.993 48.283.992 34.140.272 9.404,308 43.544.580

Net assets at end of period $  41,094.428 $  55,459.990 $  96.554,418 S  39.301.999 S  8,981,993 $  48.283,992

The accompanying notes are an. integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Th» FEDCAP Group

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the yoar onded Soptambtr 30,2023

Supporting Sorvicw
Contract Kehabilitation and

Services and Vocational Management
Products Programs Total and General

e
•

1
0

1
a

-Total Total Expenses

Salaries and related expenses S  81.120.996 5  96.426.600 $  177.547,596 $  14.663.616 S  1.222.119 S 15.885.735 S 193,433,331
Professional fees 338.249 37.401.955 37.740.204 4.077.379 920.235 4.997,614 42.737.818
Professional development and evaluation ' 12.693 2.575.302 2.587,995 918.358 120 918,476 3.506.473
Materials and supplies 4.442.057 5.281.230 9.723.287 . 8,642 8,642 9.731.929

Commissions 2.797.847 9.451 2,807.298 . . . 2.807.298
Telephone 117.759 844.106 961,865 684.816 3,697 688,513 1,650.378
Postage and shipping 138.716 41.594 180,310 283.570 11,060 294,630 474,940
Insurance 1.695.570 1.491.054 3,186,624 1.422.314 29.980 1.452,294 4,638.918
Occupancy costs 1.551.787 23.694.514 25.246,301 6.976.357 95.202 7,071,559 32,317.860
Equipment rental and mainlenance 974.306 380.858 1,355,164 96.521 44.827 141,348 ■ 1,496,512
Equipment purchases 239.225 186.472 425.697 17.643 626 18,269 443.966
CVenl transportation and travel 515.604 2.593.122 3,108.728 1.133.413 182.859 1,316,272 4.424.998
Subscription and printing 113.325 364.007 477.332 1.135.598 24,978 1.160,576 1.637.908
Technology 236.438 2.072.990 2,309.428 5.594.378 41.245 5.635.623 7.945.051
Interest expense 31.473 48.232 79.705 4.965.331 . 4.965.331 5.045.036
Bank charges and processing fees 77.100 488,004 565.104 694.239 37,612 731,851 1.296.955
Bad debt provision - 1.281,700 1.281.700 • . . 1.281.700
SutKontractor expense 12.172.307 16.821,605 28.993.912 2.801,514 329 2.861.843 31.855.755

Stipends 46,637 4,667,406 4.714.043 479.235 31.851 511,086 5.225.129
Security guard expense 21.195 288.664 309.859 21,440 516 21,956 331.815
Other 49.283 2,315,506 2.364,789 1.435,855 367.072 1.802.927 4.167,716

Total expenses before depredation and amortization 106,692,567 199,274,372 305.966.939 47,461,577 3.022.970 50.484.547 356.451.466

Depredation and amortization 163,246 1,662,893 1,846,139 4,532,093 12.122 4,544,215 6.390.354

Total expenses S  106.875,813 S  200,937.265 i 307.813.078 S  51,993,670 $  3.035.092 $ 55,028.762 % 362.841.840

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.



The FEOCAP Group

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For th« y««f ended September 30, 2022

Supportinfl Servlcee
contract Kehabilitation and

fServices and Vocational Management

Products Programs ToUl and General Development Total Total Expenses

Salaries and related expenses $  76.509.229 S  95.122,196 S  171,631.425 S  18,180,981 S  2,940.633 S 21.121.814 $ 192.753.239
Professional fees 223,699 28.844,344 20,068.043 6,722,419 657.885 7,380.304 36.446.347
Professional development and evaluation 10.942 1.036,603 1.047.545 1.349,267 1.552 1.350.819 2.396.364
Materials and supplies 3.373.321 3.616.965 7.190.286 1.175,784 11.088 1,186.870 8.377.156
Commissions 2.791.910 11.328 2.803,238 48,149 . 48.149 2.851.387
Telephone 164.753 1.043.759 1.208.512 1.215,075 4.723 1.219.798 2.426.310
Postage and shipping 144,814 136.560 281.374 188,409 5.385 193.794 475.166
Insurance •  1.621,293 1.483.263 3.104.556 5,573,972 44.463 5.618.435 8.722.991
Occupancy costs 1.481.728 14.884.466 16.366.196 5.451,989 137.566 5.589.555 21.955.751
Equipment rental and mantenance 959.072 474,310 1.433.382 ■  272,156 "  37.441 309.597 1.742.979
Equipment purchases 302,142 116.336 418.480 201,200 23 201.223 619.703
Client transportation and travel 402.105- 1.473,493 1.675,598 579.821 57.345 637.168 2.512.764
Subscription and printing 19.565 103,308 122,873 1,171,618 71.094 1.242.712 1.365.585
Technology 293,901 2.116.872 2.410,773 4.686,157 27.408 4.713.565 7.124.338
Interest expense 2.959 36.336 . 39,295 3,886,229 . 3.886.229 3,925.524
Bank charges artd processing fees 92.732 164,669 257,401 987,729 55.616 1.043.345 1,300.746
Bad debt provision • 2.598.778 2,596.778 - . •  . 2.598.778
Subcontractor expense 13.445,481 25.948,302 39,393.783 2,192,097 (977) 2,191.120 41,584,903
Stipends ' 147,646 6,580,676 6.728.522 476,327 .  994 •  477.321 7.205,843
Security guard expense 11,600 262,857 274,457 14,530- 614 15.144 269,601
Other . 4.021,874 4,021.874 - 569.780 569.780 4.591,654

■Total expenses before depredation and amortization 101.998,692 190,277,499 292.278.391 54.373,909 4.622.831 58.996.740 351.273,131

Depredation and amordzation 96,602 605,032 701,834 6,026,674 8.511 6.035.185 6.737.019

Total expenses $  102,095.694 S  190,682,531 S 292,978,225 S  60,400,563 S  4,631.342 $ 65.031.925 $ 358.010.150

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.



The FEOCAP Group

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended September 30,

Supplemental disclosures of noncash financing activities:

Operating lease light-of-use assets obtained in exchange for lease liabiliUes

Finance lease right-of-use assets obtained in exchartge for lease liabilities

2023 2022

Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets $  48,270,426 S 4.739,412
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash (used in) provided by
operaUng activities:

Depreciation and amortization 6,282,685 6,230,114
Amortization of goodwill 107,669 506,905
Bad debt provision 1,281.700 2,598,778
Realized and unrealized losses (gains) on investments (1,275,783) 3,545,138
Contributed space (45,745,488) .

Lease amortization 4,877,060 .

Paycheck Protection Plan loan forgiveness . (10,718,192)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (12,392,744)' 6,409,739
Contribution receivable (1,639,753) 788,896
Inventories 91,517 48,935 .
Prepaid expenses and other assets 1,068,666 (2,974,588)
Beneficiai interest in remainder trust (337,681) 174,664
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (3,049,361) 8,908,322
Deferred revenue (2,254.580) 1,068,568
Other liabilities (1.628.739) 2,549,122

Net cash (used In) provided by operating activities (6,344,406) 23,875,813

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investments (343,369) (641.436)
Capital expenditures (24,830,402) (6,653,430)

Net cash used In investing activities (25,173,771) (7,294,866)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Decrease in advances from government agencies (524,070) (185,150)
Change in revolving loans 3,418,879 (2,279,474)
Proceeds from Paycheck Protection Plan notes payable . 537,005
Repayment of Paycheck Protection Plan notes payable . (103,754)
Repayment of notes payable ■ (1,017,480) (1,056,495)
Repayment of finance lease ot>ligations (1,049,268) (597,695)

Net cash provided by (used in) finaricing activities 828,061 (3,685,563)

(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (30,690,116) 12,895,384

Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year 55,878,023 42,982,639

End of year $  25,187,907 $ 55,878.023

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment through finance leases $  1,193,084 $ 43,909,705

Cash Interest paid during the period ' $  5,045,036 $ 2,443,534

S  52,158,869

$ 576.592

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

The FEDCAP Group, Inc. (the "Parent"), established on October 1.2018, is a private, nonprofit organization
Incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware. The Parent Is exempt from federal income taxes
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code ("IRC"). The Parent or its subsidiaries are the sole
member of the following affiliates: Redcap, Inc ("Fed Inc."), Fedcap Rehabilitation Services, Inc ("FRS"),
Fedcap Investment Corporation ("Fed Inv"), Fedcap VR Technologies LLC ("Fed VR"), Wildcat Services
Corporation ("Wildcat"), ReServe Elder Services, Inc. ("ReServe"), Community Workshops, Inc. ("CWS"),
Easter Seals New York, Inc. ("ESNY"), Granite Pathways, Inc ("GP"), Easter Seals Rhode Island, Inc
("ESRI"), Seacoast Pathways, Inc. ("Seacoast"), Single Stop USA Inc. ("SGST"), Benevolent, MVLE, Easter
Seals Central Texas ("ESCT"), Easter Seals North Texas ("ESNT"), Easter Seals Mississippi, Inc.
("ESMS"), Easter Seals South Dakota, Inc. ("ESSD"), Easter Seals Oklahoma, Inc. ("ESOK"), Fedcap Apex
Technical School Inc, Civic Hall Labs, Inc, New York Tech Alliance ("NYTA"), Fedcap Canada, These Our
Treasures, Inc. ("TOTS"), Fedcap UK, Kennedy Scott. Limited ("KS"), Fedcap Employment Limited ("FED"),
Fedcap Employment Scotland Limited ("FES"), and Start Scotland Limited ("SS"). The Parent and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as "FEDCAP,"

FRS is a private, nonprofit organization incorporated under the laws of New York State. FRS is exempt
from federal income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the IRC.

FRS was founded to provide a comprehensive range of vocational and reliated services to individuals with
disabilities, and other work-related disadvantages, who face significant barriers to employment. FRS's goal
Is to help each person achieve independence, integration into the community and full participation in the
economic mainstream.

FRS provides contract services and products within custodial, homecare, office services, and industrial
divisions. The primary customers in these divisions are federal, arid New York State and City agencies and
certified home health agencies.

As part of FRS's rehabilitation and vocation programs. FRS provides vocational evaluations, training, and
employment services and other government-funded employment and job search programs. Evaluations
combine aptitude tests, computerized assessments, and vocational counseling. After evaluation, FRS
offers training in mail clerk/messenger services, building/custodial services, culinary arts/food services,
data entry, office skills, document imaging, hospitality operations, and security operations. FRS then seeks
to employ individuals who have successfully completed FRS's rehabilitation and vocational programs. FRS
also offers the Chelton Loft, a voluntary clubhouse program for people with a history of serious mental
illness. FRS also has a vocational education program and a licensed mental health program.

Wildcat is a nonprofit entity that is located in New York City and. provides employment training, jobs
placement and "supportive employment" opportunities for individuals with barriers to employment.

ReServe is a nonprofit entity located in New York City that matches continuing professionals age 55+ with
organizations that need their expertise. ReServe provides direct services, administrative support, and
capacity-building.expertise in schools, social service agencies, cultural institutions, and public agencies!

CWS is a nonprofit corporation located in Boston, Massachusetts, whose mission is to help people who
have barriers to work obtain employment and achieve greater self-sufficiency through job training,
placement, and support services.

ESNY is a nonprofit entity whose purpose is to provide programs and services for people with disabilities,
assistance to people with disabilities and their families, assistance to communities in developing necessary
and appropriate resources for residents, and a climate of acceptance for people with disabilities which will
enable them to contribute to the well-being of the community.

11



The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2023 and 2022

ESNY is the sole member of TOTS, a nonprofit entity whose purpose is to educate young children with
developmental disabilities in an atmosphere that embraces and accommodates individual differences and
helps children to achieve in the context of the larger classroom and school setting.

GP is a nonprofit entity whose mission is to provide services to empower and support adults with mental
illness to pursue their personal goals through education, employment, stable housing, and meaningful
relationships.

ESRI is a nonprofit entity whose purpose is to provide services to ensure that all people with disabilities or
special needs and their.families have equal opportunities to live, learn, work and play in their communities.

Seacoast is a nonprofit entity whose mission is to support adults living with mental illness on their paths to
recovery through the work-ordered day.

SGST is a nonprofit entity that provides coordinated services to holistlcally connect people to the resources
they need to attain higher education, obtain good jobs, and achieve financial self-sufficiency.

Benevolent is a nonprofit entity that provides economic wellbeing to individuals and families in need,
through non-government sources.

MVLE is a nonprofit entity that provides employment, support and rehabilitation services to individuals with
disabilities in the Northern Virginia and Washington, D.C. area.

Fed Inc. was established as a private, nonprofit organizations under the .laws of the State of Delaware. Fed
Inc. was formed to provide workforce development opportunities for people who face barriers to econornic
well-being.

ESCT provides services to individuals with disabilities throughout the life cycle through outpatient medical
rehabilitation, workforce development and community housing and integration programs in the Central
Texas region.

ESNT provides services to.individuals with disabilities throughout the life cycle through outpatient medical
rehabilitation, workforce development and community housing and integration programs in the North Texas
region.

Fedcap UK was established and was registered as a UK Charity. Fedcap UK was founded to allow for the
advancement of social inclusion, by enabling economic independence, employment and opportunity to
participate in society for socially and economically disadvantaged and disabled individuals through various
workforce and economic development, educational and occupational health initiatives.

Fedcap UK acquired KS, a United Kingdom company. KS provides high quality job support, placement,
retention and related services to people in the United Kingdom.

FED was established under the laws of the United Kingdom. FED delivers employability solutions across
the United Kingdom to build communities through a blend of local frontline professional teams and like-
minded supply chain partners. Fedcap UK is the sole corporate member of FED.

FES was established under the laws of Scotland in the United Kingdom. FES delivers employability.
solutions across Scotland to build communities through a blend of local frontline professional teams and
like-minded supply chain partners. Fedcap UK is the sole corporate member of FES.

FES is the majority shareholder and the Lennox Partnership is the minority shareholder with 49% interest
in of SS. SS is a value-driven organization that strives to put its customers first, understanding their needs
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2023 and 2022

and closely engaging with them on a personal level to help them on their journey to employment and
training.

Fedcap Apex Acquisition LLC is a nonprofit entity that runs Apex technical School ("Apex"), which is an
adult vocational technical school and offers seven certificate courses designed to focus on basic trade skills
and labor skills for its students. The operations of Fedcap Apex Acquisition LLC were transitioned into a
newly created not for profit organization • Fedcap Apex Technical School, Inc. - during fiscal year 2023.

Fedcap Canada was established as a not-for-profit organization according to the Canada Not-for-Profit
Corporations Act. Fedcap Canada was founded to advance the economic and social well-being of the
impoverished and disadvantaged by providing educational services, vocational rehabilitation, job training
and job placement services.

Civic Hall Labs, Inc., Is a not-for-profit entity that provides a learning and collaboration platform focused on
advanced technology and problem-solving for the public good.

Civic Hall Labs, Inc. is the sole member of NYTA, an organization that supports the technology community
and ecosystems in their hometown, with the goal of creating the most diverse, equitable and accessible
tech ecosystems in the world.

ESMS, a Mississippi non-profit corporation, is an organization providing services to children and adults with
disabilities or other special needs and their families.

ESSD, a South Dakota non-profit corporation, is an organization to help children and adults with disabilities
or other special needs and their families and caregivers re'ach their maximum capabilities and secure
opportunities for their education, training, and employment..

ESOK, an Oklahoma non-profit corporation, is an organization to provide services to ensure that all people
with disabilities or special needs and their families have equal opportunities to live, learn, work, and play in
their communities.

Fed Inv, a Delaware non-profit corporation, is a community development financial institution founded to
serve economically distressed communities by providing credit, capital, and financial services that are often
unavailable from mainstream financial institutions.

Fed VR, a joint venture between Fedcap, Inc. (as the majority shareholder) and UP360 US Holdings
Corporation (minority shareholder with 49% interest), and provides virtual reality software, know-how and
product development services for workforce training, development, and education.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of FEDCAP have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP") using the accrual
basis of accounting. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2023 and 2022

FEDCAP classifies its net assets in the following categories:

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions

Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations and are, therefore, available for the general
operations of FEDCAP. Net assets without donor restrictions may also be designated for specific purposes,
by REDCAP'S Board of Directors or may be limited by legal requirements or contractual agreements with
outside parties.

Net assets without donor restrictions also includes the portion of net assets in a consolidated subsidiary
owned by non-controlling investors and-are reflected on the consolidated statements of financial position
as net assets without donor restrictions - non-controlling interests.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Represent net assets which are subject to donor-imposed restrictions whose use is restricted by time and/or
purpose. Net assets with donor restrictions are subject to donor-imposed restrictions that require FEDCAP
to use or expend the gifts as specified, based on purpose or passage of time. When donor restrictions
expire, that is, when a purpose restriction is fulfilled or a time restriction ends, such net assets are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported on the consolidated statements of activities
as net assets released from restrictions.

Contributions with donor-imposed restrictions whose restrictions are met during the same fiscal year In
which the contribution was recognized are presented as contribution revenues without donor restrictions
on the consolidated statements of activities.

Net assets with donor restrictions also includes the corpus of gifts, which must be maintained in perpetuity,
but allow for the expenditure of net investment income and gains earned on the corpus for either specified
or unspecified purposes in accordance with donor stipulations.

Changes in net assets without donor restrictions and the non-controlling interests in SS and Fed VR during
the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022 is summarized below:

Total Without

Donor

Restrictions

Without Donor

Restrictions

Non-controlling
Interest

Balance, September 30, 2021 $ 34,140,272 $  33,166,395 $  973,877

Change in net assets from operations
Change in net assets from nonoperating

activities

4,051,199

1,110,528

2,618,338

1,110,528

1,432,861

Balance, September 30, 2022 39,301.999 36,895,261 2,406,738

Reclassification

Change in net assets from operations
Change in net assets from nonoperating

activities

2,635,983

(843,554)

1,902,661
2,490,547

(843,554)

(1,902,661)
■ 145,436

Balance, September 30, 2023 $ 41,094,428 $ 40,444.915 $  649,513
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2023 and 2022

Measure of Operations

The accompanying consolidated statements of activities report changes in net assets by operating and non-
operating activities. Operating activities principally include all revenues and expenses that relate to
FEDCAP's programs and supporting activities.

Non-operating activities include foreign currency exchange gains and losses and other items considered to
be incidental to operations or non-recurring in nature.

Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

FEDCAP considers ail highly liquid debt Instruments with a maturity of three months or less at the date of
purchase, including investments in short-term certificates of deposit and certain money market funds, to be
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents on the accompanying consolidated statements of financial
position includes cash that is restricted under borrowing or other contractual arrangements amounting to
$3,824,255 and $2,500,000 as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Revenue Recognition

In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC")
Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers ("ASC 606"), FEDCAP recognizes revenue when
control of the promised goods or services are transferred to FEDCAP's clients or outside parties in an
amount that reflects the consideration FEDCAP expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or
services. The standard outlines a five-step model whereby revenue is recognized as performance!
obligations within a contract are satisfied.

FEDCAP has identified contract services and products and rehabilitation and vocational programs as
revenue categories subject to ASC 606. FEDCAP recognizes revenues from contracts with customers, as
goods or services are transferred or provided in accordance with ASC 606.

Payments received in advance of FEDCAP satisfying its performance obligations are recorded within
deferred revenue in the accompanying consolidated statements of. financial position and totaled
$10,271,850 and $12,501,051, as of September 30,2023 and 2022, respectively. The changes in deferred
revenue were caused by normal timing differences between the satisfaction of performance obligations and
customer payments.

FEDCAP's contracts with customers generally contain terms that are less than one year. Accordingly,
FEDCAP elected the practical expedients under ASC 606 to not assess whether a contract has a significant
financing component or disclose the information regarding the remaining performance obligations for
contracts with customers.

FEDCAP's revenue primarily relates to contract services and products, and rehabilitation and vocational
programs. Revenue recognition for these various revenue streams coincides with the completion of the
corresponding performance obligations to customers.

Contract Services and Products

FEDCAP's contract services and products revenue includes facility services, and other cost recovery
contracts. FEDCAP recognizes such revenue ratably over a contract's term for those with fixed rates as the
performance obligations are fulfilled accordingly over the corresponding contract term. For performance-
based contracts, revenues are recognized in the period when related expenditures have been incurred,
milestones have been achieved, or services have been performed in compliance with the respective
contracts, which are the performance obligations under the contracts. FEDCAP also generates revenue
from the sale of related products, which Is recognized at the time of shipment.
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2023 and 2022

Rehabilitation and Vocational Programs

FEDCAP's rehabilitation and vocational program revenue includes medical services, tuition and job training.
FEDCAP recognizes such revenue ratably over a contract's term for those with fixed rates as the
performance obligations are fulfilled accordingly over the corresponding cohtract term. For performance-
based contracts, revenues are recognized in the period when related expenditures have been incurred,
milestones have been achieved, or services have been performed in compliance with the respective
contracts, which are the performance obligations under the contracts. FEDCAP also generates revenue
from the sale of related products, which is recognized at the time of shipment.

Contribution and Grant Revenue

FEDCAP records contributions of cash and other assets when an unconditional promise to give such assets
is received from a donor. Contributions are recorded at the fair value of the assets received and

contributions with donor stipulations that limit the use of donated assets are classified as net assets with
donor restrictions. Contributions with donor restrictions that are received and met in the same fiscal year
are recorded as contribution revenues without donor restrictions. Otherwise, once stipulated time
restrictions end or purpose restrictions are accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified
to net assets without donor restrictions as "net assets released from restrictions" in the consolidated

statements of activities. Conditional contributions are recognized as revenue when the conditions on which
they depend are substantially met. Conditional contributions received in advance of meeting.the associated
contributions are recorded within deferred revenue on the accompanying consolidated statements of
financial position and totaled $374,621 and $400,000, as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
There were no outstanding conditional contributions yet to be received as of September 30, 2023 or 2022.

FEDCAP recognizes revenue from contributions, grants and contracts in accordance with guidance
whereby FEDCAP evaluates whether a transfer of assets is (1) an exchange transaction in which a resource
provider is receiving commensurate value in return for the resources transferred or (2) a contribution. If the
transfer of assets is determined to be an exchange transaction, FEDCAP applies guidance under ASC 606.
If the transfer of assets is determined to be a contribution, FEDCAP evaluates whether the contribution is
conditional based upon whether the agreement includes both (1) one or more barriers that must be
overcome before FEDCAP is entitled to the assets transferred and promised and (2) a right of return of
assets transferred or a right of release of a promisor's obligation.to transfer assets.

Contributed goods and services are recognized (revenues and expenses, or assets, if capitalizable) at their
estimated fair value at the date of receipt and are reflected as in-kind contributions on the accompanying
consolidated statements of activities.

Receivables and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are derived from contract services and products, and rehabilitation and vocational
programs. The carrying value of contributions and grants and accounts receivable are reduced by an
appropriate allowance for uncollectible accounts, and therefore approximates net realizable value.
FEDCAP determines its allowance by considering a number of factors, including the length of time
receivables are past due, FEDCAP's previous loss history, the donor's current ability to pay its obligation,
and the condition of the general economy and the industry as a whole. Receivables outstanding longer than
the payment terms are considered past due. FEDCAP writes off accounts receivable when they become
uncollectible, and payments subsequently received on such receivables are recorded as incorhe in the
period received. All receivables are expected to be collected within one year.
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2023 and 2022

Inventories

Inventones, mainly consisting of distress marker light products and related components, are valued at the
lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined principally by the first-in, first-out method.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets purchased for a value greater than $5,000 and with depreciable lives greater than one year
are carried at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life
of the respective asset and ranges from three to 40 years. Significant additions or improvements extending
asset lives are capitalized; normal maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred. Leasehold
improvements are amortized based on the lesser of the estimated useful life or remaining lease term.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities. The classification is based on the function
and nature of expenses directly used in the program. Common expenses are allocated to the prograrns-and
supporting services based on the benefit derived. The methods used for the allocation include square
footage and actual percentage of time dedicated to the program or supporting service.

Commissions

FEDCAP pays commissions to an unrelated not-for-profit entity and a New York State entity to provide
information on government contracts that need competitive bids for services. The contracts provide for
commissions to be paid to these organizations In the range of 0.87% to 3.9% of the contract amount.
Commissions paid relating to these contracts amounted to $2,807,298 and $2,850,048 for the years ended
September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and are included within contract services and products
expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses. These estimates
and assumptions relate to estimates of collectabliity of accounts receivable, accruals, useful life of property,
plant, and equipment, and Impairment of long-lived assets. Actual results could differ frorh those estimates.

Fair Value Measurements

FEDCAP follows guidance for fair value measurements that defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, establishes a fair value hierarchy based on the Inputs used to measure fair value and
enhances disclosure requirements for fair value measurements. It maximizes the use of observable Inputs
and minimizes the use of unobservable Inputs by requiring that the observable inputs be used when
available.

Observable inputs are inputs that market participants would use In pricing the asset or liability based on
market data obtained from independent sources. Unobservable inputs reflect assumptions that market
participants would use In pricing the asset or liability based on the best information available in the
circumstances.
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2023 and 2022

The hierarchy is broken down into three levels based on the transparency of inputs as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the
measurement date. A quoted price for an identical asset or liability in an active market
provides the most reliable fair value measurement because it is directly observable to the
market.,

Level 2 - Pricing inputs other than quoted prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly
observable as of the measurement date. The nature of these securities includes investments

for which quoted prices are available but traded less frequently and investments that are fair
valued using other securities, the parameters of which can be directly observed.

Level 3 - Securities that have little to no pricing observability as of the measurement date. These
securities are measured using management's best estimate of fair value, where the inputs
into the determination of fair value are not observable and require significant management
judgment or estimation.

Inputs are used in applying the various valuation techniques and broadly refer to the assumptions that
market participants use to make valuation decisions, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may include
price information, volatility statistics, specific and broad credit data, liquidity statistics, and other factors. A
financial instrument's level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is
significant to the fair value measurerhent. However, the determination of what constitutes "observable"
requires significant judgment by the entity. FEDCAP considers observable data to be that market data that
is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by
independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market. The categorization of a financial
instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the Instrument and does not
necessarily correspond to FEDCAP's perceived risk of that instrument.

Beneficial Interest in Trusts

Donors have established and funded trusts held by third parties under which specified distributions are to
be made to a designated beneficiary or beneficiaries over the trusts' term. FEDCAP's beneficial interest in
trusts consists of interests in both charitable remainder trusts and perpetual trusts. Under charitable
remainder trusts, FEDCAP will receive the assets remaining in the trust upon the termination of the trust.
Under perpetual trusts, FEDCAP has the irrevocable right to receive all or a portion of the income earned
on the trust assets either in perpetuity or for the life of the trust. FEDCAP recognizes its interest in trusts as
increases to net assets at the fair value of trust assets, less the present value of the estimated future
payments to be made under the specific terms of the trusts. Fluctuations in the fair value of these assets
are recorded as changes in net assets with donor restrictions in the consolidated statements of activities.

At September 30, 2023 and 2022, FEDCAP's beneficial interest in trusts are reflected at fair value in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial position and are classified as Level 3 within the fair
value hierarchy.

;2023 2022

Balance, beginning of year

Distributions

Appreciation/(depreciation)

Balance, end of year

$  4,398,082 $ 5,435,630

(139,016) (131,208)
476,697 (906,340)

$  4,735,763 $ 4,398,082
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2023 and 2022

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

FEDCAP reviews the carrying values of its long-lived assets, including property and equipment and other
assets, for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
such assets may not be fully recoverable. Recoverability of long-lived assets is assessed by a comparison
of the carrying amount of the asset to the estimated future net cash flows expected to be generated by the
asset.

If estimated future net cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the asset, the asset is considered
impaired and an expense is recorded in an amount to reduce the carrying amount of the asset to its fair
value.

Tax-Exempt Status

FEDCAP follows guidance that clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax positions taken or expected to
be taken in a tax return, including issues relating to financial statement recognition and measurement. This
guidance provides that the tax effects from an uncertain tax position can only be recognized in the financial
statements if the position is "more-likely-than-not" to be sustained if the position were to be challenged by
a taxing authority. The assessment of the tax position is based solely on the technical merits of the position,
without regard to the likelihood that the tax position may be challenged.

FEDCAP is exempt from federal income tax under IRC Section 501(c)(3), though it is subject to tax on
income unrelated to their respective exempt purpose, unless that income is otherwise excluded by the IRC.
These organizations have processes presently in place to ensure the maintenance of their tax-exempt
status, to identify and report unrelated income, to determine their filing and tax obligations in jurisdictions
for which they have nexus, and to identify and evaluate other matters that may be considered tax positions.
FEDCAP has determined that there are no material uncertain tax positions that require recognition or
disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.

While FEDCAP does not pay income tax within the United States, it does accrue Value-Added-Tax ("VAT)
for liabilities its United Kingdom subsidiaries incur on goods and services purchased overseas. The amount
of VAT liability accrued within the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the years ended
September 30,2023 and 2022, is $1,346,514 and $2,503,334, respectively, and is reported within accounts
payable and accrued liabilities on the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position.

Goodwill

Goodwill was established through the acquisition of Apex in 2020,and KS in 2019. The value reported on
the consolidated statements of financial position represents the residual difference between the
consideration paid and the fair value of the net assets acquired. FEDCAP has elected under relevant
guidance to amortize goodwill on a straight-line basis over 10 years and to perform a goodwill impairment
analysis at the entity or reporting unit level when a triggering event occurs that indicates the fair, value of
the entity or reporting unit may be below its carrying amount. Impairment charges totaling $107,669 were
recognized during the year ended September 30, 2023. There were no impairment charges recognized
during the year ended September 30, 2022.

Adopted Accounting Pronouncement (Change in Accounting Principle)

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 642). This ASU requires lessees to
recognize a lease liability and a right-of-use ("ROU") asset on a discounted basis, for substantially all
leases, as well as additional disclosures regarding leasing arrangements. Disclosures are required to
enable users of financial statements to assess the amount, timing and uncertainty of cash flows arising
from leases. In July 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-11, Leases (Topic 842): Targeted Improvements,
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which provided an optional transition method for applying the new lease standard. Topic 842 can be'applied
using either a modified retrospective approach at the beginning of the earliest period presented or, as
permitted by ASU 2018-11, at the beginning of the period in which it is adopted, (i.e., the comparatives
under Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 840 option).

FEDCAP adopted Topic 842 on October 1, 2022 (the effective date), using the comparatives approach
under ASC 840 transition method, which applies Topic 842 at the beginning of the period in which it is
adopted. Prior period amounts have not been adjusted in connection with the adoption of this standard.
FEDCAP similarly elected the package of practical expedients under the new standard, which permits
entities to not reassess (ease classification, lease identification or initial direct costs for existing or expired
leases prior to the effective date. FEDCAP has lease agreements with non-lease components that relate
to the lease components.

FEDCAP determines if an arrangement is a lease or contains a lease at inception of a contract. A contract
is determined to be or contain a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of identified
property, plant, or equipment (an identified asset) In exchange for consideration. FEDCAP determines
these assets are leased because FEDCAP has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefit
from and the right to direct the use of the identified asset. Assets in which the supplier or lessor has the
practical ability and right to substitute alternative assets for the identified asset and would benefit
economically from the exercise of its right to substitute the asset are not considered to be or contain a lease
because FEDCAP determines It does not have the right to control and direct the use of the identified asset;.
FEDCAP's lease agreements do not contain any material residual value guarantees or material restrictive
covenants.

In evaluating its contracts, FEDCAP separately identifies lease and non-lease components, such as
common area and other maintenance costs, in calculating the ROU assets and lease liabilities for its office
space. FEDCAP has elected the practical expedient to not separate lease and non-lease components and
classifies the contract as a lease if consideration in the contract allocated to the lease component is greater
than the conslderatiori allocated to the non-lease component.

Leases result In the recognition of ROU assets and lease liabilities on the statement of financial position.
ROU assets represent the right to use an underlying asset for the lease term, and lease liabilities represent
the obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease, rheasured on a discounted basis. FEDCAP
determines lease classification as operating or finance (previously capital leases) at the lease
commencement date.

At lease inception, the lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments over the lease
term. The ROU asset equals the lease liability adjusted for any Initial direct costs, prepaid or deferred rent,
and lease incentives. FEDCAP has made a policy election to use a risk-free rate per U.S. Treasury
instrument for the initial and subsequent measurement of all lease liabilities. The risk-free rate Is determined
using a period comparable with the lease term.

The portion of payments on operating lease liabilities related to interest, along with the amortization of the
related ROU, is recognized as occupancy expense. This occupancy expense is recognized on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease. The portion of payments on finance lease liabilities related to interest
and the amortization of the ROU assets under finance leases are reflected within occupancy expense on
the accompanying statement of functional expenses.,

The lease term may include options to extend or to terminate the lease that FEDCAP is reasonably certain
to exercise. Lease expense is generally recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

FEDCAP has elected not to record leases with an initial term of 12 months or less on its statement of

financial position. Lease expense on such leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Operating lease ROU assets and operating and finance lease liabilities are presented separately while
finance lease ROU assets are presented within property, plant and equipment, net on the accompanying
consolidated statements of financial position.

The most significant impact of adoption was the recognition of operating lease ROU assets and operating
lease liabilities of $39,523,718 and $42,620,262, respectively. As part of adopting the standard, previously
recognized liabilities for deferred rent related to operating leases were reclassified as a component of ROU
assets. The standard did not significantly affect FEDCAP's changes in net assets or cash flows.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications were made to the fiscal 2022 consolidated financial statements in order to conform

to the fiscal 2023 presentation. Such reclassifications did not result in a change to total net assets,
revenues, expenses or changes in net assets as previously reported in the fiscal 2022 consolidated financial
statements.

NOTE 3 - CONTRIBUTIONS AND GRANTS RECEIVABLE

At September 30, 2023 and 2022, contributions and grants receivable consisted of receivables amounting
to $2,819,540 and $1,179,787, respectively, net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $250,000 for each
year.

Approximately 46% and 24% of the contributions and grants receivable (gross) was due from one donor at-
September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

NOTE 4 - CONTRIBUTED SPACE RECEIVABLE

In fiscal 2023, upon commencement of the lease, a contributed space receivable and in-kind contribution
with donor restrictions was recognized totaling $48,617,672 related to the below market rate lease for Civic
Hall's 85,000-square-foot learning and training center at 14th Street, Union Square, New York City. This
amount represents the present value of the difference between the fair market rate and the contracted
payments due under the lease over the lease term. The fair market rate was determined based upon the
lease rates for comparable space at the time of the lease commencement. The lease has a 25-year term
and the contributed space receivable will be amortized over that period. During the year ended
September 30, 2023, $2,872,184 of the contributed space receivable was amortized and reflected within
occupancy costs on the accompanying consolidated statement of functional expenses.

NOTE 5 - INVESTMENTS

Investments, at fair value, consisted of the following at September 30; ■

2023 2022

Money market funds

Mutual funds

$ 1,061,835 $ 561,734
9,564,255 8,445,204

$ 10,626,090 $ 9,006,938

FEDCAP's mutual fund investments are classified as Level 1 within the fair value hierarchy. FEDCAP's
money market fund investments do not meet the definition of a security under U.S. GAAP, and as such, the
disclosure requirements for fair value measurements are not applicable.
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NOTE 6 - INVENTORIES, NET

Inventories consisted of the following at September 30:

Inventories

Raw materials

Work-in-process and finished goods
Reserve

NOTE 7 . PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Fixed assets, net, consisted of the following at September 30:

Land

Building improvements
Buildings
Finance leases - buildings
Furniture, fixtures and computer systems

Leasehold improvements

Less: accumulated depreciation

2023 2022

$  106,392 $ 136,294

307,418 369,033
(90,000) (90,000)

$ ■ 323,810 $■ 415.327

2023 2022

$  1,617,809 $ 1,617,809
4,896,701 4,599,099

39,742,759 39,742,759
79,828,252 79,828,252
31,241,392 26,960,289
34.337,156 12,773,557

191,664,069 165,521,765

(46,986,327) (39,391,740)

$ 144,677,742 $ 126,130,025

Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022 was $6,282,685
and $6,230,114, respectively. . . .

NOTE 8 - REVOLVING LOANS

Investors Bank

On October 27, 2020, FEDCAP entered into an agreement with Investors Bank for (1) a revolving line of
credit agreement with a borrowing limit of $42,500,000, with a maturity date of October 27,2022 and interest
payable quarterly at a rate of prime plus 0.75% but no less than 4.00%. The maturity date was subsequently
extended to January 27, 2023. As of September 30, 2022, FEDCAP had borrowings on this line of credit of
$25,893,587 at an interest rate of 3.06%. On January 27, 2023, the line was refinanced with Provident
Bank.
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Provident Bank

On January 27, 2023, FEDCAP entered into an agreement with Provident Bank to refinance certain of its
previous debt arrangements as well as to provide for additional liquidity for operations. In connection with
the refinancing, FEDCAP entered into (1) a revolving line of credit agreement (Facility A) with a borrowing
limit of $42,500,000, with a maturity date of March 25, 2025 and interest payable quarterly at a rate of one
month CME Term Secured Overnight Financing Rate ("SOFR") plus 2.90% but no less than 5.00%; and
(2) an additional $7,500,000 credit line (Facility B) interest payable quarterly at a rate of one month CME
Term SOFR plus 2.90% but no less than 5.00%. The revolving line of credit agreement requires that
FEDCAP maintain minimum unrestricted liquid assets of $15,000,000. The proceeds from the revolving line
of credit were used to repay the existing revolving credit line held by Investors Bank, mentioned above. As
of September 30,2023, FEDCAP had borrowings on Facility A of $29,345,101 at an interest rate of 8.22%.
There were no outstanding borrowings under Facility B as of September 30, 2023. The balance reported
on the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position as of September 30, 2023 is net of
unamortized debt issuance costs of $32,635.

NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Notes Payable

On October 21, 2004, TOTS entered into a $700,000 mortgage note payable to finance the acquisition of
the building located in Bronx, New York. The note was secured by the property and all of the assets of
TOTS. The interest rate is 5.0% and principal and interest of $4,960 is payable monthly through the maturity
date of November 1, 2024. At September 30, 2023 and 2022, the outstanding principal balance was
$67,284 and $121,684, respectively.

FEDCAP entered into an agreement with Investors Bank for two term loans in the amounts of $6,000,000
and $6,600,000, with a maturity date of November 1, 2045 and November 1, 2030, respectively, along with
monthly payments of principal and interest at a rate of 4.00%. At September 30, 2023 and 2022, the
outstanding principal balance of the term loans was $11,137,729 and $11,659,271, respectively.
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Bonds Payable

In December 2013, FRS entered into a Loan Agreement with Build NYC Resource Corporation ("Build
NYC"), a local development corporation, for Build NYC to issue bonds to finance the purchase of the sixth
floor of a building located at 633 Third Avenue in New York City and related expenses. Build NYC issued
$18,450,000 of tax-exempt revenue bonds ("Series 2013A"). Monthly payments of interest commenced in
June 2014. The Series 2013A bonds have a coupon rate of 4.2% with a maturity date of December 1,2033.
The Series A bonds were placed with Israel Discount Bank ("IDB") and, as part of the bond purchase and
continuing covenant agreement between FRS and IDB, FRS must maintain a minimum balance with IDB
of $4,000,000, which is included within investments in the accompanying consolidated statements of
financial position at September 30, 2023 and 2022. At September 30, 2023 and 2022, the outstanding
principal balance of the Series 2013A bonds was $14,235,000 and $14,840,000, respectively. The following
is a summary of minimum principal payments due on the notes and bonds at September 30; 2023:

Year Ending September 30, Notes Payable Bonds Payable Total r

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

Thereafter

Total

Less: current portion

Less: bond issuance cost

$  584,654 $  630,000 $  1,214,654
544,230 655,000 1,199,230

541,215 685,000 1,226,215
548,331 715,000 .  1,263,331
555,193 745,000 1,300,193

8,431,390 10,805,000 19,236,390

$  11,205,013 $  14,235,000 25,440,013

(1,214,654)
(544,727)

$ 23,680,632Long-term debt, net of current portion

NOTE 10 - ADVANCES FROM GOVERNMENT AGENCY

During fiscal 2023 and 2022, FEDCAP received contract advances from various New York City government
agencies. The refundable balance related to these advances as of-September 30, 2023 and 2022 is
$40,206 and $564,276, respectively. These advances are non-interest bearing and will be offset by future
receivables within these programs.

NOTE 11 - FORGIVABLE CAPITAL ADVANCES

ESCT has received financial assistance for property acquisition costs from Housing and Urban
Development ("HUD") and the Austin Housing Finance Corporation ("AHFC"). Under the terms of the
agreements, funds were provided to ESCT in the form of forgivable capital advances to purchase
34 housing entitles. The principle and any interest are not due and will be forgiven upon maturity, as long
as ESCT continues to meet the requirements to maintain the housing units available for low income persons
with disabilities. ESCT believes that the possibility that repayment will occur is remote and as such that the
treatment of the advance as a contribution upon receipt is appropriate. Accordingly, the advances were,
recorded as contributions with donor restrictions that are released from restriction over the life of the

agreement.

24



The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2023 and 2022

The following table summarizes the forgivable capital advances as of September 30, 2023;

Amount of

Original Advance
Housing I

U.S. Department of HUD, interest rate of 5.375%, due unless forgiven on October 11, 2045,
secured by six rental housing units. At September 30, 2023 and 2022, $228,010 and
$238,335, respectively, was included in net assets with donor restrictions related to the Note. . $ 413,000

Hou^ng II
U.S. Department of HUD, interest rate of 5.250%, due unless forgiven on April 1, 2048, secured

by 10 rental housing units. At September 30, 2023 and 2022, $438,567 and $456,407,
respectively, was included in net assets with donor restrictions related to the Note. 713.600

City of Austin passed through AHFC, interest rate of 0%, due unless forgiven on May 1, 2049,
secured by 10 rental housing units, subordinate to the $713,600 loan. At September 30,2023
and 2022, $319,792 and $332,292, respectively, was included In net assets with donor
restrictions related to the Note. 500,000

Housing III
U.S. Department of HUD, interest rate of 4.125%, due unless forgiven on December 1, 2050,

secured by eight rental housing units. At September 30, 2023 and 2022, $502,517 and
$521.013. respectively, was included in net assets with donor restrictions related to the Note. 739.900

City of Austin passed through AHFC, interest rate of 0%. due unless forgiven on November 30, .
2050, secured by eight rental housing units, su^rdinate to the $739,900 loan, At
September 30, 2023 and 2022, $336,010 and $348,379, respectively, was included in net
assets with donor restrictions related to the Note. 494,740

Housing IV .
U.S. Department of HUD, interest rate of 4.125%, due unless forgiven on February 15, 2053,

secured by 10 rental housing units. At September 30, 2023 and 2022, $790,191 and
$813,950, respectively, was iricluded in net assets with donor restrictions related to the Note. ' 1,070,400

City of Austin passed through AHFC, interest rate of 0%, due unless forgiven on February 28,
2053, secured by 10 rental housing units; subordinate to the $1,070,400 loan. At
September 30, 2023 and 2022, $456,561 and $475,183, respectively, was included in net
assets with donor restrictions related to the Note. 624,898

Total $ • 4,556,538
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NOTE 12-LEASES

FEDCAP has entered into operating and finance lease commitments for space, office equipment and
vehicles at various locations for its programs and administrative activities, which expire on various dates
through July 2067.

The lease cost and other required information relevant to the lease commitments for the year ended
September 30, 2023 are;

Lease cost

Operating lease cost $ 15,299,969
Finance lease cost

Amortization of right-of-use assets 297,686

Interest on lease liabilities 3,586,628

Sublease income . ' (1,465.264).

Total lease cost 5. 17,719,019

Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 15,299,969

Operating cash flows from finance leases 2,881,967
Financing cash flows from finance leases 1,049,268

Right-of-use assets, obtained in exchange for new operating lease liabilities $ 52,158,869
Right-of-use assets, obtained in exchange for new finance lease liatDilities 578,592

Weighted-average remaining lease term;
Operating teases 18.57 years
Finance leases 25.56 years

Weighted-average discount rate:

Operating leases 3.45%
Finance leases 5.70%
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Future minimum payments under FEDCAP's leases are due as follows;

2024

2025

2026

2027..

2028

Thereafter

Total future undiscounted lease payments

Less: interest

Lease liabilities

Operating
Leases

Finance

Leases

$  11,321.897 $ 4.795.398
8,875,761

7,181,551
5,656,326

6,821,861

90.537,854

130,395,250

(38,300,532)

5,026,816

5.066.961
5.015.962

4,934,652

111.810.670

136,650,459

(56.891,323)

$ 92,094;718 $ 79,759,136

Disclosures Related to Periods Prior to Adoption ofASC 842

Total rent expense for the year ended September 30, 2022 was $15,289,496. Rent expense related to
lease agreements was recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Future minimum lease commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as of September 30, 2022
were as follows:

Year Ending September 30.

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

■ Thereafter

Total

Amount

$  14,593,814
13,093,972

12,245,259
10,557,672
8,763,622

92,407,054

$ 151,661,393
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Future minimum lease commitments under hon-cancellable finance leases as of September 30,2022 were
as follows;

Year Ending September 30, Amount

2023 $ 3,707,389
2024 4,471,864
2025 . 4,465,407
2026 4,803,639
2027 4,803,639

Thereafter 116,983,515

Total minimum lease payments 139,235,453

Less: amount representing interest (60,179,753)

Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 79,055,700

NOTE 13 - CONTINGENCIES

FEDCAP is engaged in various lawsuits incidental to its operations. In the opinion of management, the
ultimate outcome of pending litigation will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial
position and results of operations of FEDCAP.

FEDCAP participates in a number of federal and state programs. These programs require that FEDCAP
comply with certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the
programs in which it participates. All funds expended in connection with government grants and contracts
are subject to audit by government agencies. While the ultimate liability, if any, from such audits of
government contracts by government agencies is presently not determinate, it should not, in the opinion
of management, have a material effect on FEDCAP's financial position or change in net assets. Accordingly,
no provision for any such liability that may result has been made in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTE 14 - TUITION REVENUE

FEDCAP receives funding for Fedcap Apex Technical School Inc (d/b/a Apex Technical School) and for
the Career Design School from the New York State Education Department, administered by the Bureau of
Proprietary School Supervision. Gross tuition income has been included within rehabilitation and vocational
programs in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities for the years ended September 30,
2023 and 2022 as follows:

2023

Tuition

Less: book and tool sales

Less: application and insurance fees

Subtotal

Add: student Refunds and Returns to Federal Family Education
Loan Programs included above

Gross tuition for tuition assessment calculations

Tuition

Less: book and tool sales

Less: application and insurance fees

Subtotal

Add: student Refunds and Returns to Federal Family Education
Loan Programs included above

Fedcap Apex
Technical

School Inc

d/b/a Apex
Technical

School

$ 20,636,905
(664,857)

.  (1,36,301)

19,835,747

543,070

Career Design
School

$  100,478

$100,478

$  20,378,817 ,$. 100,478

2022

Fedcap Apex
Technical

School Inc

d/b/a Apex
Technical

School

Career Design
School

$  19,824,972 $

(566,428).
(119,444)

287,248

19,139,100

505,802

287,248

Gross tuition for tuition assessment calculations $  19,644,902 $ 287,248
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NOTE 15-NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions were restricted for the following purposes as of September 30,:

2023 2022

For use in future periods for
Employment and job search programs $ 236,488 $ 260,388
ESCT HUD capital advances 3,071,648 3,185,559
Time restricted - beneficial interest in renwinder trust 2,577,709 2,395,008

Time restricted - general 47,416,091 1,137,964

53,301,936 6,978,919

Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts and endowment funds
subject to appropriation and satisfaction of donor restrictions 2,158,054 . 2,003,074

$  55,459,990 $ 8,981,993

Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts -and endowment funds are comprised of the following as of
September 30:

2023 2022

Easter Seals - beneficial interest in perpetual trusts
Reserve endowment

CWS endowment

$  1,993,803 $ 1,842,325.
85,471 82,306
78,780 78,443

$  2,158,054 $ 2,003,074

Net assets released from restrictions during the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022 amounted to
$3,249,208 and $669,536, respectively.

Net assets released from restrictions are comprised of the following as of September 30:

2023 2022

Time Restricted - general
ESCT HUD Capital Advances

Employment and job search programs

NOTE 16 - RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

$  3,084,970 $
113,913 113,913
50,325 555,623

$  3,249,208 $ 669,536

A CWS Board member is a trustee of the Eaton Fund. CWS leases its facilities from the Eaton Fund.

The rent paid to Eaton Fund for each of the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022 was $130,000 and
$97,500, respectively.
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NOTE 17 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Effective January 1, 1991, FEDCAP established a Tax Deferred Annuity Retirement Plan under Section
403(b) of the IRC for employee voluntary salary reduction contributions. Employees are eligible to
participate in the plan as of their employment date.

Effective October 1, 1991, FEDCAP established a Tax Deferred Annuity Retirement Plan under Section
403(b) of the IRC for employees working on government contracts with a defined contribution pension plan
based on a contractual formula. Employees are eligible tp participate in the plan upon satisfactory
completion of a three-month probationary period.

Effective October 1, 1994, FEDCAP established a Defined Contribution Plan under Section 403(b) of the
IRC for qualified participants, primarily employees who do not work on contracts. In November 1, 2010, the
Defined Contribution Plan was amended to allow all employees to participate in the plan immediately upon
hire. FEDCAP matches employee contributions up to Z% of their salaries. Employer matching contributions
fully vest after three years of employment.

Plan contributions are invested in one or more of the funding vehicles available to participants under the
plans. Each participant is fully, and imrriediately vested in employee contributions. Employer contributions
to the plans amounted to $13,520,332 and $12,381,925 for the years'ended September 30,2023 and 2022,
respectively. "

NOTE 18 - CONCENTRATIONS

FEDCAP provides building services for federal buildings, which comprised 18% of total revenues during
the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022. FEDCAP provides offsite data entry personnel, custodial
and other services to various branches of the state and city government through one New York State
organization, which comprised 5% of total revenues during the years ended September 30? 2023 and 2022.

Financial instruments that potentially subject FEDCAP to concentrations of credit and market risk consist
principally of cash and cash equivalents on deposit with financial institutions, which from time to time may
exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation limit. Management does not believe that a significant
risk of loss exists due to the failure of a financial institution.

NOTE 19 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

FEDCAP regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other contractual
commitments. FEDCAP has various sources of liquidity at its disposal, including cash and cash equivalents,
marketable debt and equity securities, and lines of credit. See Note 8 for information about FEDCAP's lines
of credit.

For purposes of assessing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period,
FEDCAP considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, FEDCAP
operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover general
expenditures.

As of September 30, 2023 and 2022, the following tables show the total financial assets held by FEDCAP
and the amounts of those financial assets that could readily be made available within one year of the
balance sheet date to meet general expenditures.
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Financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months;

-  2023 2022

Cash and cash equivalents $ 25,187,907 $ 55,878,023
Accounts receivable, net 59,466,388 48,355,344
Contributions and grants receivable, net 2,819,540 1,179,787

Investments 10,626,090 9,006,938

Total financial assets available within the next 12 months 98,099,925 114,420,092

Less amounts unavailable for general expenditure due to:
Donor-imposed restrictions (4,772,847) (4,583,655)
Minimum liquidity and collateral requirements under borrowing

and other arrangements (18,900,000) (17,500,000)

Total financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over.the next 12 months $ 74,427,078 $ 92,336,437

NOTE 20 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

FEDCAP evaluated its September 30, 2023 consolidated financial statements for subsequent events
through February 15, 2024, the date the consolidated financial statements were available for issuance.
FEDCAP is unaware of any events which would require recognition or disclosure in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements other than what is described in this note.

On October 24, 2023, FEDCAP entered into an agreement with Provident Bank for a non-revolving
construction line of credit in the amount of $10,000,000. The line of credit will be used to finance the
construction of certain improvements related to the Civic Hall lease. The line of credit has a maturity date
of December 31, 2027 and fixed interest rate of 7.14%,
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a member of THE FEOCAP GROUP

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Nick Brattan, Chairman

Board Date 6/13/2018

Profession: President - NE Document Systems Inc.

William Rider

Board Date 2009

Profession: CEO/President-Greater Manchester Mental Health

Lynne Westaway, Treasurer

Board Date 8/1/2007

Profession: CPA/Partner-WIPFLI

James Sweeney PhO

Board Date 10/1/2020

Profession: PhD, Counseling

6/23



Peter Burke

Board Date 4/1/21

Profession: Community Education Manager @ StrJoseph Hospital

Cassandra Durand

Board Date 3/16/23

Profession: Director of ProHealth Integrated Primary Care

Kate Turcotte.

Board Date 3/6/24

Profession: MSW, Professor and Therapist

Patrick Long

Board dote 4/12/2026

Attorney

6/23



WHITNEY H. BROWN

wbro\vn@granitepathwa)'s.org

OUALIFICATIONS/LICENSURE

Association of Community Rehabilitation Educators - ACRE (March 2022)

NH Licensed Acupuncture Detoxification Specialist

Certified Sober Parenting Journey Facilitator (Nov 2018)

Certified Recovery Support Worker Supervisor, (CRSW Supervisor, license 148)

Mental Health First Aid National Instructor (certified April 2018)

NH Licensed Nursing Assistant (2015-2020)

EDUCATION

UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Master of Social Work (Leave of Absence)

UNH INSTITUTE ON DISABILITY

Building Futures Apprenticeship

GRANITE STATE COLLEGE

Micro Credential in Addiction Studies

UNH PROFESSIONAL EXTENSION SCHOOL •

Introduction to Grant Writing

Introduction to Basic Project Mgt. Get 2019

CITY UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK

Marketing Principles

Business Law in the Digital Age

BOSTON COLLEGE

BA in International Studies

INTERNATIONAL. UNIV.OF BUSINESS & ECON.

Durham. NH

October 2022

Oct 2021 - May 2023

Jun 2020-Jun 2021

Durham. NH

Concord. NH

Durham. NH

Sept 2019

Fall 2010

Spring 2011

Sept 2004 - May 2008

New York. NY

Chestnut Hill, MA

Semester Abroad in Beijing. China

EXPERIENCE

SAFE HARBOR RECOVERY CENTER

Jan 2007 - May 2007

Oct 2022-Present Portsmouth. NH

Director

Responsible for all day-to-day operations as an SUD outpatient treatment facility

Provide and oversee quality and person-centered direct recovery support service for clients with co-

occurring disorders

Ensure client safety and triage and/or perform crisis intervention

Appropriately respond to displays or communication of imminent threat and/danger

Hire and train new staff

Develop and implement new strategies, programs, policies and procedures

Design and implement marketing strategy and initiatives

SAFE HARBOR RECOVERY CENTER Oct 2021 - Oct 2022 Portsmouth. NH

Center Manager

Manage the Job Launch Program

Manage the Parenting Journey in Recovery Program

Manage the Homeless Outreach Program

Manage Peer Recovery Support Services

Supervise all staff and volunteers

Advance and sustain all recovery community organizational activity

Cultivate donor relations

Establish and develop community partnerships

Ensure HIPAA and 42 CFR compliance

JOB LAUNCH OF GRANITE PATHWAYS

Contract Manager & CRSW

Sept 2020 - Oct 2021 Portsmouth. NH

WHBl



WHITNEY H. BROWN

Manage contract deliverables

Qualify and quantify key performance indicators

Supervise staff and interns

Assist in employee professional development and licensure

Ensure HIPAA and 42 CFR compliance

Educate employees and volunteers in confidentiality practices

Support business development

Draft and submit grant proposals

Develop sen/ice integration with other Statewide workforce and recovery initiatives

Assist participants in career exploration and development

Place participants in recovery-support work environments & Recovery Friendly Workplaces

Facilitate vocational classes in SUD treatment settings

JOB LAUNCH OF GRANITE PATHWAYS Feb 2020 - Sept 2020 Portsmouth. NH

Employment Specialist &. CRSW

Offer direct peer recovery support services through motivational conversation

Facilitate and coordinate Power of Possible work readiness curriculum

Conduct psychosocial intakes

Establish and maintain client relationships on peer recovery support basis

Initiate and cultivate relationships with client referral sources

Formulate initial comprehensive service plans

Coordinate with and delegate to Job Developer in service of clients'needs

Structure referral processes

Navigate privacy and confidentiality laws of telehealth and recovery coaching practice

Draft and submit to Contractors quaaerly reports

Formulate records retainment procedures

Contribute to creation of programmatic materials including marketing brochure

Assist with work readiness activities including resume drafting and proper interviewing

SAFE HARBOR RECOVERY CENTER Sept 2018 - Feb 2020 Portsmouth, NH

Facilitator/ Parenting Journey Coord. & CRSW

Assist individuals in defining and articulating their desired pathway of recovery

Monitor and support individuals in achieving desired pathway of recovery

Motivatjonally inten/iew participants to develop actionable goals

Validate and advocate for recoverees seeking expanded parental rights

Navigation of and proficiency with family court system and parental rights in NH

Leverage existing community resources to level obstacles in the way of health stability

PRIVATE DUTY HOME HEALTHCARE March'2017-Sept 2018 Kittery, ME
Personal Care Assistant

MAXIM HEALTHCARE SERVICES March 2016 - March 2018 Manchester. NH

Licensed Nursing Assistant

NEW CASTLE FIRE DEPARTMENT Oct 2016 - May 2020 Newcastle, NH

Member; Support Medical Team

RISE ABOVE SOBER LIVING Aug-Oct 2015 Nashua. NH

House Manager

GUNDERSON DETTMER. et al Nov 2010 - April 2012 New York. NY

Legal Secretary Nov 2011 - April 2012

Receptionist Nov2010 - Nov 2011

INTERNATIONAL VENUE GROUP March 2010 - Aug 2010 Shanghai, PRC

USA Pavilion Server

MANDARIN PRIVATE TUTORING Nov 2009 - Feb 2010 Shanghai. PRC

English Tutor

WHB2



WHITNEY H. BROWN

MANDARIN ORIENTAL HOTEL Sept 2008 - May 2009 Boston, MA

Asana Server

WENTWORTH BY THE SEA HOTEL Summers 2002 - 2008 Newcastle, NH

Server

WHB3



Terri Varney

tvarney@granitepathways.org

OBJECTIVE

To obtain a position in education or human services that serves individuals, families and the community.

EDUCATION

NEW HAMPSHIRE PROFESSIONAL CERTIFIED COACH ~ 2010

Univci-sity of New Hampshire ~ Coaching Children & Teens

MASTER OF EDUCATION- 2006

University of Massachusetts, Lowell, MA

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

CERTIFIED RECOVERY SUPPORT SPECIALIST - Rockingham County NH 2018-prcscnt

Most recently at Safe Harbor Recovery Center - Poilsmouth, NH

EVENING ADULT EDUCATION TEACHER-York Adult Education, ME. 2016-2017

PARAPROFESSIONAL - Portsmouth, Durham and York School Dcpaitnients - 2015-2018

DISABILITY SERVICES COORDINATOR -Gieal Bay Community College Portsmouth 2008 - 2014

LANGUAGE ARTS/READING TEACHER - Whilticr Technical High School Havcrhill, MA pre 2008

COMMUNITY SERVICE

K REIKI PRACTITIONER MASTER Volunteer - Safe Harbor Recovery Center, Portsmouth, NH 2017
and Portsmouth Regional Hospital, Portsmouth, NH 2010 - 2015

Provided sessions for hospitalized individuals and/or in recovery from substance use disorders

TRANSFERABLE SKILLS

Interpersonal communication, organizing, collaborating, aiid facilitating learning



EDWARD J. MILLIKEN

cmillikcn@granitcpath>vays.org

PROFILE

Recently retired executive with proven experience in leading, developing, and implementing programs, products, and services in
non-profit and for-profit organizations.

CORE COMPETENCIES

Program and People Leadership/Management • Strategic, Budget and Operations Management
Partnership Development • Cross-Functional Team Management

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Granite Pathways/Safe Harbor Recovery Center (SHRC) 2022-Present
Job Placement Specialist
Safe Harbor Recovery Center (SHRC), established iri 2016, is a peer-to-peer based recovery resource center for adults and youth
affected by substance use disorder (SLID). Under the auspices of its parent organization. Granite Pathways, SHRC offers peer
mentoring and coaching.

Joined SHRC as a Volunteer in July. 2022 and was asked, in May 2023, to assume the part time role of Job Placement Specialist in
the organization's Job Launch program. Coach and mentor clients in various aspects of the job search process (resume
development, career decision making, application process, interviewing, etc.) as clients move back into the job market as the
next step in their recovery process. Continue coaching and mentoring clients to ensure success in their job and in their recovery.
Obtained llcensure as a Certified Recovery Support Worker (CRSW) |n May, 2024.

Facing History and Ourselves (FHAO), Brookline, MA 2014-2021
Director of Program Operations and Regional Strategy
FHAO is a non-profit organizationfocused on professional developmentfor educators with the mission ofengaging students in an
examination of racism, prejudice, and anti-semitism to promote the development of a more humane and informed citizenry.

Established and directed the program strategic planning process, oversaw the regional office planning for headquarters and 8 US-
based and 2 international offices and execution of program goals, and worked to improve the program delivery, systems, and
processes. Led a team of 10 responsible for diverse functions throughout the organization (project management, DEI, business
development, educator support, regional program teams, etc.). I retired from Facing History and Ourselves in June, 2021.

National Association of Elementary School Principals (NAESP), Alexandria, VA 2013-2014
Associate Executive Director

Directed a cross functional team tasked with the revitalization of NAESP's professional learning programs designed to meet
member and non-member development needs. Oversaw the organization's nationally recognized Principal Mentor program.
Annual Conference, National Principals Resource Center, and National Leadership Conference.

ASCD, Alexandria, VA 2011-2013
Managing Director and Interim Chief Program Development Officer

Led the strategic and operational direction of all ASCD's professional development efforts, including conferences and institutes,
long-term field-based work with state, district, and school level leaders, and oversight of ASCD's $3,000,000 Gates Foundation
Grant. Total annual budget responsibility exceeded $15,000,000. In addition, 1 assumed the additional executive level
responsibilities of Interim Chief Program Development Officer, accountable for a $43,000,000 revenue target and staff responsibility
for 90+ professionals in the Program Development Unit.



•  • Oversaw the design and development of the organization's entire portfolio of print and digital publishing products as well
as its face-to-face and virtual domestic and international programs and services.

•  Developed and executed ASCD's cross-functional program/product response to educational initiatives such as the Common
Core Stale Standards to meet the needs of state, district, and local level educators.

•  Planned and implemented a wide range of educational, strategic, and operational initiatives to support ASCD's mission,
including virtual and blended professional learning options, marketing/professional development collaboration, a broader
content acquisition strategy, and content-specific faculty recruitment/ development.

•  Maintained and developed relationships with educational thought leaders, subject matter experts, existing and aspiring
ASCD authors, and key business and educational partners throughout the United States.

Staff Development for Educators (SDE), Peterborough, NH 2002-201 i
Director, New Program/Content Development
SDE was a nationally recognized provider of professional development services and resources for the K-12 market.

Directed the conceptualization, design, development, and delivery of multiple new SDE professional development projects valued
at $20,000,000 in annual sales and had direct responsibility for 25+ in house and virtual staff plus a cadre of independent content
development contractors.

Advanced the development of the organization's public professional development program by managing teams to research, program,
and review more than 1,000 public programs annually throughout the United States and Canada.

Established a content development team that created a wide range of proprietary product suites and professional development options
including books, printed materials, in person training, and interactive digital offerings.

Maintained a national educational consulting corps through the continued recruitment, development, and management of more than
200 educational presenters, consultants, authors, subject matter experts, and thought leaders.

The Monadnock Training Council, Amherst, NH 1998-2002
The Training and Education Center of New England 1999-2002
Owner/President

Established strong partnerships with colleges and universities to develop and distribute graduate and undergraduate programs of
study for off-campus employee enrollment in businesses, service organizations, and community entities.

The Efficacy Institute 1994 to 1998
Senior Consultant/ Trainer

The Efficacy Institute is a nationally recognized consulting and training firm focusing on closing the achievement gapfor minority
students, primarily in large urban school districts.

My work centered on the restructuring of leadership and instructional practices in client school districts with particular focus on the
use of data in classrooms to improve student outcomes.

Adams and Thayer, Inc. .1986 to 1994
Vice President/Senior Consultant

My work encompassed: assessments (including the MBtl and others), facilitation and consultation; the design and delivery of
outplacement consulting to middle and senior managers including interview preparation, career coaching, and resume preparation.

ADDITIONAL PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Previous positions include Director at The Learning Center of New Hampshire, and middle and high school English and
Language Arts Teacher in New Hampshire public schools.

EDUCATION

Post-Master's Degree Work (ABD), Policy Studies and Program Administration Boston Uriiversity Boston, MA
Master of Business Administration, Human Resource Management Rivier College Nashua, NH •

Master of Education, Reading Boston University Boston, MA
Bachelor of Arts, English University of New Hampshire Durham, NH



Justin Younger

Jvounger@granitepathwavs.org

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Safe Harbor

CRSW, Recovery Specialist, Outreach, Volunteer Coordinator

Providing one on one Recovery Coaching session with members of Safe Harbor. I intake both walk ins and

appointments to become a member of Safe Harbor. I supervise the Volunteer program, and the volunteers, on
both their professional development track, and if they are looking to volunteer to help their community. I also

Coach Working Feilds clients, as we are one of their partners. I attend any community resource meetings. I also

work with other partnering agencies in the area, by doing presenbtions about our services. Assist clients with
developing personal coping skills and strategies, and with identifying connections to sober support systems, and

any other resources they can utilize. Facilitate Narcan training to agencies in the area. Entering data with several

different software programs that are required by our funding organizations. I create and update policies and
procedures for Safe Harbor. I am also the head of Safe Harbors social media accounts and postings. I create

workflows for the team and myself. I also log all trackable items and create new trackers for the team. I work

with Microsoft TEAMS, Recovery Link, Single Stop, Unite Us, and MMIS.

Location- 865 Islington Street

Portsmouth, NH 03801

January 2023- Present

Turning Point Case Manager

Southeastern Services New Hampshire Drug and Alcohol Abuse Services

Location- 272 County Farm Rd, Dover NH 03820

May 2019-Present

Provide case management assistance to clients in the low-intensity treatment program

Collaborate with the treatment team to proyide clients with individualized case management and treatment

plans

Assist clients with developing personal coping skills and strategies

Assist clients with identifying connections to sober support systems, including introduction to the 12-step

recovery process

Assist clients with improving relationships and communication with family and other primary supports

Facilitate and create daily programming groups for the clients

Ensure clients follow all program rules and regulations

Observed, recorded, and reported on treatment,-behavior, and progress of clients

Assist In establishing and implementing agency policies and procedures

Maintain records of clinical work per the standards of the profession using the WITS operating system

Integrated Delivery Network Case Manager

Southeastern Services New Hampshire Drug and Alcohol Abuse Services

Dover NH

April 2018-May 2019



Assisted patients with the transition from a hospitalized setting into substance abuse treatment

programs

Responded to client requests and concerns

Educated hospital employees about recovery resources, including medication assisted treatment, SUD
outpatient and lOP services, mental health treatment providers and primary care doctors
Collaborated with IDN staff and treatment team members

Addiction Recovery Center (ARC) Residential Assistant

Southeastern Services New Hampshire Drug and Alcohol Abuse Services

Dover NH

Seiatember 2016-April 2018

Facilitated and helped create psycho-educational groups

Ensure clients follow all program rules and regulations

Observed, recorded, and reported on treatment, behavior, and progress of clients

Helped provide clients with the knowledge and skills needed to achieve a stable recovery
Observed medication calls

Maintained records per the standards of the profession using the WITS operating system

Assisted with training new employees

Floor Manager

Bonfire Recovery

Dover, NH

September 2014-March 2016

Observed, recorded, and reported on treatment, behavior, and progress of residents
Help the residents accountable for their behaviors

Assigned the chores and other duties to residents

EDUCATION AND CERTIFICATIONS

Certified Recovery Support Worker-as of October 2018-Prest

Certified Recovery Coach-as of April 2018

CPR Certified-as of September 2019

Narcan Trained-January 2016

Central High School Diploma 2002



NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsibte.for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Granite Pathways

NAME JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL SALARY

Whitney Brown Program Director $16;537.97 $65,149.58

Teresa Varney Recovery Employment Specialist $32,548.83 $38,466.79

Edward Milliken Recovery Employment Specialist $17,051.65 $20,151.95

Justin Younger Recovery Specialist $4,128.33 $48,789.41

TBD Recovery Employment Specialist $18,747.22 $45,760.00

$0.00 $0.00.
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Lori A. Weiver
CMorittlonrr

Katja & Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

p/y/SfOJV FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

1» RLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
'  603-271-9544 1^»)0452-334S Ext'^

Fax: 6P3-27I-4331: tpp Accw:\l-S0()u73S-29M w^-dhhs-nhlsov '

September. 1,2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
.Concord; New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Hurrian Seiyices,- Diyision for ^havioral Health,
to enterjnto Sple Source amendments to existing contractis, which were crigihaily competitively
bid; with the Contractors listed below to continue providing Workforce Readiness and Vocational
Training Prograrns for iridivlduals with opioid and/of stimulant use disorder, by increasirig the total
pHce lirnitatiori by $316,CWO^from'SI,164.936 to $1,480,936.arid by ejrtending ihe. w
dates from'Septemter^ 2^ 2023'to September 29. 2024. effective September 29; 2023 upon
Governor and 'Couridl approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as spedTted In the table
below.

.  Contractor
Nama

..Vendor
Code

Area Served Current
Amount

Increase
(OMtease)

ReviM
Amount

G&C
Approval

q::08/,14/19
(Item #10)

Archways 3101587
8001

Greater. Tllton
Area'

•>

$481,063. $.i3o:boo $611,063

A1:,02/17/21
(Item^O)
A2;ib/13/21
(Item #35) ■

A3: il/02/2'2
(Iterh #18)
0:09/18/19
(ltem#19)

Granite
Pathways

228900-
.8001 ■ Statewide $683,873 $186,000

/

$869,873

:A1:02/17/21
(Item #20)

A2; .10/13/21
(item #35)
A3; 11/02/22
.{Item #18)

Total: $1,164,936 $316,000 $1,480,938

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, v^h
the authority to adjust budget iline items within the price limitation and encumbrances between'
state fiscal years.through Budget Office,.if heeded.and justified.



Hi» Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and (he Horwreble Coundl

Page 2 of 2
•

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request Is Sole Source because the Department Is requesting to extend the
contracts, which were originally cornpetitively bid, beyond the completion dates and there are no
renewal options available. Due to the limited timeframe between the funding notification from the
Federal awarding agency and the contract expiration date, there are no known viable altematiyes
to these Contractors, who have expertise with workforce readiness programs that are specifically
tailored for individuals with opioid and/or stimulant use disorders. This request will allow the
Contractors to continue to serve current participants without gaps or delays in service and avoid
reduced or loss of access to these chtical supports.

The purpose of this request Is for the Contractors to continue providing vocational training
supports and workforce readiness programs for individuals with opioid and/or stimulant use
disorders who are in treatment and recovery settings, and wtio are seeking to join or re-join the
workforce. In coordination with the Recovery Friendly Workplace Initiative, which empowers
workplaces to provide support for individuals recoveiing from substance use disorder, services
provided through the contracts support individuals in attaining gainful employment, wtiich is a
crrtlcal aspect of continued recovery.

Approximately 100 Individuals will be served from September 29, 2023 to September 29,
.  2024, who, on average, engage with the vocational training supports and workforce readiness

programs 300 days during the ori^year period.

The Contractors will continue integrating workforce readiness programming into treatment
and recovery settings, including creating vocational profiles in order to determine an individual's
skill level, strengths, and readiness to gain employment. The Contractors will continue linking
individuals to appropriate vocational trainings by providing training stipends and other resources
that assist the individuals on the path to employment. Vocational training includes providing
assistance with resume writing, completing job applications, and improving interviewing skills.

The Department vyill continue to monitor services through the review of monthly data
reports and periodic surveys.

. Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, individuals in
recovery seeking a better quality of life and employment opportunities would have limited options.
Workforce participation and consistent employment are critical components of an individual's
ability to remain In recovery and gainfully participate in their communities.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number 93.788, FAIN's H79TI081685.
H79TI083326, H79T1085759, and TBD

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds vrill not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

?Yi« Dtparinxtnlof Htailh ond Human Strmcet'Miuion it to join conimunitUs and /omilits
in providing bpjfortuniliet for citiiens to achieve health and independence.



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

OS-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT, HHS:

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU 6f DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES, SOR GRANT
100% Federal Funds ■ • .

Vendor Name
*  ,'i

Archways Vendor #-310158 •

Stale Fiscal'

Year
Class / Account Class Tille • Job Number Current Amount.

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

'.2020 102-500731 " Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $70,081.00 $0.00 $70,081.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services. 92057040 $27,748.00 $0.00 , $27,748.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program .Services 92057046 $29,234.00 •  $0.00 $29,234.00

2021 • 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $66,667.00 $0.00 $66,667.00

2022 •  102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $33,333.00 $0.00 $33,333.00

2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $93,000.00 $0.00 $93,000.00

2023 074t500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $31,000.00 .$0.00 $31,000.00

2023 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057059 $97,500.00 ,  $0.00 $97,500.00

2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057059 $32,500.00 $97,500.00 $130,000.00

2025 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057059 $0.00 $32,500.00 $32,500.00

Sub Total $481,063.00 $130,000.00 $611,063.00

Vendor Name Granite Pathvirays • Vendor #228900

State Fiscal

• Year
Class / Account ^  Class Title Job Number'' Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $72,683.00 $0.00 $72,683.00

2021 . 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $45,338.00 $0.00 $45,338.00

2021 ■ 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sennces 92057046 $43,852.00 $0.00 $43,852.00

2021 ,102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services •  92057048 ■ $50,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00

'2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel '92057048 $139,500.00 $0.00 $139,500.00

2023 074-500585 Grants for-Pub Asst and Re!' 92057048 • $46,500.00 $0.00 $46,500.00

2023 074-500589 . Welfare Assistance 92057059 $139,500.00 $0.00 $139,500.00

2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057059 •  $46,500.00 $139,500:00 $186,000.00

2025 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057059 $0.00 $46,500.00 $46,500.00

Sub Total $683,873.00 $186,000.00 $869,873.00

I  Overall Total! . $1.164.936.00l t316,000.00l $1.430.936.00!

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1



OocuSign Envelope ID; 9EE25EAA-4D2D-4488-B67F-57046F80B89E

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #4

This Amendment to the Workforce Readiness and Vpcational Training Programs for Individuals with
Opioid" and/or Stimulant Use Disorder contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Granite Pathways ("the
-Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 18.2019 (Item #19), as amended on February 17,2021 (Item #20). as amended on October
1'3, 2021 (Item #35), and as amended on November 2. 2022 (Item #18). the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based ,upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation and modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29, 2024

-2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read: , .

$869,873 ■

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9. Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W..Moore. Director

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services by replacing It in its entirety with Exhibit A, Amendment #4,
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, to
read: "• .

1. This Agreement is funded by 100% Federal 'funds from the. State Opioid Response Grant, by
the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse arid Mental Health
Services Administration (SAMHSA), Assisted Listing Number (ALN) 93.788, as awarded on;

1.1. 09/30/2018, FAIN H79TI081685;

1.2. 09/30/2020. FAIN H79TI083326;

1.3. 08/09/2021. FAIN H79TI083326: '' -
T.4. 09/23/2022, FAIN H79T1085759; and .

1.5. Date and FAIN TBD pending receipt of the Notice of Award from SAMHSA, which is
anticipated to be effective 9/30/2023.

6. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment; Section 3, to
read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost 'reimbursement, basis for actual expenditures incurred In the
fulfillment of this Agreement, 'and-shall be in accordance with the approved lintfrk^, as
specified in Exhibit B-1 Budget-through Exhibit B-11. Amendment #4. SOR ill Budgfe^ j.

Granite Pathways A-S-1.2 C6ntfactoHnltial8 "^ .
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7. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Sectioh 5,
.Subsection 5.1, Paragraph 5.1.3, Subparagraph 5.1.3.1, to add Parts 5.1.3.1.9 through 5.1.3.1.11,
'as follows:

■ 4.1.3.1.9. Promotional items. Including, but not limited to. clothing and commemorative items
with added logos for distribution to clients and the community. Including but not limited
to. pens, mugs/cups, folders/folios, lanyards, and conference bags. See 45 CFR

'  75.421(e)(3)

4.1.3.1.10. Direct payments to Individuals to enter treatment or continue to participate in
prevention or treatment services. See 42 U.S.C. § I320a-7b

4.1.3.1.11. Sterile needles or syringes for the hypodermic injection of any illegal drug.

8. Add Exhibit 8-10, Amendment #4. SOR IH Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

9. Add Exhibit B-11, Amendment #4, SOR III Budget, which is attached hereto and Incorporated by
reference herein.

Granite Pathways
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All.terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by.this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective September 29, 2023, upon Governor and
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date \vritten below.

■  ' State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

9/5/2023

Date

—D«cuSlgA«4by;

' ■■'ro9PpacicaM4g:———vJame: l^3as. fox
Title; Director

Granite Pathways

9/S/2023

Date
G

OocuSton*^ toy:

Narne!^^®"'^^^ srezenoff
Title: Authorized Representative

Granite Pathways

RFP-2O19-0DAS-12-WORKF.bl-AO4

A-S-1.2

Page 3 of 4



DocuSign Envelope 10: 9EE25EAA-4D2D<4466-867F-57O46Fd0Be9E

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. , ' - ' '

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL :•

•DocuSigntd by:

9/5/2023

Date Namen<OD^yrt Cuanno- -

Title:
Attorney

1 hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Granite Pathways
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I  '*

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs
for individuals with OUD

Exhibit A- Amendment #4

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.,

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements.under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has identified" the
.Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

1.4. The Contractor shall provide Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training
Programs for a minimum of ,one Hundred (100) individuals with Opioid Use
Disorder and Stirriulant Use Disorder (OUD/StimUD) in the Seacoast region.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall ensure individuals who participate in Workforce
Readiness and Vocational Training programs are referred to treatment and
recovery services when applicable.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide workforce readiness programrhing to individuals
with OUD/StimUD who are receiving treatment or recovery support services.
The Contractor shall ensure workforce readiness programming includes, but is
not limited to:

2.2.1. Job specific skills training. v.

2.2.2. Resume and cover letter assistance. . .

2.2.3. ■ Communication skills.

2.2.4. Time management skills.

2.2.5.- Budgeting and financial management skills. - -

2.2.6. Customer service training.

2.2.7. Job retention approaches.

2.2.8. Networking skills.

2.2.9. Application and interview assistance, including mock interviews.

2.2.10. Connections to employment resources.
OS

:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs
.for.lndividuals with ODD

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure the facility is open weekdays from 8:30 am,
Eastern Standard Time (EST), until each-evening's programming ends and on
Saturdays frorn 8:00 am until 2:30 pni (EST).

2.4. The Contractor shall recruit Individuals through methods, that include, but are .
not limited to:

■ 2.4.1. Social media. *

2.4.2. Regional Providers.

2.4.3. , Doorways. . -

2.4.4. Community rriembers.

2.4.5. Employer groups.

2.5. The Contractor shall implement a process to identify, recruit and engage
individuals with an OUD/StlmUD, including individuals not currently receiving
services from the Contractor, who may be interested in pursuing employment
and/or educational opportunities or who may be underemployed and are
' seeking a living wage.

2.6. The Contractor shall screen potential center participants with OUD/StimUD
who are unemployed, underemployed or seeking to make a career transition-
and schedule same.day appointments, when available, with the Employment
Specialist to initiate the intake process.

2.7. The Contractor shall provide information regarding its workforce, job placement,
and employer education and support programs via mailings and presentations
to community partners through meetings and other relevant forums to describe
its workforce program and to promote the quality of its labor pool.

2.8. The Contractor shall refer participants to treatment to and/or accept referrals
from:

. 2.8.1. Treatment providers. V '

2.8.2. Recovery housing for mothers and children.

2.8.3. Other recovery houses in their region.

.  2.9. The Contractor shall ensure all participants are advised, informed or made
' aware of all services available. Including but not limited to:

2.9.1. Recovery housing.

2.9.2. Aftercare services.
r/

2.9;3. Employrrient support services.

2.10. The Contractor shall ensure all services are provided in a manner that
demonstrates operations are mariaged according to the five (5) tenants oj^:"

-

Granite Pathways ^Exhibit A-Amendment #4 Contractor Initials v—
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Hurrian Services
Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs
for Individuals with ODD

Exhibit A > Amendment #4

2.10.1. Urgency.

. 2.10.2. Ownership.

2.10.3. Learn by. doing. „

2.10.4. Lifelong learning. ^

■  2.10.5. Motivation through productivity. *

2.11. The Contractor shall accept evaluation results from referring providers and
have an intake process that includes the following:

2.11.1. Psychosocial evaluation;

2.11.2. Career essentials review; and

2.11.3. Comprehensive service plan.

2.12.- The Contractor shall determine appropriate,level of program engagement and
activities 'for each participant based on a comprehensive intake/assessment
process, current life circumstances, and current level of treatment, if any, which
may Include: y '

2.12.1. Recent intensive treatment defined as fifteen (15) or more hours per
week that results in an individual being assigned to receive Work
Readiness 101/Career Exploration services.

2.12.2. Current non-intensive treatment defined as less than 15 hours per
week, that results in an individual receiving concurrent workforce

_  readiness activities and treatment hours erisuring workforce activities
are scheduled in consideration of the participant's treatment schedule
to avoid any scheduling conflicts.

2.12.3. No active treatment that results in the individual being placed on a fast-
track ensuring other ancillary barriers to employment are addressed
and accelerated suite of job preparation services are provided to rtiove
individuals rapidly to job placement.

2.13. The Contractor shall ensure services are offered in a flexible manner in multiple.
■ modalities including, but not limited to:

.2.13.1.- Instructor led, .class-based training.' ^

2.13.2. Group-based activities.

2.13.3. One-on-one training sessions.

2.14- The Contractor shall ensure individuals are enrolled in other services and
supports that aid individuals in recovery who are seeking to enter the workforce
for which they are eligible, as appropriate, including, but not limited to:

-D9

I
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness and Vocatlorial Training Programs
for Individuals with OUD

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.14M. The Community Development Finance Authority Recovery Friendly
■  ̂ Worl^place Initiative Program Development Pilot.

2.14.2. The ' NH Department of Labor National Health Emergency
Demonstration grant for individuals in recovery.

2.14.3. The Governor's Recovery Friendly Workforce Initiative.

2.14.4. NH Works.

2.14.5. NH Employment Security.

2.15. The Contractor shall provide Power of Possible Work Readiness curriculum,
which includes but is hot limited, to:

2.15.1. Access to 240 hours of job search/job readiness content via FedCap
'  Academy, an online web-based learning management tool available

24 hours a day/7 days a week.

2.15.2. Participation in employer-led mock interviews.

2.15.3. 60 hours of dynamic instruction and time management activities
designed to produce "employer ready'- job seekers.

2.15.4. Get Hired!

2.15.5. Exploring My Opportunities.

'2.15.6. Power Interviewing.

.2.15.7. Power of Personality.

2.15.8. Positive Me!

2.16. The Contractor shall utilize Single Stop USA to determine if an individual is
eligible for Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP), Women.
Infants, and Children (WIC), Earned Income Tax Credit (EITC) or Child Care
Tax Credit (CTC). health insurance, and/or Low Income Energy Assistance.

'2.17. The Contractor shall collaborate with local" higher educational and vocational
■  training institutions.in order to identify and provide vocational training and
educational opportunities to individuals in the treatment and/or recovery service
.setting.

2.18. The Contractor shall conduct a comprehensive vocational assessment to
determine an individual's level of skills, strengths, and readiness to seek and
enter the workforce ensuring the process is based on a person-centered focus
grounded in individual choice and self-determination.

2.19. The Contractor shall utilize Diagnostic Vocational Evaluation (DVE) for
•conducting vocational assessments. DVE is an assessment provided to
Individuals to determine the following: •

OS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs
for Individuals with OUD

Exhibit-A - Amendment #4

2.19.1. Vocational interests;

:  2.19.2. Aptitudes;' .

;  . 2.19.3. Skills;

2.19.4. Capabilities; and

2.19.5. Educational attainment levels.

2.20. The Contractor shall utilize the vocational assessment and participant inputs to
design individual vocational plans of action that include appropriate levels of
services and resources, including but not limited to:

2.20.1. Resume writing. " •

2.20.2. Job application writing.

2.20.3. Improvirig client interviewing skills.

2.20.4. Motivational interviewing to increase a client's willingness and
readiness to seek education or employment opportunities may also be
required.

2.21. The Contractor shall ensure all staff are trained in Motivational Enhancement

Techniques (MET), which includes but is not limited to:

2.21.1., Open-ended Question, Affirmations, Reflective Listening and
Summarizing (OARS).

2.21.2. Four Motivational Interviewing principles: Express Empathy, Roll with
Resistance, Support Self-efficacy, and Develop Discrepancy.

2.22. The Contractor shall ensure individuals are assessed for and receive, as
appropriate:

.2.22.1. Financial assistance for transportation to classes,

2.22.2. Educational supplies, including but not limited to textbooks, as
necessary.

2.22.3. Access to computers and support for electronic job search functions.

2.23. The Contractor shall establish an employment plan for each participant that
addresses previous barriers to employment, including but not limited to:

2.23.1. Poor job history.

2.23.2. Substance use disorder impacting performance.

2.23.3. Criminal background.

2.24. The Contractor shall provide individuals with external employment resources
and assist with gaining access to employment through activities that include,
but are not lirnited to: . „ os
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New Hampshire Department of Health iand Human Services
Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Prograrhs
for individuals with QUO

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.24.1. Providing transportation assistance to job fairs.

2;24.2. Providing opportunities to meet with job coaches.

■  , 2.24.3. Providing individuals with job-shadowing and intemship opportunitles.

2.25. The Contractor shall ensure individuals seeking vocational training or career
development education are provided with resources that support those goals,
including but not limited to;

,2.25.1. Training and.class stipends.

2.25.2. Financial aid and grant applications.

■ 2.25.3. Program application submission assistance.

2.26. The Contractor shall coordinate with the Recovery Friendly Workforce Initiative
to offer opportunities for local businesses to engage with potential employees
in recovery as a means to reduce.stigma, identify employment opportunities,
and increase the number of busiriesses identifying as Recovery Friendly.

2.27. The Contractor shall utilize a sector-based approach to job development and
.  target a diverse range of businesses ensuring activities include, but are not

limited to:

2.27.1. Conducting personalized initial outreach to a business' hiring
iTianagers. - ,

2.27.2. Explaining the, purpose and benefits of the Initiative, including but not
.  limited to financial incentives that are available.

2.27.3. .Requesting a meeting to explore the possibility of enlisting the
business in the effort..

2.28. The Contractor shall educate employers on services available to them for hiring
individuals which shall include, but is not-limited to:

2.28.1. State's transitional benefits.

2.28.2. Support with transportation.
s  ̂

2.28.3. Retention case management.

2.28.4. Personal development platform.

2.28.5. Fedcap/lycademy.

3. Staffing

3.1. The Contractor shall ensure the Program Director manages the day-to-day
program, operations which includes, but is not limited to:

-3.1.1. Contracts.

3.1.2. Space. —OS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
VVorkforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs
for Individualswith OUD

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

3.1.3. Human resources.

3.1.4. Budgeting. . .

3.1.5. Ensuririg efficiency of workflow.

3.1.6. Ensuring implementation and operation of all program services and
operations.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure the Employment Specialist job duties include, but
are not limited to: . '

3.2.1. Administering intakes and assessments.

3.2.2. Coordinating employment-related activities and offsite trainings.

3.2.3. Providing barrier remediation services.

3.2.4. Providing employment and training related activities and supportive
services in a classroom environment.

3.3. The Contractor shall ensure the Job Developer identifies, develops and
maintains relationships with employers in order to create employment or on-
the-job/job shadowing opportunities for individuals.

4. Reporting

4.1. The Contractor shall submit monthly dat'a requirements reports to the Department
on the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month in a format approved by
the Department for programs including, but not limited to:

4.1.1. Number and type of recruitment activities for individuals with an
OUD/StimUD. . '

4.1.2. Number of individuals in the program with demographics such as age,
gender, race, and ethnicity.

4.1.3. Vocational services provided per individual.

4.1.4. Start date of employment per individual.

4.1.5. Type of position per individual.

4.1.6. Name of employers per individual.

4.1.7. Length of employment per individual.

. 4.1.8. Number of employers recruited per month.

, 4.1.9. Types of supports provided to employers to recruit, hire, and retain
individuals in recovery per month.

4.2. The Contractor shall prepare and submit ad hoc data reports, respond to
periodic surveys, and other data collection requests as deemed necessary by

Granile Pathways ^ ExHibil A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs
for Individuals with OUD

Exhibit A ~ Amendment #4

the Department and/or Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration (SAMHSA).

.  • ^

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall ensure ninety percent (90%) of indiyiduals complete
provided training programs.

5.2. The Contractor shall ensure seventy-five percent (75%) of individuals gain
employment.

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure contact and coordination with one hundred percent
(100%) of Recovery Friendly Workforce Initiative employers.

5.4. The Contractor shall collaborate with .the Department to enhance contract
rhanagenient, improve results and adjust program delivery and policy based on
successful outcomes.

6. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

The Contractor shall establish formal information sharing and referral
agreements with the Doorways in compliance with all applicable confidentiality
laws, including 42 CFR Part 2 in order to receive payments for services funded
with SOR resources. '

The Contractor shall ensure all referrals of individuals to the Doorways are:

6.2.1. Completed and documented in the individual's file; and

6.2.2. Available to the Department as requested and as heeded for payment
of invoices for services provided through SOR-funded initiatives.

The Contractor shall ensure individuals receiving sei^ices. rendered from SOR
funds, have a documented history or current diagnoses of OUD/StimUD or are
at risk for such.

The Contractor shall coordinate corhpletion of Government Performance
Results Act (GPRA) initial interview and associated follow-ups at six (6) months
and discharge for individuals referenced previously.

The Contractor shall ensure that SOR grant funds are not used to purchase,
prescribe, or provide cannabis, or to provide treatment-using cannabis. The
Contractor shall ensure:

6.5.1. Treatnient in this context includes the treatment of OUD/StimUD.

6.5.2. Grant funds are not provided to any individual who or organization
that provides or permits cannabis use for the purposes of treating
substance use or mental health disorders; and

Granite Pathways
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Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs
for Individuals with OUD

Exhibit A - Ameridment #4

7^.

6.5.3. This cannabis restriction applies to all subcontracts and
Memorandums of Understanding that receive SOR funding.

6.6. The Contractor shall ensure Naloxone kits are available to.individuals utilizing
SOR funding.

.. 6.7. If the Contractor intends to distribute test strips, the Contractor shall provide a
test strip utilization plan to the Department for approval prior to implementation.

■ The Contractor shall ensure the utilization plan includes, but is not limited to:

6.7.1. Internal policies for the distribution of strips:

6.7.2. Distribution methods and frequency; and ■'
6.7.3. Other key data as requested by the Department.

-6,8. The Contractor shall provide services as referenced in Section .2 to eligible
individuals vvho: ''

6.8.1. Receive Medication forOpioid Use Disorder (MOUD) services from
other providers, including the individual's primary care provider;

6.8.2. Have co-occurring mental health disorders; or
6.8.3. Are on medications and are taking those medications as prescribed

regardless of the class of medication.
■6.9. The Contractor shall ensure individuals who refuse to consent.to information

sharing with the Doorways do not receive services utilizing SOR funding.
6.10. The Contractor shall ensure individuals who rescind consent to information

sharing with the Doorways do not receive any additional services utilizing SOR
funding.

'6.11. . The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department and other SOR funded
Contractors, as requested and directed by the Department, to improve GPRA
collectiori-

6.12. The Contractor shall comply with all appropriate Department. State of NH,
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), and
other Federal terms, conditions, and requirements, and as amended, and shall
collaborate with the Department to understand the aforesaid. .

6.13. In order to receive payments for services provided through SOR grant funded
initiatives, the Contractor shall establish formal information sharing and referral
agreements with all Regional Hubs for substance use services that comply with
all applicable confidentiality laws, including 42 CFR Part 2.

6.14. The'Contractor shall complete client' referrals to applicable Regional Hubs for
substance use services within two (2) business days of a client's admission to
the program. -

OS
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Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs
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Exhibit A - Amendment #4

.6.15. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and implementation
plans associated with SOR funded activities to ensure services are in place
within thirty (30) days of the contract effective date.

6.15.1. If the Contractor is unable to offer services within the required
■  timeframe, the Contractor shall submit an updated implementation
plan to the Department for approval to outline anticipated service start
dates.. .

6.15'.2. The Department reserves the right to terminate the contract and
liquidate unspent funds if services are not in place within ninety (90)
days of the contract effective date.

Granite Pathways
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Comp/ete one budget form for each budgot porlod.

Contractor Name: Crentte Pathways

Budget Request for: Workforce Read/ness S> VoeationalProgams for
fndt/fduals wHh OUD

Budget Period SFY24-{Sopfombor 30, 2023'Juno 30, 2024)

Indirect Cost Rate (if awtllcable) 6%

Line Item
Program Cost •

Funded byDHHS

Program Cost-
Contractor Share/

Match

TOTAL Program

Cost

S86.150

1. Salary & Wages

SO $86,150

2. Fringe Benefits S29.291 SO $29,291

3. Consultants $1,800 SO S1.800

4. Equipment Si ,250 SO $1.250

S.(a) Supplies-Educational $731 so $731

5.(b) Supplies-Lab SO SO $0

5.(0) Supplies • Pharmacy SO $0 SO

5.(d) SuppCes-Medical SO SO $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $450 SO $450

6. Travel $950 'SO $950

7. Software '$500 $0 $500

8. (a) Other - Mafltetinfl/Communlcatlons SSOO $0 $500

6. (b) Otiter - Education and Training- staff $515 SO SSIS

8. (c) Other - Other (ptease specify)

insurance $1,200 SO S1.200

Occuparycy $8.640 SO $8,640

Other (ploase specify) SO SO $0

Other (please specify) SO SO SO

9. Subcontracts SO $0 SO

Total Direct Costs $131,977 $7,500 $139,477

Total (ndirecl Costs $7,523 SO S7.523

TOTAL $139,500 S7.S00 $147,000

Contractor Iniiials

p
Page 1 of 1 Date

9/5/2023
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8T.1.0 Exhibit B-11, Amendment »4, SOR m Budget RFP.2019-80AS-12-WORP-01-A04

Now Hampshire Oepartmertt of Health and Human Services -

CcmplM ono budgal form for oach budget period.

Contractor Name: GranHo Pathways

■

•  ' Budget Request for: Workforce Readiness S Voca(ik>nB/ Progams for

Indfyiduals with

Budget Period t ̂I'^d-Sepfember 29, 2024)

'V Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 5-7% across both budget periods for entire amendment total ■

Lino Item -
Program Cost •

Funded by OHHS

Program Cost •
Contractor Share/

Match

TOTAL Program

Cost

1. Salary ft Waoes

.  S28.811'  SO $28,811

2. Frtnge Benefits $9,796 $0 $9:798

3. Consultants S400 $0 $400

4. Equipment $500 $0 $500

5.(a) Supolies • Educational $200 SO $200

S.fb) SuDDlies • Lab SO SO $0

5.(0) Supplies - Pharmacv '' .  SO SO $0

$.(d) Suooiies-Medicar . SO $0 $0

5.(0) Supoeas Office $250 SO $250

6. Travel S306 SO $306

7. Software • .. ■ $200 50 $200

8. (a) Other - M8i5celing/Convnunicatk>ns SO SO $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Trainina $250 $0 $250

8. (c) Other - Other (please specifv)

hsuronce ,  . $400 SO $400

Occupancy $2,880 $0 $2,660

Otfier (pfeose spedfy) SO $0 $0

Oiher (plaaso spedM $0 so SO

9. Subcontracts $0 $0 $0

Total Direct Costs $43,993 $0 $43,993

Total Indirect Costs $2,508 $2,500 $5,006

TOTAL $46,500 $2,500 $49,000

Page 1 of 1

ContrDClor InitialsGi
Date

9/5/202}
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHfRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORaL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301

003-2?l-9544 MOO-SS2-3J4S Eit 9544

Pax: 003-271-4332 TOO Accna: I-800.735-2964 irirw.dhhvDh.BOT

October 11, 2022

His Exceliency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, to
enter into Retroactive. Solo Source amendments to existing contracts with the Contractore listed
below to continije providing Worltforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for individuals
with opioid and/dr stimulant use disorder, by increasing the total price limitation by $316,000 from
$84B,936 to $1,164,936 and by extending the completion dates from Septerriber 29, 2022 to
September 29. 2023, effective retroactive to September 29, 2022 upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as epecifted In the table
below.

Contractor

Name

Vendor

Code

Area Se^ed Cuffen!

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised ■

Amount

G&C

Approval

Archways
(FKA: Greater

Tilton Area

Family
Resource

Center)

297434-

R001

Greater Tilton
Area

.  $351,083 $130,000 $481,063

0; 08/14/19

(ltem>10)

A1:02/17/21

(item P20)

A2;10/13/21

(ttemP35)

Granite

Pathways.
Concord NH

228900-

6001
Statewide $497,873 $168,000 $683,073

0: 09/18/19

(ItemPIS)

A1:02/17/21

(Item P20)

A2:10/13/21

(Item #35)

Total: $848,936 $316,000 $1.1M,936

Funds are available In the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are anticipated
to be available In State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds
in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitatioh
.and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.



HIa &xc«llftncy. Governor Christopher!. Sununu
en(} the Hortomtrio Council

Pag8 2of.2

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroacttve because the Department was notified by the Federal awarding
agency on September 23, 2022 of the availability of funding beyond the current contract completion
date of September 29, 2022. Due to the delayed notification from the Federal awarding agency, the
Department was unable to present this request to the Governor and Council prior to the contract'
expiring.

This request is Sole Source because the Department is seeking to extend the contract
beyond the completion dates end there are no renewal options available. Due to the limited
timeframe between the funding 'notification from the Federal awarding agency and the contract
expiration date, the Department was not able to re-procure for these services. Any delays or gaps
in service provtsion may result in reduced or loss of access to services and supports for Individuals

In need of these critical services.

The purpose of this request is for the Contractors to continue providing vocational training
supports and workforce readiness programs for individuals with opioid and/or stimulant use disorders
who are in treatment and recovery settings and who are seeking to join and/or re-join the workforce.
In coordination with the Recovery Friendly Workplace Initiative, v^lch empowers workplaces to
provide support for people recovering from substance use disorder, services provided through the
contracts support individuals in attaining gainful employment, vrhich is a critical aspect of continued
recovery.

Approximately 400 individuals will be served from September 29, .2022 to September 29,
2023. - • ■

The Contractors will continue integrating workforce readiness programming into treatnfwnt
and recovery settings, including creating vocational profiles in order to determine an Individual's skill
level, strertgths, and readiness to gain employment. The Contractors^ll continue linking Individuals
to appropriate vocational trainings by providing training stipends and other resources that assist the
individuals on the path to employment. Vocational training includes providing assistance wHh resume
wrrting, completing job applications, and improving interviewing skills.

The Department will continue to monitor services through the review of data reports and
periodic surveys.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, individuals in recovery
seeking a better quality of life and employment opportunities would have limited options. Workforce
participation and cor^istent employment are critical components of an individual's ability to remain
In recovery and meaningfully participate in their communities.

Area served; Statewide,

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.788, FAIN #H79TI085759

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program..

■Respectfully submitted.

LoriA. Shibinette
Commissioner

Tht Oeporiment of Health ond Human Seruicee' Miuton ii tojoui communiliis and fomUiet
in pnuidini oppptinnUitt [ortxtittnt tc cefiieve health and independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISC/^ DETAILS SHEET

OS-92'92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT.

HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES. SOR GRANT

100% Federsl Funds

Vendor Nafn Archways i' ' ' Vendor« 297434

Stale Fiscal.

Year
Class / Account Class THIe -x, Jot) Number Current Amount

maease

fOecreasel
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Pfogram Services 92057040 $70,081.00 $0.00 $70,081.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sennces 92057040 $27,748.00 $0.00 $27,748.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proorom Sorvlcos 92057046 $29,234.00 • $0.00 $29,234.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92057048' ' $66,667.00 SO.OO $66,667.00

2022 ,102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057046 $33,333.00 SO.OO $33,333.00

2022 074-500565 Grants for Pub Asst and Ret 92057048 $93,000.00 SO.OO $93,000.00

2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub AssI end Re) 62057046 $31,000.00 $0.00 $31,000.00

2023 074-500569 Welfare Assistance 92057056 SO.OO $97,500.00 $97,500.00

2024 074-500569 Welfare Ass'slance 92057058 ■ $0.00 .  $32,500.00 $32,500.00
Sub Total $351,063.00 $130,000.00 $461,063.00

Vendor Nem
.X.. ..

Granite Pathways Vendor P 228900

Stale Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

fDecroase)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $72,683.00 $0.00 .  $72,663.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proflram Services 92057040 $45,333.00 $0.00 $45,336.00

2021 102-500731 . Contracls for Program Services 92057046 •  $43,852.00 $0.00 $43,852.00

2021 .102-500731 Contracts (or Program Services 92057046 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,00000

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $50,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00

2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Ret 92057048 $139,500.00 SO.OO $139,500.00

2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Ret 92057046 $46,500.00 $0.00 $46,500.00

2023 074-500569 Welfare Assistance 92057056 $0.00 $139,500.00 $139,500.00

2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057058 $0.00 $46,500.00 $46,500:00

Sub Total $497,873.00 $186,000.00 $683,673.00

Ovorail Total $848.936.001 S316.000.00| $1.164.936.00

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail ^
Page 1 of 1
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StATE OP NEW HAMPSHOUi:

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

mvmONFORBEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301 *
603.271-9544 |.E0D4S2-334Sfiit 9544

F*i:603*27l4333 TDD Acrai: l-SOO-735*2964' wirw,dhb».ob.gev

September 3. 2021

Mis Excefiency. Govcmof Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Stale House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

r^qu^steo action

.  Authorize the Def^rtimeht of Health and Human Services, DMsion for Behavioral Health,
to amend existing contracts with the vendors listed below to continue providing Wortcforce
Readrness and Vocational Tralnlrig Programs for Individuals with Opioid end/or Silmulanl'Use
Disorder, by exercising renewal options by IncreOTing the tote! price limlietion by $310,000 from
$538,936 to $848,936 and by extending the completion dates from September 29. 2021 to
September 29, 2022 effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The individual contracts wsre approved b/ Govemor and Council as specified In the table
below.

VortdorNamo Vendor

Coda

Area Served Current
Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revtood

Amount

G&C

Approval

Greater TUton

Area Family
Resource

Center.
Tillon/NH

297434-

R001

Grsstsr Tlrton .

Area
$227,063 $124,000 $351,063

0: 00/14/19

Item 810

Al:02/17/21

Item 820

Granite
Palhweys,
Concord/NH

226900-
B001

Stflt^de $311,873 $186,000 $497,673

0:09/18/19

Item 819

A1:02/17/21

Item 820

Total: $038,936 $310,000 $848,038

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscar Years 2022 and 2023. with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the.price limitation and encumbrances tMtween
state frscal years through the. Budget Office, if need^ and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION >

The .purpose of this request is to have the Contractors' continue to provide vocational
training supports and worWorce'readiness programs for Individuals with Opioid and/or Stimulant
Use Disorders who are In treatmeht and recovery settings end who are seeking to join and/or re-

ThttkpOtUntnl o/Wcoldt q/wT WumOA Strliou'Mimon is lajoi'n communitia attd fomilits
in pfovidint opporiunilin/b' dilstns to othitiM heoUh and indtptnatnct.
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Hb Ejcoetlenicy. Governor C^iUtopher T. Sununu
' onO (he Honoreble Council
Page 3 of 2

Join the woi1(foroe. Services provided through the contracte support Indivtdusis In attaining gainful
employment, which Is a.critical aspect of continued sobriety.

.  . Approximately 20D individuals will be served from September 30. 2021 to.September 29.
2022. ■

the Contractors viril] continue Integrating workforce readiness programming Irib treatment
artd recovery settings. Including creating vocational profiles in order to determjne an Individual's
skill level, strengths, and readiness to gain employment. The Contractors will continue linking
Indlvidudls to appropriate vocational trainings by providing training stipends arnj other resources
that assist the Individuals on the path to employment: Vocationa] training may Include, but is not
limited to. providing assistance wtth resume writing, completing job appDceilons. and improving
Interylewlng akllls.

The Department will continue monitofing contracted services by revtewtrig rnonthty end
quarterly reports eubmitted by the Contractors and monitor the following performance measures:

•  Ensuring ninety percent (90%) of individuals complete provided training programs.

•  Ensuring seventy-five percent (75%) of Individuals gain employment.

•  Ensuring contect end coordination wtth one hundred percent (100%) of Recovery
Friendly Workforce Initiative ernployere.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract language! Paragraph 2.
Renewal of the ortginai contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to
two (2) additional yeare, contingent upon eatisfactory delivery of eervlces, available funding,
agreemerrt of the parties and Govamor and Council approval. The Department Is exercising ha
option to renew service for one (1) year of the one (1) available year remaining.

Should the Governor end Council not authorize this request, individuais In recovery
seeking a better quality of life and employment opportunhies would have limited options.
Wortdorce participation and consistent employment are critical components of en Individual'e
ability to remain In recovery and meanirtgfully participate in their communities.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: Assistance Listing #93.768, FAIN #H79TI083326.

In (he even! that the Federal Funds become no.longar evellabie, General Funds will not
be requested to eupport this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shiblnette
Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

OV92-02 020910-T0400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT. HHS:

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES. 80R GRANT

100% Federal Pundf

Vendor Nsfflo . Orealor Tiiton Area Fomiiy Resource Cenier Vendor ff 207434 .

SiBtaFlacaJ

Year •
Class / AcoouAi Class TlOa Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Ro^4sed Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proorom Servlcos 02057040 $70,081.00 $0.00 $70,081.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts (or Prooram ServlCM 02057040 $27,748.00 $0.00 $27,748.00

2021 102-900731 'Contracts (or Proprsin Services 92097048 $20,234.00 $0.00 $29,234.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts (or Proorsm Services 02057048 $86,687.00 $0.00 $88,867.00

2022 .  102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92057048 $33,333.00 so.oo $33,333.00

2022 074-S005SS Crsrtcs for Pub Assi and Re! 020S704B $0.00 $93,000.00 $93,000.00

2023 074-900989 Grarus (or Pub Assi and He! 92057048 $0.00 .$31,000.00 $31,000.00

'.l Sut> ToW t237.09XOO If24.00d.00 |]5(.O03.PO

iVcndor Name Granite Painways Vendor 0 228900

Slate Fiscal

Year
Class/Accbunl ' Class Title Job Numbar Currant Amounl

Increase

fOecreaso)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Propram Services 920S7040 $72,683.00 $0.00 $72,663.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts lor Program Services 92057040 $45,336.00 $0.00 $45,338.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts lor Program Services' . 92057046 ' $43,852.00 $0.00 $43,852.00

2021 102-500731 Contrects lor Propram Services 920S7O48 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

2022 102-500731 Conirocls for Propram Sorvicos 92057046 $50,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00

2072 074-900585 '  Grants fpi Pub Asst end Ra) 92057048 SO.OO $139,500.00 $139,500.00

2023 .  074-500585 Grants fc Pub Asst and Re) 92057048 $0.00 $48,500.00 $46,500.00

Sub Total IJf1.873.00 S199.000.00 $497,873.00

■■■ Overall Total $538,936.00 $310,000.00 $848.938.00l

••

«ia

V«

Governor and Council Leiier Atlachment

Financial Ocuti

Page 2 of 1
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state OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

OEPARTMENTOF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VJORAL HEALTH.

129 PLEASANT STREET. CO^'COW>. Ml OJJOr
60i^27l.9S44 lt(lO-S$2-JM5Eit.9S44

Fei: (0>-27M))2 TDDAmoi: l-i00-1J5-2964 w*w^hTu.ob.|Ov

Oecpmber 3, 2020

Mis Excellency. Governor Chrfstopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council ^

Slate House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTiON

Authorize the Ocparlment of HeaNh end Human Services. Division for Behavioral Heallh.
to Retroactively amend exislinfl contracts with the vendors listed below to continue providing
WorKforce Readiness end Vocational Training Programs for individuals with Opioid Use Disorder,
by exercising renewal options by increasing the total price limileiion by $204,962 from
$333,974.46 to $530,936.48 and by extending the completion dates from September 29. 2020 to
Sepiember 29. 202t effective retroactive to September 29. 2020 upon Governor end Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

• The individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as speclTiod In the table
below.

Vendor Nemo Vendor

Code

Aroo Served Current

•• Amount

IncroBOO

(Oecroeee)
Rovleed

Amount

G&C

. Approval

Grealsr TIRon

Area Family
Resource

Center,
Tlllo/VNH

297434-

R001

. Orealer TUlon
Area

$138,740 $88,323 $227,063
0:08714/19.
Item 010 '

Granlie

Pathways,
Concord/NH

228900-

8001
Statewide $195,234.46 $116,639 $311,873.46

0:09/18/19,

Item 019

:u

.  Total: $313,974.48 $204,962 $5)6,916.48

Funds are available In the following accounts for Slate Fiscal Year 2021. and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022. upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in Ihe future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line Items
within the price limitation and encumbrences between state flscat years through the Budget Office,
if needed end justified.' ^

Seeattachedflscal details.

Tht Depoftmini ol lltolUt end Human Miuicn I# ta/ain tommuni\itten4feniUi9i
in prauiAini appafiuniiirt/of eiiUtm la oef>UtM Uotih end indtptndtnet.;
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KIi CxttOency. Op««mor CMttapher T. Sunvnu
'  em) (he HoAOTBtte Co4^d}
P096 3 of 3

EXPU^HATIPN .

TM6 request IB Rdtrosctlve becaufifi Guffldent funds In Sfete Ptocat Year Z021 vyere not
eveilabie In the operatlrtg budget coneJdering the grent enftouni swerded, and due to delay by the
Substartoe Abuse and Mental Heetth Services Administratior) (SAMHSA) in approving New
Hampfihire'6 roqueete for cor^tinued State Opioid Response Grant funding, the efforts to add the

. state eppfoprtat^ns were deferred.
The purpose of this request is to continue to provide vocetional training supports artd

workforoe readiness programs for tndividuels v>rHh Opioid Use.Oisorders who are in treatment artd
recovery settings arwl who are seeking to join ond/or rejoin the workforoe. Employment has long
beeri recogn'aed as a critical'etsment In the recovery process, providing people wtth hope artd
opportunity to move fqiward Jn the recovery process determined by prtndptos of self-
determination.

Approxlmotely 100 Individuals wit! be served from September 20.2020 to September 20.
2021.

This vendors wilt contlnrue intiegralino wortdorce readiness programming Inio treatment
and recovery settings. Including creating vocational profiles In order to determine an IndMdual'e .
skill level, strengths, end repdiness to gain employment. The vendors will link tfie Indivlduol to
appropriate vocational trainings with the 'provision of training stipends and other resources to aid'
the I'ndMdua) on the path to employment. Vocational training may Include, but is not limited to.
essiatance with resume writing, completing jpb spplications. and Improving Interviewing ekiils.

Unique to these services Is a robust level of dient-speciflc data (hat wili be available, which
will be ooltected in coordination with the Regional Ooohways. The Stste Opiold Response grant
requires that all individuals served receive e comprehensive assessmertt st several time Intervals,
speclftcally at Intake', six (6) months after Intake, and upon discharge. Through coliaboretrve
agreements with the vendora under these contracta.-the Regional Doorways gsther data on cllentr
related o^Acomes tncludirrg; recovery status, criminal justice Involvement, employmer^t, artd
houalrtg needs at (he time Intervals fisted above. The data collected enables the Department (0
measure short and long-term outcomes sssodated with Stale Opiold Respohae-fvnded Initiatives
end to determine which programs are generating the beat resiita for the dients served.

The (Apartment will monitor contracted sarvloes using the following performance
rheasures;

•  The Contrectqra will ensure ninety percent (80%) of individuals complete provided
training prograrns.

•  The ContrBCtore wili ensure eeventy-frve percent (75%) of Individuals gain
employment.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1. Revislona to Standard Contract language. Paragraph 2.
Renewal of the original contracts, the psrtlcs have the option to extend (he agreements for.up to
two (2) addrtional years, contingent upon satisfactory delrvery of servlcea. available funding,
ogreemeni of the parties end Governor and Coimci) epprbvet. The Department is exercJaing Its
option to renew aervices for one (1) of the two (2) yosra availabta.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, individuals In
recovery seeking e better quality of life and employment opportuniliea would have limited options.
Woiirforce participation ami consistent employment ere crfilcai components of an Individuarb
at>lilty to remain In recovery and meaningfully participate in their communities.
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Pege 3 of 3 '

Area served: SiBtowldo.

■  SourceofFundsiCFOAm.Tea. FAtNdTlO816e50ndFAINrriOB332e.

(n the event that the Fedcrel Funds become no longer available. General Funds Wll not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfulty eubmitted.

Lori A. Shiblnette
Commtosioner
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0EPART4MSHT Of HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

COWMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS

SFY2C1I FINANCIAL DETAIL

OM WSmi»*TO«0 HEAim AND ftOQAL SERVlCeS. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF HKS:
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV OF BUREAUOF ORUO 4 ALCOHOL SERViCEVSTATC OPIOiO
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2020 102/M023) Centrem iDf Pnown SerHcM 920S7010 9110.992 (940.911) 9To.oai

202) 182/9002)1 Connco 10/^eorvn Swtoet S2092p(0 917.74S 90 927.748

tO)) 102/900231 Contreat lor Ptoorwn Sentces- »20920i4 » 919.»4 >29.))4

.  toil 102/9402)1 Contreea lo> Prcn»em G<w4e»> 020S70<I 90 954,a7 955,557

101) 102/900231 Cenncu >or Preerem 910920*1 50 i)3.»»3 tll.SS)

: SuOToUl 91)0.740 9M.)2) 9227,05)

GWta Pftlwevt. CenoorO'HH v«Mere ,

Suio.FltCi)
*«w .

Oau/Acooinl Ctm THe, JObNurrper Cuiem Amowii Increase (OccreeM) ' R^seO Amount

2020 102/5002)1 . Co/McU ler nrsQivn Seivleet 92(»20t0 9149.S95 (977.21)) 972.58)

2021 102«307)1 Conerecu tor PiroerMTt Scrvicn 92052010 94UU 90 94S.))I

2021 102/900231 CorvKU lor Progrant Services 920920*5 90 94).I92. 94).8S2

2021 102/5007) > . C«r«rocti lor Proe/tfli Scri<oet 920970*1 90 9)W.0C0 9)00,000

2022 102/5002)1 Cont/DCU tor Proonm Scr%4c«» 920970*1 90 990.000 990.000

SuOToui 9199.2)4 9115.5)9 9)11.87)
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STaTC OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH A>^ HUMAN SERVICES
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August 2d. 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
"and the HonoraWe'Council '

State House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Aulhofize the Department of Health aryj Human Services Divisiori for Behavioral Health, to enter
into aflfcemenl with Grartiie Pathways (Vendor # 22096O-BOO1). 10 Ferry Street. Suite 319. Conwrd

■ NH 03301 in an amount not to exceed $105.234.40. to provide Workforce Readiness end Vocational
Training Programs for individuals wrth Opioid Use Disorder. eHectivo upon date of Goverrwr and Counal
approvat, through September 29. 2020. -100% Federal Funds.

Funds to supporl this request are aniicipaled to be available in the following account lor State
Fiscal Years 2020 and 202'! upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget; with authority to adjust amounts within the price limiiaiion and adjust encumbrances
between Stale Fiscal Years through the Budget Otfce. if needed and justified. _ .

05-95-92-920510.7040 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SV^
HHS: behavioral HEALTH OIV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES, STATE OPIOtO
RESPONSE GRANT

SUte Fiscal Year ClassfAccount Ciass.Title Job Number Total Amount

'2020 102-500731 Conuads for Prog Svc 92057040 $149,896-32

2021 .102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $45,338.16

-  -' . .1.
«  .% -• •

Total': $195,234.48

A- * ^ . EXPLANATION ' /

The purpose ct this request is for the des'ign and implcmeniaiibn of vpcatior^al Ira'ming supports
end workforce re^iness prograrns for individuals with Opioid Use Disorders in treatment and fecoyerY

. settings who are seeking to join and/or re-join the workforce. This vendor was selected for
throuoh a competitive bid process. A Request for Proposals was posted on The Oepartment of Health
end Kumar) Services* web site from November 15, 2010 through December 13. 2018. In addition, a
notice was sent by email to a wide variely of stakeholders and potential vendors.
received four (4) proposals, the proposals were reviewed and scored by a team of individuals vntn
oroflfam speofic knowledge. The review included a thorough discussioo of the strer^lhs and
wMknesses of the prof>osels/applicalions. The Score Summary is attached. Employment has long been.
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rficoQAlzed as e cnticsl element in the recovery process, providing people with hope and oppoHunity to
move forward in the recovery process'lhal is deiermirted by principles of celf^determinetidn.

- This request represents the fmal one (i> of two (2) contracts to provide vocational trdinir>9
supports and yvortcforee readiness programs. The Governor and Executive Council previously approve^

• pne (1> contract on August 14. 2019 (Item dlO>.

The State of New Hempshire received funding through the Substar>ce Abuse and Mental Health
Services Adtninlsfretion (SAMHSA) Stele Opioid-Response (SOR) grant opporturUiy. New Hempshire
will use evidence-baeed methods to expand treaimeni. recovery. or>d prevention eervicofi to Individuals

' with Olio in NH- These chilcat funds will strengthen established programs that have had a positive impact
>: on the opioid crisis as well es expand the. capacity for programs thai have shown promlsa in helping

individuals battling an opioid misuse issue and siem the tide of the addiction epidemic in NH. In 2017,
NH had 468 opiold-reiated deaths.-2.774 .emergency natoxone (Narcan) administrations, and 6,664
emergency department opioid related visits. NH is ranked as having the third highest overdose rate in
the country at 39 Individuals per 100.000 populiilioa The scope of work was developed, in part, through
8 public comment forum which identified gaps in the system aimed at workforce training opportunities for
individuals with OUD. The services provided through these funds should leverage resources and
facilitate-connec(iof>s-with the multiply workforce initiatives for individuals wiih SUp/OUO that have
pmerged over the ^st Nvo years.- including the Governor's.Recoveiy Friendly Workplace Program and.
the Department of Labor'National Health emergency Demonstration'grant for individuals in recovery,
provided under the Workforce innovation'arid Opf)ortunlty Ad of 2014. .

This agreement v^il.require the vendor to integraie worldorce readiness programming Into'
treatment and recovery settings, including creating vocational profdes ir> order; to determine an indlvidual's-
Bkll) level, strengths, end readine.ss to gain ernployment. The vendor will link the individual to appropriate
vocationaMralnings with the provision of training stipends and other resources to aid the individual on the
path (0 employmeni. Vocationai tralning may include, but Is rvoi limited to assistance with resume writing,
job applications, and improvipg mierviewing skills. ' '

Unique to these services is. a robust level of client-specific.'datd that will be available, which wiit
be collected in coordination with the Regional Hubi that were, approved by Governor end Executive
Council et the October 31, 2018 meeting. The SOR grahi requires that all Individuals Served receive a
comprehensive assessrrSent at several time intervals, speciftcally. at.inteke, six (6) months and upon

(discharge.'Through collaborative agreements with the vendor under this contract, the .Regional Hubs will
be responsible for gathering data on client-related outcomes including; recovery status, criminal justice-
Involvement. employrhent; and housing needs'at the time intervals listed above. This data witi enable the

' Department to measura short and long-term ouicomes associated with SOR-funded iniiiat'rves and to
determine which programs are generaii.ng the best results for (he clients served.

■ Approximately one hundred (100) individuals will be served from'Governor and Executive Council
app.rovaMhrough Seplember 29.2020. ' ' .

As referenced in (he Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C*1 of this contract, this Agreement
has the option to extend for up to two (2) addiliohal years,-contingent upon'satisfactory delivery of

. services, evailable-funding, agreement of the parties end approval of the Governor and Council. ■ ^
Should the Governor end Executive Council not authorize this request, individuals in recovery

seeking a. better quality of life and employment opportunities would' have limited options. Workforce
participation and consistent employment ere crilical components of an individual's ability to remain in
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recovery and meaningfully participate in Ihetr communities.. .v

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Substance .Abuse and Mental Health Seivicos
Adminisiratiori. Slate Oplotd Response Grant. (CFDA (793.788, FAlfV TIO01665)

In the event lhat the Federal (or Other) Funds become no longer available. Gfeneraf Funds wiO
not be ce^uetted to support this program.- "

••v

Respectfully submitted.

A: Mayers
C'oh^missionar

. %i.

t  •

7h« brpenoKAi«/ rrcotiA cf6 tlumtn Stiwta'M'mivi ii (o/«>n (vmmnniito tnd famUiti
in fifoviiinfcpportunilioft'0\ict*»Uiftd\in*htoHh and indtpendcnct.
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RFP.2019-6DAS-12-WORKF

RPP Number. . Reviewer Names

Burks, Otieror Pre«^<ttion&

Bidder Name ; •

Greater Tliton Area Family Resource Gonter

Pe»s/Fsll
MaKimum

Points

Actual

Points
. Mebu Gbsfd. ON Bcftavio^l Mih

8us0teuAdminrstnjtorin

750, -559
^ CenePatnoda.0rvFBm9)rAasKt. ;.vr-

' Busiiea&lndvttfyMgr.

Headrest, inc. 750 SIS
^' Barry Ssndbers Program

' Spedsflsi rv. ON Beheviorei Him

Granite Rathwr8ye,.lnc. 750 563
OndyT^er. Rnouroet i
Oevetoprnent Admin BOAS

4
' Family Resource Center at GofSiam 750 443 6.
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